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Letter from the Managing Director   

  

  
 
Dear Shareholders,    

It is a genuine privilege for me to share my thoughts on Financial Year 2024 with you. During the year we 
were able to show a consistent operational performance throughout the year which is an amazing 
achievement.  

As I reflect on the current state of our nation, I am delighted to share that India’s long-term growth 

prospects remain robust. The strong execution of our strategy has yielded consistent results for us by 

helping us achieve targets that we had set for ourselves at the beginning of the year. We could see the 

recovery of the business in combination with the execution of the strategy yielding into results. We at OK 
Play aim for a big vision and a bigger commitment for the future of the Toy industry by creating value for 

all stakeholders-shareholders, employees, customers and society at large-we aim to nurture an ecosystem of 

mutual benefit and collective advancements. As we navigate the complexities of a rapidly evolving world, 
we remain steadfast in our commitment to be a toy market leader.  

To instil standardization in production and import of toys, a Toy Quality Control Order was issued on 25 
Feb 2020 under the BIS act to ensure toys manufactured or imported into the country were in line with 

global quality standards. There is an abundance in kids entertainment brands to manufacture wide range of 

toys around, along with that large number of entertainment licensors are also actively providing 

opportunities to launch new toys although licensing remains a major part of global toy industry. The 
increasing population of India represents one of the key factors catalysing the demand for toys. In addition, 

inflating income levels and the rising awareness among individuals about the benefit of toys in improving 

the cognitive capabilities of children are positively influencing the market in the country. Furthermore, the 
advent of advanced technology and machinery is encouraging manufacturers to produce innovative toys, 

which in turn is creating a positive market outlook. Soon, owing to the new revolution of ‘Local se Vocal’, 
India is anticipated to become a global hub by 2025-2030. 

I take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all our customers, vendors, investors, auditors and 

bankers who have motivated the Company to excel in all its pursuits and constantly contributed towards 
making the Company more valuable.  

Thank you for your continued trust and commitment to OK Play Group. 

With Best Wishes, 

 

Rajan Handa 

Managing Director 
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 
CIN-L28219HR1988PLC030347 

Registered Office : Plot No 17 & 18, Roz Ka Meo, Industrial Estate, 

Tehsil Nuh, District Mewat, Haryana-122103 

Tel:  011- 46190000 │ Fax:  011-46190090 

Website: www.okplay.in │ Email: info@okplay.in 
 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting of the members of OK PLAY 

INDIA LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 30th day of September, 2024 at 12:30 P.M. to 

transact through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) the 

following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and 

Consolidated) of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, together 

with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard, to pass 

with or without modification the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) 

of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 together with the reports 

of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon be and are hereby received, considered 

and adopted.” 

2. To appoint a Director in place of  Dr. Rajan Wadhera  (DIN: 01412577), Director of the 

Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

and in this regard, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT Dr. Rajan Wadhera (DIN: 01412577) who retires by rotation at 

this meeting and being eligible, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 

Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

     SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Ratification of remuneration of the cost auditor for the financial year 2024-25 

 

      To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

     “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 

being in force), M/s Goyal, Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration 

No. 000100) appointed as the Cost Auditor by the Board of Directors of the Company 

to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 

on a remuneration of  Rs. 90,000/- per annum, be and is hereby ratified.” 

 

4. Re-appointment & payment of remuneration to Mrs. Mamta Handa  (DIN 

00238019) as  Whole-Time  Director   

 

http://www.okplay.in/
mailto:info@okplay.in
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      To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following 

resolution as a Special   Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 188,197 and 198 read with 

Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of  Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, and 

subject to approval of the Central Government, if necessary, the consent of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment and payment of 

remuneration to Mrs. Mamta Handa (DIN 00238019) as Whole Time Director of the 

Company after the expiry of her current term for a period of three years from 20 June, 

2025 to 19 June, 2028 with liberty to Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “ the 

Board” which term shall be deemed to include Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of the Board) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said 

remuneration be paid including perquisites subject to the same not exceeding the limits 

specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 as set out hereunder: 

I. Salary: 

Basic Salary: Rs.1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand only) per month with 

effect from 20th June,2025. 

II. Allowances & Perquisites 

Allowances & Perquisites shall be allowed in addition to Salary. However, it shall be 

restricted to an amount equal to Rs. 4,50,000/- per month. Allowances and Perquisites are 

broadly classified as follows, viz., House Rent Allowance, Gas, Electricity, Water & 

Furnishing, PF & retirement benefits and Leave Travel Concession as per rules of the 

Company, Personal Accident Insurance, Meal vouchers, Books & Periodicals, use of 

Company's car with driver, Residential Telephones, Special Allowances etc. For the 

purpose of calculating the above ceiling, perquisites will be evaluated as per Income Tax 

Rules, wherever applicable. In the absence of any such rules, perquisites shall be 

evaluated at actual cost. However, ceilings under each of the above heads shall be 

fixed/re- fixed as may be mutually agreed to between the Company and the Appointee so 

as not to exceed the limit of Rs. 4,50,000/- or to allow any other perquisite. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any loss or inadequacy of profit in any 

financial year or during the tenure of Mrs. Mamta Handa (DIN- 00238019), as Whole 

Time Director, the remuneration (including perquisites) as set out aforesaid be paid to her 

as minimum remuneration. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to vary, increase, modify or alter the remuneration and perquisites in 

such manner as may be agreed between the Board of Directors and Mrs. Mamta Handa 

within and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory 

modification thereto and as may be stipulated by the Central Government. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 

to take such steps as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak (DIN: 08707272) as an Independent 

Director 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other 
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applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV 

to the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak (DIN: 08707272), 

Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company who has submitted a declaration 

that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and 

who is eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-

Executive Director of the Company to hold office for another term of five consecutive 

years with effect from 20 March 2025.” 

 
6. Re-appointment of Mr. Dhiraj Arora (DIN: 00233700) as an Independent Director 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV 

to the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Dhiraj Arora (DIN: 00233700), Independent Non-

Executive Director of the Company who has submitted a declaration that he meets the 

criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for 

re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director 

of the Company to hold office for another term of five consecutive years with effect from 

20 March 2025.” 

 

  By Order of the Board of Directors 

                                                                                  For OK Play India Limited 

                                                                             

                                                                             Sd/- 

                         [Meenu Goswami] 

                     [Company Secretary] 

[ACS No - 33472] 

 

 

Registered Office: 

Plot No 17 & 18, Roz- Ka- Meo Industrial Estate,  

Tehsil- Nuh, Dist Mewat,  
Gurugram, Haryana, 122103  

Tel. No.: 011-46190000;  

e-mail: info@okplay.in;   
Website: www.okplay.in 

CIN: L28219HR1988PLC030347 

 

Place: Haryana 

Date:  05th September, 2024 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

 

http://www.okplay.in/
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Notes: 

1. Pursuant to General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 

April 13, 2020 read with General Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020 read with General Circular No. 

33/2020 dated September 28, 2020 read with General Circular No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020 read 

with General Circular no. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021 read with General Circular no. 20/2021 dated 

December 08, 2021 read with General Circular no. 03/2022 dated May 05, 2022 read with General Circular 

no. 11/2022 dated December 28, 2022 read with General Circular no. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (collectively referred to as “MCA 

Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 read with Circular 

No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 read with Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-

2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023 read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 

dated October 07, 2023 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as 
“SEBI Circulars”) and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and MCA General Circular No. 09/2023 

dated September 25,2023 this AGM is being convened to be held through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or 

Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. 

The proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company 

which shall be the deemed Venue of the AGM.  

2. Since, the AGM is being conducted through VC/ OAVM, there is no provision for appointment of proxies. 

Accordingly, appointment of proxies by the members will not be available. 

3. Corporate members intending to attend the AGM through authorized representatives are requested to send a 

scanned copy of duly certified copy of the board or governing body resolution authorizing the 

representatives to attend and vote at the Annual general meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be 
sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to mailmepkp@gmail.com with a copy 

marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

4. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

5. Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed. 

6. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24 

September, 2024 to 30 September, 2024 (both days inclusive). The remote e-voting period commences on 

Friday, September 27, 2024 (09:00 a.m.) and ends on Sunday, September 29, 2024 (05:00 p.m.). No e-

voting shall be allowed beyond the said date and time. During this period members of the Company, 

holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of September 23, 

2024, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. 

7. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate immediately to the  Registrar & Share 
Transfer  Agent  of  the  Company,  MAS  Services  Limited, T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase - II, New Delhi - 110 020 Ph:- 011-26387281/82/83 Fax:- 011-26387384  quoting registered Folio 

No. (a) Details of their bank account/change in bank account, if any, and (b) change in their address, if any, 

with PIN Code number.  In case shares are in demat form, members are requested to update their bank detail 

with their depository participant. 

8. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the shareholders of the 

Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by him/them shall vest in the event of 

his/their death.  Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit the requisite nomination form. 

9. Any member requiring further information on the Resolutions to be passed at the meeting  are requested to 

send the queries in writing  at least one week before the meeting. 

10. In respect of the matters pertaining to Bank details, ECS mandates, nomination, power of attorney, change 
in name/address etc., the members are requested to approach the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer 

Agent, in respect of shares held in physical form and the respective Depository Participants, in case of 

shares held in electronic form. In all correspondence with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, 

members are requested to quote their folio numbers or DP ID and Client ID for physical or electronic 

holdings respectively. 

11. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at its Registered Office of 

the Company during normal business hours on any working day, up to the date of meeting. 

12. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 

market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat account. Members holding shares in 

physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/Registrar.  

13. Members who hold shares in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names 
are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar, for consolidation into a single folio. 

14. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, the notice of 

AGM is being sent only through electronic mode; to those Members who have not registered their e-mail 

address so far are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all communication including 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. Members may note that the Notice 

calling AGM along with the explanatory statement and Annual Report 2023-24 are available on the website 

of the Company at www.okplay.in and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authorised agency for providing voting through electronic means and AGM 

through VC/OAVM). Company’s web-link on the above will also be provided in advertisement being 
published in Financial Express and Jansatta (English and Hindi edition). 

15. Members can avail of the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them in physical form pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act read with Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules, 2014. Members desiring to avail of this facility may send their nomination in the 

prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled in to MAS Services Limited having their office at T – 34, Okhla 

Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi – 110 020 or send an E-mail at: investor@masserv.com. Members 

holding shares in dematerialized form need to contact their respective Depository Participants for availing 

this facility. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he/she may 

submit the same in Form No.  SH-14. 

16.  TRANSFER & TRANSMISSION OF SHARES  

(1)   Mandatory processing of Transfer & Transmission request in Demat form: As per Regulation 40 of the 

Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized 
form with effect from 1st April, 2019. Further, SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ 

RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022, has with effect from 24th January, 2022 mandated listed 

companies to issue securities in dematerialized form while processing service request for issue of duplicate 

securities certificate, claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account, renewal/exchange of securities certificate, 

endorsement, sub-division/splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, 

transmission, transposition, etc. In view of the above and to eliminate the risks associated with physical 

shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 

convert their holdings to dematerialized form. Members are accordingly requested to get in touch with any 

Depository Participant having registration with SEBI to open a Demat account or alternatively, contact our 

RTA to seek guidance with respect to the demat procedure. Members may also visit the website of 

depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited: https://nsdl.co.in/faqs/faq.php or Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited: https://www.cdslindia.com/ investors/open-demat.html for further 

understanding the demat procedure.  

(2)  Simplified Procedure for transmission of securities and Issuance of Duplicate Share certificates: SEBI vide 

its Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/65 dated 18th May, 2022 and 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2022/70 dated 25th May, 2022 has simplified the procedure 

and standardized the format of documents for transmission of securities and issuance of duplicate securities 

certificates. Members are requested to submit their requests, if any, along with documents as per the said 

circular. 

17.  Members can login and join the AGM 15 minutes prior to the scheduled time to start the AGM and the 

window for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time to start the 

AGM. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 

members, on first- come-first-served basis. However, the participation of large members (members holding 
2% or more shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee and Auditors can attend the AGM without restriction of first-come-first served basis. 

Instructions and other information for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are given in 

this Notice. 

In case you have not registered your email ID with depository or RTA you may registered your email id in 

following manner. 

Physical 

Holding 

Please register your email ID, mobile number, PAN , Bank detail and nomination to 

RTA (to register the same you can download form ISR1-, SH-13, ISR-2  from website 

of RTA i.e. www.masserv.com). Send a signed request to Registrar and Transfer Agents 

of the company, MAS Services Limited at investor@masserv.com. 

Demat 

Holding 

Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email address as per 

the process advised by DP. 

 

18. Voting through electronic means: In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 44 of the Listing 

Regulations and pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 Company is offering e-voting facility to its 

members. Detailed procedure is given below.   
 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:investor@masserv.com
https://nsdl.co.in/faqs/faq.php
https://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.masserv.com/
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INSTRUCTION FOR REMOTE EVOTING, EVOTING AND JOINING OF AGM THROUGH VIDEO 

CONFERENCING  

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Sunday, 

September 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 

thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the 

record date (cut -off date) i.e. September 23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of 

shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as 

on the cut-off date, being September 23, 2024. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

 

 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. Login method for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of  

Shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

Holding securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL Ide AS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://services.nsdl.com/either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 

“IDeAS” section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 

to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider – NSDL 

and you will be redirected to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS” Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 

SecureWeb/IdeasDirect Reg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held 

with NSDL), Password/ OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and 

you will be redirected to e- Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App "NSDL 

Speede" facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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                     NSDL Mobile App is available on 

                  

                 
 

 

 
I n d i v i d u a l 

Shareholders 

h o l d i n g 

securities in 

demat mode 

with CDSL 

 
1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through 

their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-

Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to 

login to Easi /Easiest are https://web. cdslindia.com/ m y e a s i / h o m e / 

l o g i n o r www.cdslindia. com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/ Easiest the user will be also able to see the 

E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e- Voting service provider 

i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at https:/ / web.cdslindia.com /myeasi/  Registration/Easi Registration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com 
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 

ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

 

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through 

their depository participants You can also login using the login 

credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant 

registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Once login, you will 

be able to see e- Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 

to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

 

 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 

by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

 

 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 

by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

022- 23058738 or 022- 23058542-43 

 

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:// 

www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/ OTP and a Verification Code 

as shown on the screen. 

 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 

your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding  shares i.e. 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID For example if your Beneficiary 

ID is 1 2 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 

the company For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e- Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 

vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 

password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 

the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is 

your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 

whose email ids are not registered 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/ Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or  

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 

registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 

system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 

casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 

“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 

which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 

of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

mailmepkp@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts 

to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 

the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 

toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Amit Vishal at evoting@nsdl.co.in or to 
our RTA at investor@masserv.com. 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user 

id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please send a signed request letter with Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investor@masserv.com or 

info@okplay.in. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please update your email ID with your depository and provide 

DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, updated client master to 

info@masserv.com or info@okplay.in. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat 

mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 

and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 

number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e- Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e- VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 

UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote 

e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 

not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 

so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e- Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will 

not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting 

on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-
Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting 

system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:investor@masserv.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General 

Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of 

Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-

Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting 

instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 

therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 

mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at info@okplay.in. 

The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

General Instructions 

(i) A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-

voting as well as voting at the AGM. 

(ii) Mr. Puneet Kumar Pandey, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS-29848 & CP No. 10913), 
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the 

remote e-voting process in   a fair and transparent   manner. 

(iii) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, 

allow voting  for all those members who are present through VC / OAVM at the AGM but have not cast 

their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. 

(iv) The Scrutiniser will, after the conclusion of e-voting at the Meeting, scrutinise the votes cast at the Meeting 

and votes cast through remote e-voting, make a consolidated Scrutiniser’s Report and submit the same to 

the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare results 

(consolidated) within 48 hours from the conclusion of the meeting and the same, along with the 

consolidated Scrutiniser’s Report, will be placed on the website of the Company (www.okplay.in) and the 

website of NSDL (www.evoting.nsdl.com) immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman and 

in his absence, any Director/Officer of the Company authorised by the Chairman and the same will also be 
communicated to BSE Limited. It shall also be displayed on the Notice Board at the Registered Office of 

the Company. 

 

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 3 

The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed M/s Goyal, Goyal & 

Associates (FRN 000100) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. As per 

Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to Cost Auditor 
is to be ratified by the shareholders. Hence, this resolution is put for the consideration of the 
shareholders.  

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned 
or interested in this resolution. Your Directors recommend the above Ordinary Resolution for 
approval. 

Item No. 4 

Mrs. Mamta Handa was appointed as Whole-Time Director in the meeting held on 29th September 2021 
with effect from 20 June 2022 to 19 June, 2025.The Nomination and Remuneration Committee having 

regard to the various requirements stipulated in Schedule V, have recommended re-appointment of Mrs. 

Mamta Handa for a term of 3 (Three) years commencing from 20 June 2025 to 19 June 2028 on the 

terms and conditions mentioned in the proposed resolution subject to approval of the shareholders. As 
per conditions stipulated in the Schedule V, Special Resolution for payment of remuneration shall be for 
a period not exceeding 3 years.  
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The Nomination & Remuneration Committee having regard to various requirements stipulated in 
Schedule V have fixed the remuneration payable to Mrs. Mamta Handa, Whole-Time Director of the 
Company.  

The Notice read with the Explanatory Statement and contents therein may be treated as an abstract of 

the terms of remuneration payable to Mrs. Mamta Handa under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Hence, the proposed special resolution seeks approval of shareholders. 

In this regard, as required under Part II, Section II (iv), of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 the 
following information is furnished: 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

1) Nature of Industry: 

The Company is in the manufacturing of plastic moulded toys, outdoor play stations, school 
furniture, auto components and Electric Vehicles.  

2) Date of commencement of commercial Production: 
The Company commenced its commercial production in the year 1990. 

3) Financial Performance based on given indicators: 
 

                                                                                          (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Sales   7206.55 13280.27 14508.07 

Profit Before tax (1132.26) 7.69 740.59 

Profit after tax (821.88) (390.08) 574.35 

 

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE 

 

1) Background details, recognition/awards 

Mrs. Mamta Handa is a commerce graduate and has good experience in administration and other 
management related functions. 

          Past remuneration  

                                                                      

Period Salary Perquisites & 
Allowance 

Total 

01.04.2023-31.03.2024 Rs.3,600,000  Rs. 3,000,000 Rs. 6,600,000 

 

2)  Job profile and suitability 

Mrs. Mamta Handa as Whole Time Director is responsible for overall management related to 

Marketing, Administration and other related area. With the requisite knowledge and experience, it is 
considered that the appointee is suitable for the assignment.  

3) Remuneration proposed 
Details of remuneration payable to Mrs. Mamta Handa, Whole-Time Director are furnished in the 
resolution under item no. 4 of the Notice. 

The Remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, etc. has been fixed by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board, subject to maximum annual remuneration not exceeding 
the limits prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of 

the position and person 
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Taking into consideration the size of the company, the profile of the appointee, her 
responsibilities, the industry benchmarks, the remuneration proposed to be paid is commensurate 

with the remuneration package paid to similar senior level counterpart(s) in other companies in 
the industry. 

5) Pecuniary relationship, directly or indirectly with the Company / relationship with 

Managerial personnel, if any 

Mrs. Mamta Handa has no pecuniary relationship with the Company directly or indirectly except 
to the extent of the remuneration received / receivable by her from the Company and her 
respective holding in the Company’s equity share capital. 

III. OTHER INFORMATION 
 

Reason of loss or inadequate profits: 

Not Applicable as the company has posted a Net Profit after Tax of Rs.574.35 Lacs for the year ended 
31st March, 2024. 

Steps taken for improvement 

Not Applicable as the company has adequate profits. The company posted a profit before Tax of 
Rs.740.59 lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: 

The Company is taking effective steps to improve operational efficiency to maintain the earnings. 

With continued focus on innovation and high technology and improving efficiency, Company is likely 
to achieve its production targets. 

DISCLOSURES 

The Shareholders of the Company have been informed about the remuneration of Mrs. Mamta Handa 
through the disclosures made in the Corporate Governance Report attached to the Directors report. 

Except Mrs. Mamta Handa, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

of the Company and their relatives, is concerned or interested in this resolution. Your Directors 
recommend the above Special Resolution for approval.  

Please refer Table given in this Notice for disclosure under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards II. 

 

Item No. 5 & 6 

Mr. Dhiraj Arora (00233700) and Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak (08707272) are Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the company. Pursuant to the Act, Mr. Dhiraj Arora and Mr. Vikash Kumar 

Pathak were appointed as an Independent Non-executive Directors to hold office for five consecutive 

years for a term upto 19th March 2025, by the members of the Company in the Extra-ordinary General 

Meeting held on 20th March 2020. As per section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold 
office for a term of upto five consecutive years on the Board of a Company but shall be eligible for re-

appointment on passing of a special resolution by the company for another term of upto five consecutive 

years on the Board of the Company.  Mr. Dhiraj Arora is a graduate and is successfully running various 
restaurant lines and has vast experience in publicity and marketing related functions. Mr. Vikash Kumar 

Pathak is a lawyer by Profession. He advises and represents his clients on a wide range of legal matters. 

Mr. Dhiraj Arora and Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak are the members of the Board of Directors of OK 

PLAY INDIA LIMITED since 2020. Performance Evaluation of Mr. Arora and Mr. Pathak was carried 
out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee covering the various aspects of SEBI Guidance 

Note and based on its recommendation, they are being proposed to be re-appointed for a period of five 

(5) years. In terms of the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, Mr. Dhiraj Arora and Mr. Vikash Kumar 



 
 

          14 
 

Pathak being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as Independent Directors for five consecutive 
years for a term upto 19th March, 2030. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Dhiraj Arora and Mr. Vikash 

Kumar Pathak fulfill the conditions specified under the Act, the Companies (Appointment & 

Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations for re-

appointment as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company and are independent of the 
management. The Board considers that their continued association would be of immense benefit to the 

Company and it is desirable to continue to avail services of Mr. Dhiraj Arora and Mr. Vikash Kumar 

Pathak as Independent Directors. Except Mr. Dhiraj Arora and Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak, being 
appointees, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is 

concerned or interested in these resolutions. Your Directors recommend the above Special Resolutions 5 

& 6 for approval. Please refer Table given in this Notice for disclosure under SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards II.  

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT IN ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING FIXED FOR 30 SEPTEMBER 2024 

Name of the Director Mrs. Mamta Handa Mr. Dhiraj Arora Mr. Vikash 

Kumar 

Pathak 

DIN 00238019 00233700 08707272 

Date of Birth 03.01.1968 28.08.1974 12.05.1986 

Date of Appointment 20.01.2010 20.03.2020 20.03.2020 

Qualification Graduate Graduate Lawyer  

Experience & Expertise 

in specific functional area 

Marketing, 

Administration and 

other related area 

Publicity, Marketing 

related functions 

Legal 

Terms & Conditions of 

appointment/ re-

appointment 

As mentioned in the 

Explanatory 

Statement attached to 

this Notice 

As per Company’s 

Policy on 

Appointment of 

Board Members 

As per 

Company’s 

Policy on 

Appointment 

of Board 

Members 

Remuneration last drawn As mentioned in the 

Explanatory 

Statement attached to 

this Notice 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

Shareholding in the 

Company as on 

31.03.2024 

1,03,84,500 Equity 

Shares 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

Relationship with other 
directors and KMPs of 

the Company 

Wife of Mr. Rajan 
Handa, Promoter 

Director and mother 

of Mr. Rishab and 

Mr. Raghav  Handa, 

Director 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

No. of Meetings of Board 

attended during the year 

27 25 28 

List of Companies* in 

which outside 

directorship held 

 OK Play Auto  

Limited 

 Cautious Exim 

Private Limited 

 Isht Technologies 

Private Limited 

 MRH Technologies 

Private Limited 

 RMRS Electric 

Vehicles Private 
Limited 

 Raingod Foods Private 

Limited 

 Mahima Hospitality 

Private Limited 

 World of Shalom 

Restaurants Private 

Limited 

 Phoenix  Restaurants 

Private Limited 

 Amani Global Private 
Limited 

NIL 
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Chairman/Member of the 

Committees* of Board of 

Directors of Indian 

Companies 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

* includes directorship/ committee positions in other Indian companies. 

 

 

Registered Office:                                                              By Order of the Board of Directors 

Plot No 17 & 18, Roz- Ka- Meo Industrial Estate,         For OK Play India Limited 

Tehsil- Nuh, Dist Mewat,  

Gurugram, Haryana, 122103                                       Sd/-  

Tel. No.: 011-46190000;                                                                                      [Meenu Goswami] 

e-mail: info@okplay.in;                                                                         [Company Secretary] 

Website: www.okplay.in                                                                              [ACS No - 33472] 

 

                    

 

Place: Haryana 

Date: 05th September, 2024  

   

                                                                                   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                           

  

mailto:info@okplay.in
http://www.okplay.in/
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                        DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

 
To, 

 

The Members, 

 

The Directors of your Company have immense pleasure in presenting the 35th Annual Report on 

the business and operations of the company and the audited accounts for the Financial Year 

ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS  

 

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is summarized 

below:             

                                                                                       (Rs in Lacs) 

PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 

2023-24 

 

Revenue from Operations 
13280.27 14508.07 18145.19 18456.06 

Other Income 25.59 1342.86 24.18 39.47 

Profit /(loss) before exceptional Items  and Tax 
30.53 919.30 18169.37 18495.53 

Exceptional item Gain/(loss)  (22.84) (178.71) (22.84) (178.70) 

 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 7.69 740.59 285.27 483.90 

Less: Provision for Tax     

 i)   Current - - 0.11 38.68 

 ii)  Earlier year Tax  - 1.71 7.78 

 iii) Deferred Tax 397.77 166.24 479.22 324.24 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (390.08) 574.35 (195.77) 113.20 

Other Comprehensive  

Income/Loss 
(56.58) 39.48 (56.58) 39.48 

Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (446.66) 613.83 (252.04) 152.68 

Balance of profit/Loss for earlier years 
(1723.06) (2113.14) (2241.42) (2440.77) 

Profit /loss transfer to Reserve (390.08) 574.35 (195.93) 113.56 

Balance carried forward 
(2113.14) (1555.86) (2440.77) (2376.29) 

 

STATUS OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS /BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

The turnover of the company for the year under review stands at Rs. 14508.07 lacs as compared 

to Rs. 13280.27 Lacs of the last year. There has been an increase of 9.24 % in the turnover of the 

Company. Further the Company earned a net profit of Rs 574.34 lakhs as compared to the net 

loss of (Rs390.08 Lacs) of the last year.  

 

A detailed review of the company’s performance and future prospects is included in the 

Management Discussion and analysis section of this Annual Report. 
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TRANSFER TO RESERVE  

 

The Net Profit of Rs 574.35 lakhs has been transferred to General Reserve during the year under        

review. 

 

DIVIDEND  

 

To conserve the surplus reserves for the business and expansion plan of the Company, your 

Directors regret their inability to recommend any dividend. 

 

TRANSFER TO IEPF 

 

During the Financial year 2023-24, no amount was transferred to IEPF. 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

Declaration given by Independent Directors meeting the criteria of Independence as provided in 

sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 is received and taken on record. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

The Report of the Statutory Auditors for the year ended 31st March, 2024 forms part of this 

Annual Report. The Report is free from any qualifications, reservations or disclaimers. 

Observations therein are self-explanatory. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

During the year under review, following changes occurred in the composition of Board of 

directors/KMP of the Company. 

 

A) Mr Pankaj Kalra (DIN: 07219227) has been appointed as Independent Director w.e.f 1st 

October, 2024. 

 

b) Second tenure of 5 years of Independent Director  Mr Ajay Vohra (DIN: 03332920) has been 

ended on 30th September,2024. 

c) In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Dr. Rajan 

Wadhera, Director will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM of Company and being 

eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

 

 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial 

statements and no significant weakness was found in the implementation of controls during the 

year under review. The Board has adopted policies and procedures for governance of orderly 

and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, 

safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 

The Company’s internal control system commensurate with the nature of its business, size and 

complexity of its operations. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the adequacy of internal 

financial controls.  
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DEPOSITS 

 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under review. No 

amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on 31st 

March, 2024. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN  

 

In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 12 of 

Companies Act,2013 read with rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules,2014, the draft of the Annual Return having all the available information of the Company 

as on 31 March,2024  is available on the Company’s website i.e. www.okplay.in. 

 

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 

All related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis in the ordinary course of business 

and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing 

regulations. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company 

with Promoters, Directors or KMP etc. which may have potential conflict with the interest of the 

Company at large which warrants the approval of shareholders. All related party transactions are 

reported to the Audit Committee. Details of all related party transactions are reported to the Audit 

Committee for scrutiny/ review and referred for approval of the Board on a quarterly basis. 

Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134 (3)(h) of 

the Companies Act,2013 in Form AOC-2 forms part of the Annual Report. Omnibus approval is 

obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. Transactions with 

related parties are conducted in a transparent manner with the interest of the Company as utmost 

priority. Details of such transactions are given in the accompanying Financial Statements. The 

Company’s policy on Related Party Transactions is available at our website www.okplay.in. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

The Company has a risk management mechanism in place to identify, evaluate, monitor and 

manage both business and non-business risks through the oversight of Board, senior management 

personnel and external advisors. The risk identified by the Company broadly fall in the category 

of operational risk, regulatory risk, financial & accounting risk. The Company has an elaborate 

Risk Charter and risk policy defining risk management governance model, risk assessment and 

prioritization process. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of various risks 

identified, advance actions to mitigate it, monitor and report effectiveness of the process and 

procedures. In the opinion of the Board, none of the said risks which have been identified may 

threaten the existence of the Company and controls. The Audit Committee has additional 

oversight in the area of financial risk. 

 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments forms part of the Annual Report. 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Statutory disclosures as required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, Particulars 

relating to Conservation of Energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

are given in Annexure - I which forms part of the report. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

 

There have not been any material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 

the company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the company to 

which the financial statement relate and the date of report except acquiring stake in MRH 

Technologies Private Limited and becoming holding company of MRH Technologies  Private 

Limited. 

 

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, 

RESERVATION, ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER BY THE STATUTORY 

AUDITOR OR SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

 

The Statutory Auditors of the company have given an unqualified Audit report (Standalone & 

Consolidated) for the financial year 2023-24.  

 

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Puneet Kumar Pandey, Company Secretary (COP- 10913), 

for conducting Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2023-24. Copy of Secretarial Audit Report 

is annexed as Annexure-III of this report. 

 

Observation by Secretarial Auditor: 

(i) The company filed its related party transactions statements for the half year ended 31.03.2023 

on the next day of publication of financial statements. However, company has paid the prescribed 

fine for the late submission of the related party transactions statements for the half year ended 

31.03.2023. 

 

Reply by the company: 

 

     (i) Penalty laid by BSE  has been paid by the company. 

 

Further Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not observed / reported any fraud which is 

reportable. 

 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

The Board of Directors appointed M/s Shalini Grover & Co., Chartered Accountants (C.P No 

15896) as Internal Auditor for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Company has in place adequate 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls 

were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed. Internal 

Auditors have submitted their Report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and this was 

further reviewed by Management and taken on record.  
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

Mr. Rishab Handa, CFO and Mr. Rajan Handa, Managing Director of the Company have 

certified to the Board that all the requirements of the Listing Obligations, inter alia, dealing with 

the review of financial statements and Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st  March, 2024, 

transactions entered into by the Company during the said year, their responsibility for 

establishing and maintaining internal control systems for financial reporting and evaluation of the 

effectiveness of the internal control system and making of necessary disclosures to the Auditors 

and the Audit Committee have been duly complied with. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

Corporate Governance stems from the belief and realization that corporate citizenship has a set of 

responsibilities, which must be fulfilled for a company to progress and succeed over the long 

term. In compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion and Analysis and a Report on Corporate Governance 

along with Certificate from Auditors regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 

Governance is annexed as Annexure- lV  to the Directors’ Report. 

 

A declaration by the Managing Director regarding the compliance with the Code of Conduct also 

forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

NUMBER OF THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & ATTENDANCE OF   DIRECTORS 

 

There were Twenty Eight Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2023-24. Details of the 

same forms part of the Corporate Governance Report. 

  

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

OK Play is a socially conscious and responsible company supporting organizations working in 

conservation, education, environmental, management, sustainable development and humanitarian 

affairs. Provision relating to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the company 

during the Financial Year 2023-24. 

 

DISCLOSURE ON BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

Details already provided in the Corporate Governance Section of this Annual report. 

 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE  

 

The Company has adhered to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There is no complaint received during the 

year and pending during the financial year under provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.  

 

VIGIL MECHANISM  

 

Details already provided in the Corporate Governance Section of this Annual report. 
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/ 

COURTS/ TRIBUNALS 

 

The company has not received any order from the Courts, regulators or tribunals impacting the 

going concern status and company’s operation in future. 

 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has prepared Consolidated Financial 

Statements as per Indian Accounting Standards. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 

along with Auditors’ Report thereon forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

 

Details of subsidiary Companies i.e. OK Play Auto Private Limited, RIRA E- Vehicles Private 

Limited. MRH Technologies Private Limited  and their business operation during the year under 

review are covered in the Annual Report. Further the Company has made divestment of interest 

in Isht Technologies Private Limited w.e.f 22nd December, 2023 and acquired 100 % stake in 

MRH Technologies Private Limited w.e.f 21st November,2023. Report on the performance and 

financial position of the subsidiaries as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, is 

included in this report and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. 

 

The Policy for determining material subsidiaries may be accessed on the Company’s website. 

 

The Company will make available the annual accounts of the subsidiary and the related detailed 

information to any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining the same. The 

annual accounts of the subsidiary are also available on website of the Company and are open for 

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. The Consolidated Financial statements 

presented by the Company include the financial results of its subsidiary companies. 

 

Copy of Annual Report of the Company is available on the website of the Company. 

 

 

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE SHARE WARRANTS 

 

The Company has raised money through Preferential allotment-I of 1,35,30,000 fully convertible 

warrants at a price of Rs. 60.21/- aggregating to Rs. 8146.41 lacs during the year ended 31st 

March, 2024.The company has already received an amount of Rs. 5317.29 lacs and the balance 

of Rs. 2829.12 lacs will be received within a maximum period of 18 months from the respective 

date of allotment. The Preferential Issue-I was approved by Shareholders through Extra-ordinary 

General Meeting held on 25th March, 2023. In Preferential Issue-I, the Company has made 

allotment of 72,65,000 equity shares pursuant to exercise of option by the warrant holder. 

The Company has raised Rs.3193.75 lacs through Preferential allotment-II of 25,55,000 Equity 

Shares at the issue price of Rs.125/- and has raised Rs. 337.50 lacs through Preferential 

allotment of 10,00,000 Fully Convertible Equity warrants at the issue price of Rs.135/- (which 

are exercisable at the option of warrant holder within a period of 18 months from the date of 

allotment) during the year ended 31st  March, 2024. The Preferential Issue-II was approved by 

Shareholders through Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 20th December, 2023. 
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 

The Table containing the names and other particulars of employees in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 197(1), of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended as 

Annexure-II to this Report. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

Your Directors confirm that: 

 

  in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2024 and of the Profit of the company for the 

year ended on that date; 

 the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

  the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

 the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively 

 the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  

 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.  

 

COST RECORDS 

 

During the year under review, M/s Goyal, Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN-000100) 

was appointed as Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24.In terms of Section 148(1) and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the 

Company is required to maintain Cost records of the Company and accordingly such accounts 

and records are made and maintained. 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

The Board has framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, senior management 

and their remuneration. The Policy is uploaded on Company’s website. 

 

Key principles governing the Remuneration Policy are as follows:  

 Market competitiveness 

 Role played by the individual 

 Reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ Company’s operations and 

the Company’s capacity to pay 

 Consistent with recognized best practices; and 

 Aligned to any regulatory requirements. 
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CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES AND 

INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of 

the Listing Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the 

criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors, the key 

features of which are as follows: 

 

Qualifications: The Board nomination process encourages diversity of thought, experience, 

knowledge, age and gender. It also ensures that the Board has an appropriate blend of functional 

and industry experience. 

 

Positive Attributes: Apart from the duties of Directors as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Directors are expected to demonstrate high standards of ethical behavior, communication 

skills and independence in judgement. The Directors are also expected to abide by the respective 

Code of Conduct as applicable to them. 

 

Independence: A Director will be considered independent if he/ she meets the criteria laid down 

in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing 

Regulations. 

 

HUMAN RELATIONS 

 

Your Company continues to enjoy cordial relations amongst all its employees. In this pursuit of 

creating its own management cadre, your company has recruited executives and staff at various 

levels, including senior management positions during the year. 

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 

During the year, your company maintained harmonious and cordial industrial relations. 

 

 BOARD EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, 

the Board has carried out an Annual Performance Evaluation of its own performance, Directors 

individually and that of its Committees. The evaluation of Non-independent Directors, Chairman 

and the Board as a whole was done at a separate meeting held by Independent Directors. The 

performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding 

Directors being evaluated. 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE FOR OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016 

 

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the 

name of the company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME 

SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

 

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from banks 

and financial institutions.  
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By Order of the Board of Directors 

For OK PLAY INDIA LTD. 

 

 

 

Date: 5th  September,2024 

Place: New Delhi 

 

 

 

 

Rajan Handa 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00194590                            

 

 

 

 

Mamta Handa 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00238019 
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                                                                                                                  ANNEXURE-I 

 

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE 

COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

The company is committed to propelling business growth while embedding sustainability into 

every aspect in our operations. Our dedication to environmental stewardship reflects in every 

facet of our operations. We encourage energy-efficient practices, resource optimization and the 

adoption of renewable energy sources at our plant. We have also upgraded some machines 

during the year for effective and efficient utilization of available resources. LED lights are used 

in the factory premise which is an excellent way to save energy.  These initiatives not only help 

us align with global sustainability goals but also enhance our standing as a responsible 

corporate entity. We constantly put efforts towards minimizing waste in our manufacturing 

operations and reduce diesel consumption. Our social initiatives focus on enhancing diversity 

and inclusion, ensuring safety, and positively impacting communities. Our governance 

practices emphasize maintaining high standards, leading in transparency, and fostering a 

resilient supply chain. The company continued its efforts to conserve water resources by 

recycling a major portion of its waste water by harvesting rainwater and reducing its water 

consumption as well as controlling water losses in all domestic manufacturing and office 

locations of the company. The company also recycles its scrap and waste paper. We make 

continuous efforts   to keep up to date with maintenance on equipment and machinery for 

optimizing its performance and lifespan, which translates to energy efficiency savings.   

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

The company utilizes advanced technologies including rotational molding, blow molding and   

injection molding to produce high-quality products that meet the highest industry standards. 

The company has achieved complete self-reliance in the design and manufacturing of its 

engineering products, eliminating the need for foreign technology. Utilizing advanced, high-

tech Indian-made moulding and mould manufacturing machines, the company ensures top-

quality production processes. 

Over recent years, the company has capitalized on its expertise in the Roto Molding Sector to 

develop next-generation components for a variety of automotive applications. These 

components effectively replace traditional metal, fiber, and wood alternatives, offering 

enhanced performance and benefits. 

This year, our research and development efforts have been particularly focused on the toy 

sector. We are committed to support the "Make in India" campaign by innovating and 

producing new and exciting toys that brings joy to children. Our development of new products 

for both domestic and international markets reflects this commitment, as we strive to make 

every child's smile brighter with our creations. 
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Expenditure on Research and Development 

                                                                                            

C.FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

                                                                                               

Particulars Rs. in Lakhs 

Foreign Exchange earned 43.81 

Outgo of Foreign Exchange  10.65 

                                                                                                      

                                     

                                                                                          

 

  

Particulars Rs. in Lakhs 

A Capital (Research & Development)         146.58 

B Recurring - 

C Total 146.58 

D Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover     1.01% 
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ANNEXURE-II 

 

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED WITH RESPECT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given 

below: 

(a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the company for the financial year. 

 

Name of Director 2024 2023 

Mr. Rajan Handa, Managing 
Director 

60.44 70.00 

Mrs. Mamta Handa, Whole time 
Director 

25.90 30.00 

Mr. Rajan Wadhera, Whole time 
Director 

8.63 10.00 

Mr. Shalabh Jasoria - - 

Mr. Atul Nripraj Barar - - 

Mr. Ajay Vohra - - 

Mr. Pankaj Kalra - - 

Mr. Rishab Handa, Whole Time 
Director & CFO 

34.53 40.00 

Mr. Raghav Handa, Whole Time 
Director 

34.53 40.00 

Mr. Dhiraj Arora - - 

Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak - - 

 

(b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, 

Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 

 

Name of Director % increase in Remuneration in 

the financial year 2023-24 

Mr. Rajan Handa, Managing Director - 

Mrs. Mamta Handa, Whole time Director - 
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Mr. Rajan Wadhera, Whole time Director - 

Mr. Rishab Handa, Whole Time Director & CFO - 

Mr. Raghav Handa, Whole Time Director - 

Mr. Shalabh Jasoria, Independent Director - 

Mr. Atul Nripraj Barar, Independent Director - 

Mr. Ajay Vohra, Independent Director - 

Mr. Dhiraj Arora, Independent Director - 

Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak, Independent Director - 

Mrs. Meenu Goswami, Company Secretary - 

 

(c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2023-

24 was around 15.83 %. 

(d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company: 114  

(e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 

are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration 

There is no increase in the Managerial Remuneration during the Financial Year 2023-24. 

(f) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: 

The company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company. 

(g) The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197(12) of the 

Act read with Rule 5(2) of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further 

the report and the accounts are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. 

In terms of section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the said annexure is open for inspection 

at the Registered Office of the company. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of 

the same may write to the Company Secretary. 
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ANNEXURE-III 

 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

17 ROZ KA MEO INDUSTRIAL  

ESTATE, SOHNA, HARYANA- 122103 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED (hereinafter called 

the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 

basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.  

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the 

provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder as 

amended by Finance Act 2017). 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.  

 

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings (ECB).   

    

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; as amended in year 2019     

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; as amended in year 2019   
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014/2021; (Not Applicable  to the Company during the Audit Period) 

e. SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Redeemable Preference shares) Regulations, 

2013; (Not Applicable  to the Company during the Audit Period) 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable  to the Company during the Audit Period) 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009/2020; (Not Applicable  to the Company during the Audit Period) 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998/2018; (Not Applicable  to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

(vi)       Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its circulars, master directions, notifications; 

     (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)        

 

(vii)   Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential   

            Norms (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2007; (Not Applicable to the Company during the   

Audit Period)   

 

(viii) Industrial and Labour Laws which inter-alia includes (based on the confirmation received 

from Management) 

  The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

  The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

  The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

  The Employee’s Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 

  Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948 

  The Factories Act, 1948 

  Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 

  The Punjab Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1965 

  The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

  The Employee`s Compensation Act, 1923 

  The Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959  

  The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 

The Child labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1970. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) 

and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs., 

 

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

amendments thereto; 

       

During the period under review the Company has duly complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above. 
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a)   Observations/ Non Compliances/ Adverse Remarks/qualifications in respect of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

 

- The company filed its related party transactions statements for the half year ended 31.03.2023 

on the next day of publication of financial statements. However, company has paid the prescribed 

fine for the late submission of the related party transactions statements for the half year ended 

31.03.2023. 

 

b)   Observations/ Non Compliances/ Adverse Remarks/qualifications in respect of 

Companies Act 2013 and relevant applicable rules: N.A 

 

We further report that: 

 

The Board of Director of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Director. The changes in 

the composition of the Board of Directors which took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed 

notes on Agenda were sent to the Directors at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as 

recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee(s) of the Board, 

as the case may be. 

 

We further report that based on the information received and records maintained by the 

Company, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

 

Place:  New Delhi          

Date:   17.08.2024        

 Name: Mr. Puneet Kumar Pandey 

 Membership No: A29848 

 CP No: 10913 

 UDIN:  A029848F000994790  

 P/R No.: 2477/2022 

  

       

       

   

 

 

 

 

 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-A” and forms 
an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure-A 
 

To, 

The Members, 

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

17 ROZ KA MEOINDUSTRIAL  

ESTATESOHNA, HARYANA- 122103 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 

of Accounts of the company. 

 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 

to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 17.08.2024                           

                                                                                                 Name: Mr. Puneet Kumar Pandey 

  Membership No: A29848 

  CP No: 10913 

  UDIN: A029848F000994790   

  P/R No.: 2477/2022 
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ANNEXURE - IV 

  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE 
 

 

To  

The Members  

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

17 ROZ KA MEOINDUSTRIAL ESTATE SOHNA HARYANA-122103 

 

I, Puneet Kumar Pandey, have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate 

Governance by M/s OK Play India Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 

2024, as stipulated under regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and 

para C,D, and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations). 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

management. Our examination was limited to procedure and implementation thereof, 

adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of above-referred conditions of 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance 

as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para 

C, D and E of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations. 

 

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

  

 

        

                                                                                                                     Puneet Kumar Pandey                                                                                                                                                  

Company Secretary 

                                                           M. No-A29848          

                                                                                                            C.P. No-10913  

Dated: 17.08.2024         P/R No. 2477/2022 

Place:   New Delhi                                                                       UDIN: A029848F001100841                                                                                                                                                                                                             
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

1.    COMPANY'S   PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

      The governance standards have witnessed significant transformation, driven by regulatory and 

legal reforms in conjunction with a heightened focus on ethical business practices. These robust 

governance practices not only ensure transparency and accountability but also cultivates trust 

among stakeholders. The Corporate Governance Code adopted by the Board acts as a 

comprehensive framework within which the Company, Board of Directors, Statutory Board 

Committees effectively operate for the benefit of its varied stakeholders. Governance is a 

reflection of the culture and values of a company’s board and management. The company has 

established systems, procedures and policies to ensure that its Board of Directors are well 

informed and well equipped to discharge its overall responsibilities and provide the management 

with the strategic direction catering to exigency of long-term shareholders value. 

2.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

(a) The Board of Directors of your company has a good mix of Executive and Non-Executive 

Directors. As on date of this report, the Board consists of Ten Directors comprising five 

Executive Directors and five Independent Directors. All the Directors on the Board are persons 

of eminence and bring a wide range of expertise, knowledge, and experience to the Board, 

thereby ensuring the best of interest of the stakeholders and the Company. 

 (b) Board Meetings 

During the year under review 28 meetings of the Board were held on 

06.04.2023,10.04.2023,11.04.2023,12.04.2023,13.04.2023,15.04.2023,22.04.2023,22.05.2023,3

0.06.2023,28.07.2023,02.08.2023,11.08.2023,06.09.2023,27.09.2023,29.09.2023,23.10.2023,09.

11.2023,21.11.2023,27.11.2023,06.12.2023,22.12.2023,26.12.2023,29.12.2023,03.01.2024,30.0

1.2024,14.02.2024,26.02.2024 and 12.03.2024. The Company had its last Annual General 

Meeting of shareholders on 30.09.2023. The particulars of composition of the Board of Directors 

and attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and also number of 

other directorships and committee membership/chairmanship are as follows: 

Name of 

Director 

Category of 

Directorship 

Attendance No. of 

other 

Director

ships 

No. of committee 

memberships in other 

companies 

Directors

hip in 

other 

Listed 

entities 
Board 

meeting 

Last 

AGM 

Chairman Member 

Mr. Rajan 

Handa 

Managing 

Director 
27 Yes - - - - 

Mrs. 

Mamta 

Handa 

Whole time 

Director 
27 No - - - - 

Dr. Rajan 

Wadhera 

Whole Time 

Director 
28 Yes - - -  

 

- 

Mr. 

Shalabh 

Jasoria 

Non- Executive 

Director 

(Independent) 

     28     Yes  

1 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 
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The other Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above do not include directorships of 

Private Limited Company, Directorship in the Company incorporated outside India and 

Companies as per Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.As required in the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015, the disclosure includes memberships/ chairpersonship of Audit Committee 

and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in Indian public companies (listed and unlisted) only. 

(c) No Director of the company is related to any other Director of the company excluding Mr. 

Rajan Handa, Mrs. Mamta Handa, Mr. Rishab Handa and Mr. Raghav Handa. 

(d) Number of Shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors: 

None of the Non-executive Directors hold any shares or convertible instruments in the 

Company. 

(e) Web link where details of familiarization programmes imparted to independent 

directors is disclosed; 

The Independent Directors have been familiarized with the Company, their roles and 

responsibilities in the Company, nature of the Industry in which the Company operates, business 

model of the Company etc. During FY 2023-24, Independent Directors were taken through 

various aspects of the Company’s business and operations. The details of familiarization 

programs imparted to the Independent Directors during FY 2023-24 are put up on the website of 

the Company i.e. https://okplay.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/Familiarisation-Programme-for-

Independent-Director.pdf.  

(f) The following is the list of core skills/expertise/ competencies identified by the Board of 

Directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function 

effectively and those actually available with the Board: 

 (i) Knowledge - understand the Company’s business, policies, and culture (including its 

mission, vision, values, goals, current strategic plan, governance structure, major risks and 

threats and potential opportunities) and knowledge of the industry in which the Company 

operates. 

(ii) Behavioral Skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to function 

well as team members and to interact with key stakeholders, 

Mr. Pankaj 

Kalra 

Non- Executive 

Director 

(Independent) 

5 No - - - - 

Mr. Atul 

Nripraj 

Brar 

Non- Executive 

Director 

(Independent) 

2 No - - - - 

Mr. Rishab 

Handa 

Whole-Time 

Director and 

CFO 

27 Yes - - - - 

Mr. 

Raghav 

Handa 

Whole-Time 

Director 
25 Yes - - - - 

Mr. Vikash 

Kumar 

Pathak 

Non- Executive 

Director 

(Independent) 

28 No - - - - 

Mr. Dhiraj 

Arora 

Non- Executive 

Director 

(Independent) 

25 No - - - - 

https://okplay.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/Familiarisation-Programme-for-Independent-Director.pdf
https://okplay.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/Familiarisation-Programme-for-Independent-Director.pdf
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(iii) Strategizing capability- The Board is endowed with the responsibility for setting the 

strategy, managing, handling, directing and enabling the long-term success of the entire 

business. 

 (iv)  Financial Skills, 

(v) Technical/Professional skills and specialized knowledge to assist the ongoing aspects of the 

business. 

(vi)  Encouraging diversity in methodologies of governing the Company, looking at operational 

and related constraints and suggesting ways forward. 

(vii) Capacity to identify risks and macro level concerns in the Company 

(viii) Aptitude in the arenas of finance, control, information technology and governance 

mechanisms so as to be able to examine and analyze these areas in the context of the Company’s 

requirements and be in a position to determine gaps in the Management thought process or the 

approach to it. 

(g) The Board confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in Section 

149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and are independent of the 

management.      

 (h) Resignation of Independent Directors 

During the Financial year 2023-24, Mr. Ajay Vohra ceased to be the Director of the company as 

his term expired and he was not eligible for re-appointment for another term as per the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

3.    AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee comprises of three members, out of which three members are non-

executive and independent Directors, including the Chairman. Eighteen meetings of Audit 

Committee were held during the year viz. on 

06.04.2023,22.04.2023,30.06.2023,28.07.2023,02.08.2023,11.08.2023,06.09.2023,27.09.2023,29

.09.2023,23.10.2023,09.11.2023,21.11.2023,27.11.2023,22.12.2023,26.12.2023,29.12.2023,03.0

1.2024 and 14.02.2024.  

The composition of the Committee and details of their attendance at the meetings is as follows: 

Name of the Director           Number of  Meetings  

 Held Attended 

Mr. Shalabh Jasoria (Chairman) 18 18 

Mr. Rajan Wadhera 18 18 

Mr. Ajay Vohra* 18 3 

Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak 18 18 

*Ceased to be Director w.e.f   01.10.2023 

Brief description of terms of reference: 

•   Review of the financial reporting process and the Company’s financial statements. 

•  Review of the adequacy of accounting records as maintained in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

•   Review of the adequacy of internal control system. 
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•  The detailed terms of reference of Audit Committee cover the areas mentioned under Part C of 

Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

as well as Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the terms of 

reference of the Committee are as per guidelines set out in the Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.  

The said Committee is entrusted to formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive 

attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to 

remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, formulation of 

criteria of evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of three Directors, all 

Independent Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman. During the year under review 

only one meeting of Nomination and remuneration Committee was held on 01.09.2023. The 

composition, names of the members, chairperson and attendance of the members at its meetings 

are as follows: 

S. No 

 

 

Name of the Director 

 

Chairman/ 

Member 

 

No. of meetings  

Held Attended 

1. Mr. Shalabh Jasoria Chairman 1 1 

2. Mr. Atul Nripraj Barar Member 1 1 

3. Mr. Ajay Vohra* Member 1 1 

4. Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak Member 1 1 

                *Ceased to be Director w.e.f   01.10.202 

Performance Evaluation 

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013, and the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Annual Evaluation 

was conducted by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committee and Individual 

Directors. A Separate Meeting of Independent Directors was held on 14.02.2024 to assess the 

performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Chairperson of the Company and the Board 

as a whole. The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors was conducted by the 

entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. The overall consensus was the performance 

of Directors, which was significant and it clearly met the guidelines issued by SEBI. Performance 

Evaluation is based on their contribution to Company’s objectives and plans, efficient discharge 

of their responsibilities, participation in Board / Committee meetings and other relevant 

parameters. 

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

The terms of reference of this Committee are wide enough covering the matters specified under 

the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee is headed by Mr. Shalabh 

Jasoria (Non- Executive and Independent Director). 
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Particulars As on 31.03.2024 

No. of shareholders’ complaints received Nil 

No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of 

Shareholders 

Nil 

No. of pending complaints Nil 
 

The Company has designated an e-mail ID of the Compliance Officer, specifically, to look after 

investor grievances and to resolve them in a speedy manner, in compliance with the Listing 

Regulations. 

Compliance Officer 

Name: Ms. Meenu Goswami 

Designation: Company Secretary 

E-mail id: meenu.goswami@okplay.in 

 

6. RISK  MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE : Not Applicable 

 

7. REMUNERATION   

 

(a) There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Non-Executive Directors 

and the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24. 
 

(b) The company did not make any payment to Non-Executive Directors.  

 

        (c)  The Details of Remuneration paid to Managing Director and Whole Time Directors 

during the financial year ended 31.03.2024 is as follows:        

     

                       

Name of the Director(s)  Basic Salary (in 

Rs.) 

Perquisites & Other 

Benefits (in Rs.) 

Total (in Rs.) 

Mr. Rajan Handa   8,400,000 7,800,000 16,200,000 

Mrs. Mamta Handa 3,600,000 3,000,000 6,600,000 

Mr. Rajan Wadhera 1,200,000 1,199,400 2,399,400 

Mr. Shalabh Jasoria - - - 

Mr. Ajay Vohra*  

ceased w.e.f 30th September, 

2023 

- - - 

Mr. Atul Nripraj Barar - - - 

Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak - - - 

Mr. Dhiraj Arora - - - 

Mr. Pankaj Kalra** 

Appointed w.e.f 1st October, 

2023 

- -               - 

Mr. Rishab Handa 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 

Mr. Raghav Handa 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 

                    

mailto:meenu.goswami@okplay.in
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL  

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the company defines Senior Management of the 

company. Below is the list of Senior Management Personnel of the company as on 31.03.2024 : 
 

Sr.No. Name of Senior Management Personnel Designation 

1. Sanjay Kumar Sharma AGM- IT & EDP 

2. Priyanka Manocha General Manager 

3. Rakesh Bhat Quality- Vice President 

4. Davis AV Electrical Manager 

5.  Pramod Kumar Bansal Purchase Head 

6. Mohammad Aslam HR Manager 

7. Hari Prasad Sharma Operations-Senior Manager 

 

During the year ended 31.03.2024, Mr. Sanjay Wali, Sales- General Manager   and Mr. Amit 

Midha , Plant Head resigned with effect from 08.08.2023 and  30.12.2023 respectively. 

 

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:  

 

(a) Details of the Annual General Meetings and Extra Ordinary General Meetings held 

during the last three years are as follows: 
 

FY AGM/ 

EGM 

Location  Date  Time Details of Special 

resolutions passed 

2020-21 AGM Video-

conferencing 

29th September, 

2021 

12:30 

P.M 

1. Re-appointment & 

payment of remuneration 
to Mrs. Mamta Handa 

(DIN 00238019) as Whole 

Time Director 

2021-22 EGM Video-
conferencing 

24th March, 
2022 

11:00 
A.M 

1. Approval for transfer of 
the Electric Vehicle 

Business of the Company 

to RIRA E-Vehicles Private 
Limited under Section 

180(1)(a) of the Companies 

Act,2013 

2.Approval for divestment 
of interest in RMRS 

Electric Vehicles Private 

Limited(“RMRS’),subsidia
ry of the Company  

2021-22 AGM Video-

conferencing 

29th September, 

2022 

12:30 

P.M. 

1.Re-appointment & 

Payment of remuneration 

to Mr. Rajan Handa  (DIN 
00194590) as  Managing  

Director   

2.Re-Appointment and 
Payment of Remuneration 

to Mr. Raghav Handa 

(DIN: 08174904) as Whole 
Time Director of the 

company 

3.Re-Appointment and 

Payment of Remuneration 
to Mr. Rishab Handa (DIN: 

08174892) as Whole Time 

Director of the company 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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4.Re-appointment of Mr. 
Atul Nripraj Barar (DIN: 

00805515) as an 

Independent Director 

2022-23 EGM Video- 
conferencing 

25th March, 
2023 

12:30 
p.m. 

1. Issuance of 1,35,30,000 
fully convertible equity 

warrants on preferential 

basis to the persons 

belonging to promoter, 
promoter group and non- 

promoter category 

2. Sale and transfer of toy 
segment business 

3. Sale and transfer of 

automotive component 
business 

2022-23 AGM Video 

Conferencing 

30th September, 

2023 

1:30 

p.m. 

1. Re-appointment & 

payment of remuneration 

to Dr. Rajan  Wadhera  
(DIN 01412577) as  

Whole-Time  Director   

2. Appointment of Mr. 
Pankaj Kalra (DIN: 

07219227) as an 

Independent Director 

2023-24 EGM Video 
Conferencing 

20th December, 
2023 

10:30 
a.m. 

1.To approve issuance of 
Equity Shares on a 

Preferential Basis to 

Specified Investors 
2. To approve issuance of 

Equity Shares Warrants on 

a Preferential Basis to 

Specified Investors 

2023-24 EGM Video 

Conferencing 

23rd February, 

2024 

10:30 

a.m. 

1.Sub-division of equity 

shares from the face value 

of Rs. 10/- per share to Rs. 
1/- per share 

2.Alteration of the capital 

clause in the memorandum 

of association consequent 
upon sub-division 

 

(b) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot – details of voting 

pattern - No Special Resolutions were passed during FY 2023-24 through Postal Ballot.  

(c) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: NA 

(d) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: At 

present there is no proposal to pass any special resolution through Postal ballot.  

(e) Procedure for postal ballot - Does not arise 
 

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 

a) Quarterly Results Published in the newspapers 

every quarter 

b) Newspapers wherein results 

normally published  

Financial Express (English) & Jansatta 

(Hindi) 

c) Any website, where results are 
Published 

www.okplay.in 

http://www.okplay.in/
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d) Whether it also displays official 
news releases 

Yes 

e) Presentations made to institutional 

investors or to the analysts 

Yes 

 

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 
 

(a) Annual General Meeting     
 

Date 30.09. 2024 

Time 12:30 P.M. 

Venue Through Video conferencing or other audio 

visual means 

Financial  Year 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024 

 

(b)  (Tentative Schedule for declaration of financial results during the F.Y 2024-25) 

 

  Quarter ending 30.06.2024 By or Before 14.08.2024 

  Quarter ending  30.09.2024 By or Before 14.11.2024 

  Quarter ending   31.12.2024 By or Before 14.02.2024 

  Quarter ending     31.03.2025 By or Before 30.05.2024 
 

(c)  Dividend: No Dividend has been recommended for the financial year 2023-24. 

  

(d) Listing of Equity Shares on Exchange: Shares of the company are listed on BSE 

Limited. 

 

(e) Stock Code: BSE-  526415, ISIN : INE870B01024 

There was delay in payment of Listing Fees for the financial year 2023-24 to BSE.  

(f) Market Price Data: High / Low during each month in last financial year:   
  

    Month 
                  BSE            SENSEX 

High(Rs.) Low(Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) 

April,2023 104.75 78.40 61209.46 58793.08 

May,2023 124.75 93.50 63036.12 61002.17 

June,2023 136.40 108.00 64768.58 62359.14 

July,2023 128.45 111.40 67619.17 64836.16 

Aug,2023 122.90 97.00 66658.12 64723.63 

Sep,2023 128.50 107.20 67927.23 64818.37 

Oct,2023 118.45 100.00 66592.16 63092.98 

Nov,2023 172.50 103.35 67069.89 63550.46 

Dec,2023 184.80 154.40 72484.34 67149.07 

Jan,2024 174.60 140.00 73427.59 70001.60 

Feb,2024 215.00 157.10 73413.93 70809.84 

Mar,2024 199.75 13.25 74245.17 71674.42 
The Equity Shares of the Company are sub-divided/split with effect from 11th March,2024 i.e. Record Date 
such that each equity share of face value of Rs.10/-each are sub-divided into Ten equity shares of the face 
value of Rs.1/- each ranking pari- passu in all respects. This was approved by the Equity Shareholders 
through Extra Ordinary General Meeting on 23rd February 2024. 
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(g) Performance in comparison to broad based Indices 

 

During the period i.e. 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024, Company`s stock price on BSE 

rose by 72.83%, whereas BSE (Sensex) rose by 24.55%. 

 

(h) Registrar to an Issue and share transfer agents 

 

MAS Services Limited, 

T – 34, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi – 110 020 

Phone No.: 011-26387281/82/83 Fax No. – 011-26387384 

E-Mail: investor@masserv.com 

 

(i) Share Transfer System 

 

In terms of the Listing Regulations, Equity Shares of the company can only be 

transferred in dematerialized form. Requests for dematerialization of shares are 

processed and confirmation thereof is given to the respective depositories i.e. 

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 

India Limited (CDSL), within the statutory time limit from the date of receipt of 

share certificates/ letter of confirmation after due verification. 

 

Further, SEBI vide its circular dated January 25,2022, mandated that all service 

requests for issue of duplicate certificate, claim from unclaimed suspense account, 

renewal/ exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-

division/splitting/consolidation of certificate, transmission and transposition which 

were allowed in physical form should be processed in dematerialized form only. 

The necessary forms for the above request are available on the website of the 

company i.e. https://okplay.in/. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are 

advised to avail the facility of dematerialization. Shareholders should communicate 

with MAS Services Limited, the company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at 

investor@masserv.com quoting their folio number or Depository Participant IP and 

Client ID number, for any queries relating to their securities. 

 

(j) Distribution of  Shareholding as on 31st March,2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Shareholding of  

Nominal value  

  

Shareholders  Shareholding  

Number  % to Total  No.  
% of 

Total  

0-5000 10885 53.34 1279356 0.44 

5001-10000  4583 22.46 4366687 1.50 

10001-20000  2064 10.11 3714680 1.28 

20001-30000  798 3.91 2214438 0.76 

30,001-40000  294 1.44 1114073 0.38 

40001-50000  519 2.54 2543859 0.88 

50001-100000 561 2.75 4537711 1.56 

100001- to above  703 3.45 270510346 93.19 

TOTAL  20407 100 290281150 100 

mailto:investor@masserv.com
https://okplay.in/
mailto:investor@masserv.com
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(k) Dematerialization of shares 

 

As on March 31, 2024, 97.63% shares of the Company were held in dematerialized 

form.  

 

(l) Liquidity: The shares of the Company are listed on BSE Ltd. The shares of the 

Company are adequately liquid. 

 

(m) Outstanding Instruments and their Impact on Equity 

 

The Company has raised money through Preferential allotment-I of 1,35,30,000 fully 

convertible warrants at a price of Rs. 60.21/- aggregating to Rs. 8146.41 lacs during the 

year ended 31st March, 2024.The company has already received an amount of Rs. 

5317.29 lacs and the balance of Rs. 2829.12 lacs will be received within a maximum 

period of 18 months from the respective date of allotment. The Preferential Issue-I was 

approved by Shareholders through Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 25th  

March, 2023. In Preferential Issue-I, the Company has made allotment of 72,65,000 

equity shares pursuant to exercise of option by the warrant holder. 

The Company has raised Rs.3193.75 lacs through Preferential allotment-II of 

25,55,000 Equity Shares at the issue price of Rs.125/- and has raised Rs. 337.50 lacs 

through Preferential allotment of 10,00,000 Fully Convertible Equity warrants at the 

issue price of Rs.135/- (which are exercisable at the option of warrant holder within a 

period of 18 months from the date of allotment) during the year ended 31st  March, 

2024. The Preferential Issue-II was approved by Shareholders through Extra-ordinary 

General Meeting held on 20th December, 2023. 

The Board of Directors of the company at its meeting held on 23rd July 2007 issued 

Zero coupon unsecured Foreign currency convertible Bonds (“FCCB”) aggregating to 

USD 10 Million at par. During the financial year 2010-11 the “FCCB” of the face 

value of USD 97,60,000 has been bought back by the Company at a discount of 24% to 

the face value of the FCCBs and subsequently a notice was given to the clearing 

houses, through the trustees, requesting communication with the bondholders of the 

balance 24 bonds of the face value of USD 2,40,000 However, no response has been 

received and no claimant has come forth on the redemption date 24th July 2012 and till 

date.  

(n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities;  

Presently Company has not adapted policy regarding hedging of foreign exchange risk. 

(o) Plant Location: 

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

17-18 Roz-Ka-Meo Industrial Estate 

Tehsil Nuh, Distt. Mewat 

Haryana – 122103 

(p) Address  for  Correspondence 

 

MAS Services Limited, 

T – 34, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi – 110 020 

Phone No. – 011-26387281/82/83 Fax No. – 011-26387384 

E-Mail: investor@masserv.com 

 

 

mailto:investor@masserv.com
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Or 

The Company Secretary 

OK Play India Limited 

17-18 Roz-Ka-Meo Industrial Estate 

Tehsil Nuh, Distt. Mewat 

Haryana – 122103 

Email: meenu.goswami@okplay.in 

Website: www.okplay.in 

 

11.  OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

 

(a)  The particulars of transactions between the Company and its related parties as per the 

terms of Ind AS-24, “Related Party Disclosures”, specified under section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 and 

Regulation 23 of the LODR Regulations, are disclosed in Notes to Financial Statements. 

However, these transactions are not likely to have any conflict with the Company’s 

interest. All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business and are 

negotiated on arm’s length basis and are intended to further the Company’s interests. 

Further, there were no materially significant related party transactions that were entered 

during the year that have a potential conflict with the interests of your Company at large. 

A confirmation as to the compliance of Related party transactions as per LODR 

Regulations is sent to Stock exchange along with quarterly compliance report of 

Corporate Governance. 

 

(b) Disclosure of Non Compliance by Company:  
 

BSE has levied penal charges of Rs. 20,000/- plus GST for late submission of the 

financial results under  Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for quarter/year ended on 31 March, 2022. 

 

BSE has levied penal charges of Rs.5000/- plus GST for late submission of Report of 

Related Party Transactions under Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI( Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 for the half year ended 31 March,2023. 

  

Except as stated above, there were no penalties or stricture imposed on the Company by 

the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matters related to 

capital market during the last three years. 

(c) Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy: The details of establishment of the 

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil mechanism has been disclosed on the website of the 

Company at the link: https://okplay.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Whistle-Blower-

Policy.pdf. Any employee can access and use the recourse available in the policy. 

 

(d) Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory 

requirements: The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.  

 

(e) Policy on Material Subsidiary and dealing with related party transactions: Policy on 

Material Subsidiary and dealing with related party transactions is hosted on the website 

of the company.i.e.https://okplay.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Policy-for-

Determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf. 

 

http://www.okplay.in/
https://okplay.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Policy-for-Determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
https://okplay.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Policy-for-Determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
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(f) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): The details of funds 

utilized during the Financial Year 2023-24 is as under : 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(g) Certificate from Mr. Puneet Kumar Pandey, Practicing Company Secretary is attached 

(which forms integral part of this report) confirming that none of the directors on the 

board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 

such statutory authority. 

 

(h) Recommendations of Committees of the Board: There were no instances during the 

financial year 2023-24, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made by 

any committee of the Board. 

 

(i) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated 

basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which 

the statutory auditor is a part, given below: 
  

    Payment to Statutory Auditors FY   2023-24  

(Rs.in lacs) 

 

   Statutory Audit 4.15 

   Tax Audit Fees 1.60 

  Other Services including 
 reimbursement of expenses 

0.54 

   Total 6.29 

               

(j)  The Company is committed to provide a protective environment at workplace for all its 

women employees. To ensure that every woman employee is treated with dignity and 

respect as mandated under “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” the Company has a policy for 

prevention of sexual harassment of its women employees. During the year, no complaints 

were reported. 

 

 

 

 

Sources of Funds 

Amount (Rs.in 

lacs) 

Share Application Money 8848.55 

Total 8848.55 

Payment   

Interest & Loan Repayment 4138.81 

GST/Tax 341.65 

Reduction in Old Creditors 1904.47 

Advance for Capital Assets 1338.95 

New Plant & Machinery 364.43 

Technical Know How- Advisory 338.04 

Augmentation of Working Capital 422.20 

Total 8848.55 
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(k) CEO/CFO Certification: In terms of requirements of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director & CFO have submitted necessary 

certificate to the Board stating the particulars specified under the said Regulation. This 

certificate has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board 

of Directors. 

 

(l) Code of Conduct: The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct (the 

Code) applicable to all the directors and senior management. The Code gives guidance 

and support needed for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. A copy of the 

Code has been put on the Company's website. The Code has been circulated to all the 

members of the Board and Senior Management and compliance is affirmed by them. A 

declaration signed by the Managing Director is published in this Report. 

 

(m)Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘ Loans and Advances in the 

nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and 

amount’ : 
Name of 

Director/ 

KMP 

Name of Entity in 

which Interested (by 

virtue of Directorship 

therein) 

Details of Loan and Advances Amount  

(Rs.in lacs) 

[outstanding] 

Rajan Handa 

Raghav Handa 

Rishab Handa 

RIRA E- Vehicles Pvt. 

Ltd. 

 Outstanding balance against 

sale 

1874.81 

Rajan Handa 

Mamta Handa 

Raghav Handa 

MRH  Technologies 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Receivable    3.11 

 

Mamta Handa 

Raghav Handa 
Rishab Handa 

RMRS Electric 

Vehicles Pvt. Ltd  

Outstanding balance against 

Sale  

6.08 

 

Rajan Handa 

Raghav Handa 

Rishab Handa 

OK Play Healthcare  

Pvt. Ltd. 

Receivable   

 

20.80 

 

 

Rajan Handa 

Mamta Handa 

Raghav Handa 

Rishab Handa 

Isht Technologies Pvt. 

Ltd. 

Rent Outstanding 0.81 

 

 

 

Raghav Handa 

Rishab Handa 

Briskit Technology Pvt. 

Ltd 

Rent Outstanding 0.25 

 

 

(n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the  date and place of 

incorporation and name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such 

companies : 
 

Material Subsidiary Date and Place of 

Incorporation 

Name and Date of 

appointment of Statutory 

Auditors 

OK Play Auto Private Limited 09 October 2009 

New Delhi 

28 September 2022 

J Madan & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, 

New Delhi 
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(o) Disclosure pursuant to Clause 2(a) of Schedule V (Annual Report) of SEBI 

(LODR)(Amendment)Regulations,2018 of transactions of the company with any 

person or entity belonging to the Promoter/ Promoter group which hold(s)10% or 

more shareholding in the listed entity : 
 

Sr. Name of promoter/ 

promoter group, with 

10% or more 

shareholding 

Nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

Transaction 

2023-24 

(Rs.  

in Lacs) 

2022-23 

(Rs. 

 in Lacs) 

1. Mr. Rajan Handa Managing Director Remuneration 162.00 162.42 

 

12. Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account:  

OK Play India Limited-Unclaimed Suspense Account 

Type of 

Securities 

Balance as on 

 1
st
 April,2023 

No. of 

shareholders 

who approached 

for transfer 

from Suspense 

Account 

No. of 

shareholders to 

whom shares 

were transferred 

from Suspense 

Account 

Balance as on 

 31
st
 March,2024 

No. of 

records 

No. of 

shares 

No. of 

records 

No. of 

shares 

No. of 

records 

No. of 

shares 

No. of 

records 

No. of 

shares 

Equity 

Shares 

1 100 - - - - 1 1000* 

*The Equity Shares of the Company are sub-divided/split with effect from 11th March,2024 i.e. Record Date such that each 

equity  share of face value of Rs.10/-each are sub-divided into Ten equity shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each ranking pari- 

passu in all respects. This was approved by the Equity Shareholders through Extra Ordinary General Meeting on 23rd February 

2024. 

 

 

13. Extent to which the discretionary requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of 

the Listing Regulations have been adopted: 

 

a. Chairman`s Office: The Company does not have a full time Chairman. All the 

Directors including Independent Directors are appointed/ re-appointed by the 

Shareholders from time to time. 

b. Shareholders’ Rights: The Company does not send Half-yearly declaration of 

financial performance to each household of shareholders. Quarterly financial 

results are displayed on the Company’s website and therefore Half-yearly 

declaration is not sent. 

c. Modified Opinion in Auditors Report: The Company’s financial statements for 

the year ended March 31, 2024 do not contain any modified audit opinion. 

d. Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports directly to the 

Audit Committee. 

 

14. Compliance with corporate governance requirement 

Company has duly complied with the requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and 

clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 

1.  INDUSTRY STRUCTURE, DEVELOPMENTS AND OUTLOOK 

 

The Indian Toy sector is expanding on the shoulder of growing young population, rising 

disposable incomes and a slew of innovations for the junior population base. The Indian toy 

industry is projected to reach $3 billion by 2028, growing at a CAGR of 12 percent between 

2022-28. India is emerging as a top exporting nation of toys due to the country’s integration into 

the global toy value chain, along with zero-duty market access for domestically manufactured 

toys in countries, including UAE and Australia. Toys have been recognized as one of the 

champion sectors with significant export potential. Soon, owing to the new revolution of ‘Local 

se Vocal’, India is anticipated to become the global hub by 2025-2030. As a global toy 

manufacturing hub, the government has undertaken a series of initiatives including formulation of 

a comprehensive National Action Plan for Toys to promote designing of toys, using toys as a 

learning resource and monitoring quality of toys. The Toys Quality Control Order (QCO) was 

implemented in 2021 to enhance standardization in toy production and import, ensuring product 

safety. We have a large consumer base as India has a large population of children aged 0-14, 

which accounts for about 26.22% of the total population. This creates a high demand for toys in 

the country. India’s GDP growth and rising middle-class population have increased the 

purchasing power of consumer, who can now afford to buy more toys for their children. The 

proliferation of online platforms and digital payments has made it easier for consumers to access 

a wide variety of toys and   games from different brands and regions. The government of India 

has launched various initiatives to promote the domestic toy industry, such as vocal for local toys 

campaign, Toycathon, Aatmanirbhar Toys Innovation Challenge, etc. These initiatives aim to 

boost innovation, quality, safety, and competitiveness of Indian toys and reduce dependence on 

imports. Companies are focusing on establishing partnerships with different marketing agencies 

and popular social media influencers for developing kids-related content to build a strong brand 

image. Additionally, the growing popularity of multi-colored toy items among pre-school 

children is likely to fuel market growth.  

 

2. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

India’s toy market has the potential to grow to $2-3 billion by 2024 (from $1.7 billion in 2017), 

and for every $100 million investment in the sector, 20,000 direct jobs, and 8,000 indirect jobs 

can be created. It will aid in Make in India’s effort by encouraging and promoting domestic 

manufacturing which will help create jobs and lessen reliance on toy imports. With consumers 

becoming increasingly well-informed, there is a rise in the demand for diverse, educational, and 

high-quality toys. About 25 percent of the Indian population falls into the 0-14-year category 

which is a huge customer segment. The increasing population of India represents one of the key 

factors catalysing the demand for toys. In addition, inflating income levels and the rising 

awareness among individuals about the benefits of toys in improving the cognitive capabilities of 

children are positively influencing the market in the country. Furthermore, the advent of 

advanced technology and machinery is encouraging manufacturers to produce innovative toys, 

which in turn is creating a positive market outlook. Moreover, the expansion of organized 

distribution channels, along with proliferation of the e-commerce industry that provides door step 

delivery, exciting offers and secured payment methods is offering a favourable market outlook in 

the country. 

 

 

https://www.drishtiias.com/daily-news-analysis/toycathon-2021-1#:~:text=Toycathon%20can%20prove%20to%20be,It%20will%20help%20reduce%20imports.
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Toy demand is increasing globally; Strong opportunities which exist in the fast developing 

economics are now offering major growth opportunities for the toy industry. We see an ongoing 

opportunity in terms of increasing need and demand for toys. Parents look for creative toys which 

can be a driving force to reduce the usage on number of hours on tablets and mobile phones than 

on the toys, from the hand gripping hands of children. The rise of e-commerce has significantly 

impacted the toy industry, offering consumers a convenient way to shop for toys from the 

comfort of their homes.   

The toy industry experiences a significant portion of its sales during the holiday season, which 

limits the selling window and increases competition. Toys are designed for specific age groups, 

limiting their potential market and requiring toy manufacturers to continually innovate and adapt 

to changing consumer preferences as children grow older.  Consumer preferences are constantly 

evolving and toy manufacturers must stay attuned to changing trends and adapt their product 

offerings to meet shifting demands. Staying up-to-date with toy industry trends and 

understanding consumer preferences is essential to gain a competitive edge. Successfully 

addressing the challenges requires a combination of creativity, responsiveness and strategic 

planning. By embracing innovation, investing in research & development and fostering strong 

relationships with customers, toy companies can navigate the challenges and seize opportunities 

within the dynamic toy industry. The interim Budget announced in February 2024 before the 

General Elections proposed extension of the PLI scheme for the toys sector, the token outlay was 

fixed at ₹3,489 crore. The company most recently participated in Toy Biz B2B International 

Expo at Pragati Maidan, New Delhi which brought together manufacturers, traders and end 

users of toy products to foster good business relations through B2B and delegations from several 

countries visited the fair for trade promotion.  

 

3.  SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 

Company manufactures plastic molded products ranging from automotive components to children 

playground equipment’s and all the operations of the Company are considered as a single 

business segment due to homogeneity of plastic products. 

 

4.  RISKS AND CONCERNS 

 

Risk management is embedded in the company’s operating framework. The Company believes 

that risk resilience is a key to achieving higher growth. To this effect, there is a robust process in 

place to identify key risks across the Company and prioritize relevant action plans to mitigate 

these risks. The Company has duly approved a Risk Management Policy. The objective of this 

Policy is to have a well-defined approach to risk. The Policy lays down broad guidelines for 

timely identification, assessment and prioritization of risks affecting the Company in the short 

and foreseeable future. The Policy suggests framing an appropriate response for the key risks 

identified, so as to make sure that risks are adequately addressed or mitigated. The Company has 

laid down procedures to inform the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors about risk 

assessment and management procedures and status. The Audit Committee of the Company has 

been entrusted with the task to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan for the 

Company and it is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its 

effectiveness with an additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks 

identified by the business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions 

on a continuing basis.  
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5.  INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY  

 

The Company has adequate internal financial control in place with regard to financial statements. 

Such controls were evaluated throughout the year, while no reportable material weaknesses, in 

the design or operations, were observed. Internal Control is an integral component of an 

organization’s management that provides reasonable assurance of the effectiveness and efficiency 

of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations. The Board has ultimate responsibility for management of risks and ensuring the 

effectiveness of internal control systems. The Company carefully considers the appropriate 

balance between controls and risk in their programs and operations.  

 

6.  OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 

 

The operations and financial review is covered in the Directors’ Report and is to be read as a part 

of this report itself. 

 

7.  HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

      

OK PLAY encourages a harmonious work culture and provides conducive environment that 

enables a fulfilling workplace. People are a key resource at OK PLAY and are the major driving 

force behind the performance and success of the Company We are committed to developing and 

deploying people with the skills, capability and determination required to meet our business 

objectives. The Company is fundamentally committed to protecting the environment while 

ensuring healthcare, safety and welfare for all its employees, contractors and communities. The 

Company is dedicated to performing its duties in a safe, environmentally responsible and 

effective manner. Company believes that employees are key for our success, have immense 

knowledge and power of innovation. Your Company aims to create an environment where every 

employee can contribute to the company’s performance, excel and grow in their respective jobs. 

The Company has a total strength of 114 employees as on 31st March 2024. We constantly strive 

to improve our operations, integrate our business through the value chain and optimize our 

performance through operational efficiencies and innovative technological solutions. The 

Company continues to set a fine record of industrial harmony with positive outcomes of effective 

performance. 

 

8.  DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 

2013 and other recognized accounting practices and policies, to the extent applicable.  

 

9.  KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 
  

STANDALONE 2023-24 2022-23 Change (%) 

Debtors Turnover Ratio 6.10 4.54 156.30% 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 178.10% 152.60% 25.50% 

Interest Coverage Ratio 
1.54 1.00 53.50% 

Current Ratio 1.56 0.92 63.79% 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.73 3.28 -255.80% 

Operating Profit Margin 20.38% 17.34% 3.04% 

Net Profit Margin 3.96% -2.94% 6.90% 

Return on Net Worth 4.58% -11.29% 15.87% 
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CONSOLIDATED 2023-24 2022-23 Change (%) 

Debtors Turnover Ratio 8.86 12.59 -372.85% 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 133.49% 147.27% -13.79% 

Interest Coverage Ratio 1.33 1.17 15.87% 

Current Ratio 1.33 0.89 43.79% 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.83 3.86 -303.57% 

Operating Profit Margin 17.91% 17.76% 0.15% 

Net Profit Margin 0.61% -1.08% 1.69% 

Return on Net Worth 1.21% -6.95% 8.17% 

 

 

10. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statements in this Integrated Annual Report, particularly those that relate to Management 

Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and 

expectations, may constitute ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws 

and regulations. Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual 

results might differ. 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 05th September 2024  

 

Rajan Handa 

Managing Director 

                  DIN: 00194590    
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATE 

 

To,  

The Board of Directors  

OK Play India Limited  

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the 

best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading;  

 

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 

2. There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year ended 31st March, 2024 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 

Company’s code of conduct. 

 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems 

pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the 

design or operation of such internal controls.  

 

4. We have indicated to Auditors and the Audit Committee; 

 

i) That there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

ii) That there are no changes in accounting policies during the year; and 

iii) That there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

 

 

                            By order of the Board of Directors  

Date: 09th April 2024     for OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

Place: New Delhi 

               

Rajan Handa          Rishab Handa 

Managing Director      Chief Financial Officer 

DIN: 00194590             DIN: 08174892 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To,  

The Members of  

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

17, Roz Ka Meo Industrial Estate, 

Sohna, Haryana-122103 
 

I, PUNEET KUMAR PANDEY., Practicing Company Secretary, have examined the relevant 

registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of OK Play India 

Limited having CIN L28219HR1988PLC030347 and having its registered office at 17, Roz Ka-

Meo-Industrial Estate, Sohna, Haryana-122103 (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”),  

produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 

with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that 

none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 

on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr. No Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company 

1. Mr. Rajan Handa 00194590 19/08/1988 

2. Mr. Shalabh Jasoria 00194871 26/07/2005 

3. Mrs. Mamta Handa 00238019 20/06/2010 

4. Mr. Atul NriprajBarar 00805515 04/09/2017 

5. Mr. Rajan Wadhera 01412577 21/04/2007 

6. Mr. Dhiraj Arora 00233700 20/03/2020 

7. Mr.  Rishab Handa 08174892 20/03/2020 

8. Mr. Raghav Handa 08174904 20/03/2020 

9. Mr. Vikash Kumar Pathak 08707272 20/03/2020 

10. Mr. Pankaj Kalra 07219227 01/10/2023 
 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to porvided an opinion 

based on my thorough verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: New Delhi 

Date:   29.07.2024         

 Mr.Puneet Kumar Pandey 

     Membership No: A29848 

CP No: 10913 

     UDIN:  A029848F000848446   

     P/R No.: 2477/2022 
   

 



 
 

          54 
 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies  

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

1.Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 
 

S. No. Particulars Details 

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Not Applicable 

2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Not Applicable 

3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Not Applicable 

4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 

Not Applicable 

5 Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions’ 

Not Applicable 

6 Date of approval by the Board Not Applicable 

7 Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable 

8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

General meeting as required under first proviso to section 

188 

Not Applicable 
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2. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARMS LENGTH 

BASIS 
 

Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship  

Nature of the contracts/ 

arrangements/transacti

ons 

Duration of 

the contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the 

value, if any 

Date(s) of 

approval 

by the 

Board, if 

any 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

Mr. Rajan Handa 

(Managing 
Director) 

Payment of remuneration 

as per approval of 
Shareholders under 
Section 197 

1st  March, 

2023  to 28th  
February, 2026 

As per resolution 

passed by 
shareholders in 33rd 

Annual General 
Meeting. 

05-09-2022 Nil 

Mrs. Mamta Handa.   

(Whole time 
Director) 

Payment of remuneration 

as per approval of 

Shareholders under 
Section 197 

20th June, 2022  

to 19th June, 
2025 

As per resolution 

passed by 

shareholders in 32nd  
Annual General 
Meeting 

01-09-2021 Nil 

Mr. Rajan Wadhera  

(Whole time 
Director) 

Payment of remuneration 

as per approval of 

Shareholders under 
section 197 

1st October, 

2023 to 30th 

September, 
2026 

As per resolution 

passed by 

shareholders in 34th 

Annual General 
Meeting 

06-09-2023 Nil 

Mr. Rishab Handa.          

(Whole Time 
Director) 

Payment of remuneration 
as per approval of 

Shareholders under 
section 197 

20th 
March,2023 to 

19th 
March,2026 

As per resolution 
passed by 

shareholders in 33rd 

Annual General 
Meeting. 

05-09-2022 Nil 

Mr. Raghav Handa  

(Whole Time 
Director) 

Payment of remuneration 

as per approval of 
Shareholders under 
section 197 

20th 

March,2023 to 
19th 
March,2026 

As per resolution 

passed by 
shareholders in 33rd 

Annual General 
Meeting. 

05-09-2022 Nil 

OK Play Auto 
Private Limited 

(Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary 
Company) 

Sale / purchase of Goods 1st April, 2023 

to 31st March, 
2024 

As per resolution 

passed by 

shareholders in 25th 
Annual General 
Meeting 

27-05-2016 Nil 

RMRS Electric 

Vehicles Private 
Limited 

Rent Agreement 14th 

February,2024 

to 13th 
January,2025 

As per Rent 

Agreement dated 
14th  February,2024 

14th 
February, 

2024 

Nil 

OK Play Healthcare 
Private Limited 

Rent Agreement 8th January, 
2024 to 7th 

December, 
2024 

As per Rent 
Agreement dated 
3rd January,2024 

3rd  
January, 
2024 

Nil 
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RIRA E-Vehicles 

Private Limited 

(Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary) 

 

Rent Agreement 

( Head Office) 

 

19th November, 

2023 to 18th 
October,2024 

 

As per Rent 

Agreement dated 

19th 
November,2023 

 

9th 

November, 
2023 

Nil 

RIRA E-Vehicles 
Private Limited 

(Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary) 

Rent Agreement 
(Factory) 

1st 
February,2024 

to 31st 

December, 
2024 

As per Rent 
Agreement dated 
30th  January,2024 

30th 
January, 

2024 

Nil 

Isht Technologies 
Private Limited 

Rent Agreement 1st April 2023 

to 29th 
February,2024 

As per Rent 

Agreement dated 
6th April,2023 

6th April, 
2023 

Nil 

Brisket Technology 
Private Limited 

Rent Agreement 15th December 

2023 to 14th 
November, 

2024 

As per Rent 

Agreement dated 
15th 
December,2023 

6th 

December, 
2023 

Nil 

OK Play Auto 
Private Limited 

Rent Agreement 1st January 

2024 to 30th 
November, 

2024 

As per Rent 

Agreement dated 

30th 
December,2023 

29th 

December, 
2023 

Nil 

MRH Technologies 
Private Limited 

Rent Agreement 1st March 2024 
to 31st 
January,2025 

As per Rent 
Agreement dated 
1st March,2024 

26th 
February, 

2024 

Nil 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S  REPORT 

 

To the Members of  

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED (CIN: L28219HR1988PLC030347) 

 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of OK PLAY INDIA 

LIMITED (the ‘Company’), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the 

Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and 

notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies 

and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013, as amended (the ‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at 31 March 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash 

flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 

Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 

with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated. 
 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 
 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Chairman’s letter, Management 

Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance and Directors’ Report, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management for the standalone financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 

fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 

cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends 

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We are also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
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internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements: 

a) The company has an amount of Rs. 1003.94 Lacs (PY Rs. 912.88 Lacs) outstanding 

under Advances to others. This amount pertains to the advances given to parties for 

supply of goods and services. Out of this amount, the balance receivable includes Rs 

399.73 Lacs from parties which are outstanding for a long time. The management has 

represented that the amount of advances has been reduced significantly in the current 

year and is confident that such advances are recoverable/adjustable and that no accrual 

of diminution in value of trade receivable is considered necessary as at 31st March, 

2024. We have relied on the documents submitted by the management in respect of 

recoverability of the receivable, external confirmations received and the management’s 

internal assessment and representation in this matter. 

 

b) The company has total receivable of Rs. 1606.86 Lacs (PY Rs 3149.76 Lacs) which 

includes trade receivables, advances etc. The management has represented that the 

provision created for the doubtful receivable is sufficient considering the recoverability 

of the assets. The management, based on internal assessment and evaluations, has also 

represented that the significant portion of such trade receivable and advances are 

recoverable/adjustable and that no additional accrual of diminution in value of trade 

receivable is therefore necessary as at 31st March 2024. We have relied on the 

documents submitted by the management in respect of recoverability of the receivable, 

external confirmation received and the management internal assessment and the 

representation in this matter. 

 

Our opinion above on the standalone financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we 

give in the ‘Annexure 1’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order. 

 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. Insofar as the 

modification on maintaining an audit trail in the accounting software is concerned, 

refer paragraph (i) (vi) below. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of 

Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of 

Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 

account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 

March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

these standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure 2’ to this report.  

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2024 

has been paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 

i.   The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 

financial position in its standalone financial statements – Refer note 

26 to the standalone financial statements; 

ii.   The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable 

losses in long-term contracts including derivative contracts during 

the year ended 31 March 2024: 

iii.   There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during 

the year ended 31 March 2024 

iv.  (a)  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief and read with note 45(g) to the standalone financial 

statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 

or kind of funds by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 

including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
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Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

 (b)  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief and read with note 45(h) to the standalone financial 

statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any 

person or entity, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and 

 (c)  Based on such audit procedures performed that were considered 

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 

to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

v.   No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the 

Company. 

vi.   Based on our examination, which included test checks, the 

Company has used accounting software’s for maintaining its books 

of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, which has 

a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 

operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded 

in the software’s. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 

come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered 

with.  

   

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of 

audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is 

not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

 

For J MADAN & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 025913N 

 

 

 

Naveen Kumar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 536759 

 

UDIN: 24536759BKCKNF2496 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 09th April 2024 
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Annexure 1 to Independent Auditors’ Report 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on other legal and regulatory 

requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED. 

With reference to the “Annexure A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the 

members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2024, we report the following: 

i)  a)  A.  The Company has proper records related to full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

  B.  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 

intangible assets. 

 b)   Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management 

at reasonable    intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification during the year. 

 c)   The title deeds of all immovable properties included in property, plant and 

equipment; and Investment Property (other than properties where the Company is 

the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are 

held in the name of the Company. 

 d)   The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the 

year. Therefore, the provision of Clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the order are not 

applicable to the company. 

 e)   No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for 

holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 

1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 

(i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company. 

ii)  a)   The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory including 

inventory lying with third parties at reasonable intervals during the year. In our 

opinion the frequency of verification by Management is reasonable and the 

coverage and the procedure of such verification by the Management is 

appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of 

inventory were not noticed during such physical verification. 

 b)   Based on the information and explanations given by the Management, the 

Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits on the basis of 

security of current assets from banks or financial institutions during any point of 

time during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of 

the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

However, Company has outstanding term loan of Rs 5458.32, in aggregate, from 

banks on the basis of security of current assets, & immovable property. In our 

opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks 

are materially in agreement with the books of accounts of the company. 

iii)  During the year, the company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or 

granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Here are the details of 

the amount provided during the year and the balance as at the yearend related there to – 

a)   

Amount in Rs. (Lacs) 

Particulars Period Investment 

in Shares 

Investment in 

Convertible 

Debentures 

Guarantee 

 

Loan 

 

Section A      

Related to   During the year 1.00 - -  - 
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Subsidiary Balance as at 

the year end 

802.00 4013.07 - - 

Section B      

Other than 

above 

During the year   278.27 - 

Balance as at 

the year end 

  2818.95 6.18 

b)  The investment made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms and conditions 

of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are 

not prejudicial to the company’s interest. 

c)  The loans and advances in the nature of loan given during the year has stipulated the 

principal and the payment of interest and repayment is regular. 

d)  In regard to amount of overdue, our comments in clause # (e) below may be referred to. 

e)  There is an outstanding amount of Rs. 399.73 lac which is outstanding under advance to 

others. This pertains to advances in the supply of goods and services. This amount has 

been outstanding for a long time and management is making efforts to recover the same.  

f)  The Company has not granted any loan or advances in the nature of loans during the year 

which is either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 

repayment. 

iv)  The company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees and security on which 

provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable. Therefore, 

the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the company. 

v)  The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any 

amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. 

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

vi)  

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has 

prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

in respect of manufacturing activities of the company. We have broadly reviewed the 

accounts and records of the company in this connection and are of the opinion that prima 

facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not 

however carried out a detailed examination of the same. 

vii)  a)  

We have observed that statutory obligation in regard to the payment of undisputed 

statutory dues like Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, TDS and GST is 

not strictly observed. However, according to the information and explanations 

given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

b)  

There is a disputed amount of Rs. 1181.96 (in lacs) on account of Income Tax for 

the Assessment Year 2017-18. In this regard, the company has paid a provisional 

amount of Rs. 48.67 (in lac) against the demand. The appeal is pending before 

CIT(A) Gurgaon-I (refer note 26(I)(a)(ii). 

viii)  

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on 

the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not 

surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books 

of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as 

income during the year. 

ix)  a)  

We have observed a few delays in repayment of principal/Interest/Both. Here is the 

material delays noted based on our working and as per information and 

explanations given to us – 
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S 

 No 

Particulars Amount not paid on due 

date [in lacs] 

Whether 

principal 

or Interest 

No. of days 

delay or 

unpaid 

  Average Aggregate   

 Indian Overseas Bank - 

Term Loan         

1)  159903301000002      36.14        72.29  Both 30-61 

2)  006503301000007 9.49  85.40 Both 1-58 

3)  006503510000024 7.25  14.51 Both 30-61 

4)  006503510000028      46.71  467.80 Both 1-70 

5)  006503453000002 34.92 384.13 Both 2-64 

 

b)  
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has not been a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 

institution or other lender. 

 
c)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

 

d)  
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 

are no funds raised on short term basis which have been utilized for long term 

purposes. 

 

e)  
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 

meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. 

 

f)  
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x)  a)  

The Company has not raised money by way of an initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments). Therefore, the provisions of Clause 

(x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

 b)  

During the current year, Company has raised Rs 8146.41 through first preferential 

allotment and Rs 4543.75 lacs through second preferential allotment total 

amounting to Rs 12690.16 Lacs in the FY 2023-24. Out of the total amount to be 

received against the Equity shares and share warrants company has received 

funds of Rs 5317.30 Lacs from first preferential allotment and Rs 3531.25 lakhs 

from the second preferential till date total amounting to Rs 8848.55 lacs. 

xi)  a)  

We have not noticed any case of fraud by the company or any fraud on the 

Company by its officers or employees during the year. The management has also 

not reported any case of fraud during the year. 

 
b)  

During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies 

Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

 c)  
As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has not received 

any whistle-blower complaint during the year. 

xii)  
The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xii) of 

paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii)  

As per the information and explanations received to us all transactions with the related 

parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where 

applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as 

required by the applicable accounting standards. Identification of related parties were 

made and provided by the management of the company. 

xiv)  a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
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with the size and nature of its business. 

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 

Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent 

of our audit procedures. 

xv)  

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence 

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 

Company. 

xvi)  

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of 

paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

b) According to the information and explanation provided to us during the course of 

audit, the Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC). Therefore, 

the provisions of Clause (xvi) (d) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to 

the Company 

xvii)  
The company has not incurred cash loss in current financial year as well in immediately 

preceding financial year. 

xviii)  
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 

requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.   

xix)  

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, 

we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 

report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 

and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within 

a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 

and when they fall due. 

xx)  

There is no liability of the company under the provisions of section 135 of the 

Companies Act, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the provisions of 

Clause (xx) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

For J MADAN & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 025913N 

     
 

Naveen Kumar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 536759 
 

UDIN: 24536759BKCKNF2496 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 09th April 2024 
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Annexure 2 to Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on other legal and regulatory 

requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED. 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

of OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED (the ‘Company’) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our 

audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, 

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act. 

 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 

reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 

143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued 

by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their 

operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone 

financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 

reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these 

standalone financial statements. 
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Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to 

standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

 

  (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 

statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone 

financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 

reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with 

reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by 

the ICAI. 

 

For J MADAN & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 025913N 

     
 

Naveen Kumar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 536759 

UDIN: 24536759BKCKNF2496 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 09th April 2024 
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-                (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS Note No.  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

I ASSETS

1  Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant, and Equipment 2 ( a ) 8,150.08       6,326.24        

(b) Intangible assets 2 ( b ) 831.27          783.45           

(c) ROU assets 2 ( c ) 370.39          -                 

(d) Investment in subsidiaries 3 (i) 4,821.25       4,820.35        

(e) Loans / Security Deposits 3 (ii) 108.58          67.96             

(f) Other financial assets 3 (iii) 27.19            17.98             

(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 256.13          422.37           

Total Non - Current Assets 14,564.89     12,438.35      

2  Current assets:

(a) Inventories 5 5,382.59       5,391.21        

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 6 1,606.86       3,149.76        

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 208.74          106.71           

(iii) Other financial assets 8 1,926.91       21.13             

(c) Other current assets 9 2,484.81       1,119.36        

Total Current Assets 11,609.91     9,788.17        

TOTAL ASSETS 26,174.80     22,226.52      

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 10 2,902.81       1,919.61        

(b) Other Equity 11 9,219.29       2,036.51        

(c) Share Application Money- Pending Allotment -                

(d) Money Received against Share Warrants 1,280.54       

Total Equity 13,402.64     3,956.12        

1  Non-Current Liabilities:

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12A 4,456.99       6,959.32        

(ii) Lease Liability 310.36          -                 

   (iii) Other financial liabilities 358.14          451.58           

(b) Provisions 13 188.40          205.37           

Total Non - Current Liabilities 5,313.89       7,616.27        

2  Current liabilities:

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12B 2,805.91       2,856.60        

(ii) Lease Liability 95.67            -                 

(iii) Trade payables 14

             - Dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 49.77            -                 

              -Dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 437.71          1,980.87        

(b) Other current liabilities 15 4,069.21       5,815.81        

(c) Provisions 16 -                0.85               

Total Current Liabilities 7,458.27       10,654.13      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,772.16     18,270.40      

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 26,174.80     22,226.52      

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 2 to 26

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN:24536759BKCKNF2496

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 24

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
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(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  Note 

 No.  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

INCOME

I 17 14,508.07     13,280.27      

II 18 1,342.86       25.59             

III 15,850.93     13,305.86      

IV

Cost of materials consumed 19 6,123.90       7,890.74        

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 2,950.95       239.31           

20 519.24          (371.82)         

Employee benefits expense 21 1,508.52       1,541.18        

Finance costs 22 1,371.77       1,562.71        

Depreciation and amortization expense 2 844.87          732.37           

Other expenses 23 1,612.38       1,680.84        

14,931.63     13,275.33      

V 919.30          30.53             

VI 24 (178.71)        (22.84)           

VII 740.59          7.69               

VIII

-                -                 

166.24          397.77           

-                -                 

IX 574.35          (390.08)         

X

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of Profit and Loss:

    Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 39.48            (56.58)           

    Effect of earlier year lease amortisation -               -                

    Income tax effect -               -                

39.48            (56.58)           

XII 613.83          (446.66)         

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 1 each(Fy23-24) & Rs.10 each (Fy22-23)

(1) Basic ( in Rs.) 25 0.21              (2.33)             

(2) Diluted  ( in Rs.) 0.17              (2.33)             

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 2 to 26

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN:24536759BKCKNF2496

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III- IV)

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax charge/(Credit)  

Exceptional items - Gains/ (Loss )

Profit/(Loss) before tax ( V+ VI)

Tax expense:

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- progress and Stock-in-

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

Other Comprehensive Income

Net other comprehensive income

Total expenses 

EXPENSES

Total Income

Revenue from operations

Other income

(3) Provision of Tax of earlier years/( written back) 
Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII -VIII)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX-X)
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(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 740.60          7.69               

Adjustments to reconcile profit & Loss to net cash provided by operating activites  :

Effect of earlier year lease amortisation (17.07)          -                

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 914.90          732.37           

Loss/( Profit ) on sale of Assets 40.43            -                

Interest Received (28.78)          (14.55)           

Finance Costs 1,371.78       1,562.71        

Deferred Revenue Expenditure written off

Re-measurement Gains/(Losses) on defined benefit plans 39.48            (56.58)           

Provision for Doubtful Debts -               -                

Exchange Fluctuation Loss/(Gain) 4.13              22.87             

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 3,065.47       2,254.51        

Net Changes in :

Trade and Other Receivables 1,542.89       (445.46)         

Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets (10.10)          (0.43)             

Current Assets - Other Financial Assets (1,905.78)     (10.77)           

Inventories 8.62              (614.06)         

Trade and Other Payables (2,543.86)     (121.33)         
 

Cash generated from operations 157.24          1,062.46        

Direct taxes paid (0.85)            (20.34)           

Net Cash from Operating Activities 156.39          1,042.12        

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Fixed Assets (3,322.17)     (791.31)         

Sale of Fixed Assets 124.79          0.23               

Interest Received 28.78            14.55             

Net Cash used in Investing Activities -                -                

(3,168.60)     (776.53)         

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Allotment/Share Warrants money received 1,280.54       

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital 7,569.21       -                

Investments made

Loans & Advances paid (1,406.06)     392.09           

Deferred Revenue Expenses

Finance Costs (1,371.78)     (1,562.71)      

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings (3,002.65)     1,436.55        

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 44.98            (591.38)         

Net Cash used in Financing Activities 3,114.24       (325.45)         

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 102.03          (59.86)           

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st April,2023 106.71          166.57           

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2024 208.74          106.71           

(Refer Note #7 for breakup of Cash and Cash Equivalent component)

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN:24536759BKCKNF2496

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

 For the year ended 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

 For the year ended 

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024



 
 

          71 
 

 

 

 

  

(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 Capital 

Reserve

Share  

Premium 

General 

Reserve 

Retained 

Earnings

1,919.61   1,725.23    2,436.06   15.24              (2,113.14)           (26.88)          2,036.51         3,956.12        

-            -            6,586.01   -                  -                     -               6,586.01         6,586.01        

-            -            -            -                  -                     -               -                 -                

983.20      -            -            -                  -                     -               -                 983.20           

-            -            -            -                  -                     -               -                 -                

-            -            -                  (17.07)                39.48            22.42              22.42             

574.35               574.35            574.35           

2,902.81   1,725.23    9,022.07    15.24               (1,555.86)           12.60            9,219.29         12,122.10      

1,919.61   1,725.23    2,436.06    15.24               (1,723.06)           29.70            2,483.17         4,402.78        

-            -            -            -                  -                     -               -                 -                

-            -            -            -                  -                     -               -                 -                

-            -            -            -                  -                     -               -                 -                

-            -            -            -                  -                     -               -                 -                

-            -            -            -                  (56.58)          (56.58)             (56.58)           

(390.08)              (390.08)           (390.08)         

1,919.61   1,725.23    2,436.06    15.24               (2,113.14)           (26.88)          2,036.51         3,956.12        

NOTES ON CHANGES IN EQUITY

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

As per our report of even date attached 
For  J Madan & Associates
(Chartered Accountants)
(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 
CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO
Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892
M. No. 536759
UDIN:24536759BKCKNF2496

(Meenu Goswami)
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

Changes in equity during the year

Dividend Paid

(b) Share Premium : Share Premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

(e) Other Comprehensive Income : Other Comprehensive Income consists of remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/asset, net of taxes.

Balance as at 1st April 2022

(d) Retained Earnings : Retained Earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

Remeasurement of the net defined 

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Balance as at 1st April 2023

(a) Capital Reserve : The Company recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of its own equity instruments to capital reserve.

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to 

prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the 

current reporting period

Changes in equity during the year

Dividend Paid

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to 

prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the 

current reporting period

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Profit & Loss for the Period

Remeasurement of the net defined 

benefit liability/ assets (net of tax)

Balance as at 31st March 2024

Profit & Loss for the Period

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

(c) General Reserve : The General Reserve is a free reserve which is used to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the Genreal 

Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the General Reserve will 

not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit & Loss.

Total  Equity 

& Other 

Equity

Equity 

Share 

Capital

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

Total 

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensi

ve  Income 
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 

MARCH 2024 

 

NOTE 1  

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Company was incorporated on 19th  August 1988 and is a public limited company listed on 

the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).The Company’s registered office is at 17, Roj- Ka- Meo 

Industrial Estate, Tehsil Nuh, District- Mewat, Haryana -122103.The company manufactures 

Plastic Molded Toys, School Furniture, Playground Equipment, Infrastructure & Automotive 

Products, Point-Of-Purchase Products and E-Vehicles. 

The standalone financial statements were approved for issuance in accordance with a resolution 

of the Board of Directors of the Company on 9th April, 2024. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) 

read together with the  Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended from 

time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act, on an accrual basis.  

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following 

assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount.  

i)   Certain financial assets and liabilities and 

ii)  Defined benefit plans- plan assets 

 

The financial statements are present in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency 

and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. 

Current / Non-Current Classification 

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions: 

 the asset/liability is expected to be realised/ settled in the Company’s normal 

operating cycle; 

 the asset is intended for sale or consumption; 

 the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

 the asset/liability is expected to be realised/ settled within twelve months after the 

reporting period; 

 the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or 

used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date 

 in the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has 

ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of services 

and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization 

in cash and cash equivalents. 
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The management has applied company’s accounting policies that are material.  

All the accounting policies disclosed in Note no -1 are considered material accounting policies   

together with other information included in financial statements prepared by the company, that 

can be reliable and reasonable to the primary users of financial statements as per the notification 

issued by MCA dated, 31st March 2023.  

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING   POLICIES  

1. Property, plant and equipment  

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and 

rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase 

price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working 

condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising 

from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 

flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage 

prior to its intended use, are considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under Capital 

Work-in-Progress.   

Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using straight line method. 

Depreciation is provided on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the 

Companies Act, 2013.The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, 

plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 

appropriate.  

Leasehold land 

 

Premium on leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as 

the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

 

Impairment of non-financial assets-property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.  

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any 

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets maybe impaired. 

An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s 

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s 

fair value less cost of disposal and value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, 

discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. 

The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change 

in the estimate of recoverable amount. 
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2. Intangible Assets 

Technical know-how acquired 

Technical know-how acquired is stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and 

impairment losses, if any. Acquired technical know-how is amortised equally over a period of 

estimated useful life 

Technical know-how developed by the Company 

Expenditure incurred by the Company on development of know-how researched, is recognised as 

an intangible asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable to the use of such 

know-how are probable to flow to the Company and the costs/expenditure can be measured 

reliably. 

The cost of technical know-how developed is amortised over its estimated useful life. 

Research and development costs 

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an individual project is 

recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate: 

 The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be 

available for use or sale 

 Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset 

 How the asset will generate future economic benefits 

 The availability of resources to complete the asset 

 The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development 

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at 

cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the 

asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over 

the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually. 

3. Leases 

Assets taken on lease: 

The Company mainly has lease arrangements for land and building for offices. 

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The 

assessment involves the exercise of judgement about whether (i) the contract involves the use of 

an identified asset, (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of 

the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of 

the asset. 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability at the 

lease commencement date. The ROU asset is initially recognised at cost, which comprises the 

initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 

commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 

and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is 

located, less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses. 
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The ROU asset is depreciated using the straight- line method from the commencement date to the 

earlier of, the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the lease term. If a lease 

transfer ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the ROU asset reflects that the Company 

expects to exercise a purchase option, the related ROU asset is depreciated over the useful life of 

the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of ROU assets are determined on the same basis 

as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 

impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 

at the commencement date, discounted using the  interest  rate  implicit in the lease or, if that rate 

cannot be readily determined, the Company uses an incremental borrowing rate specific to the 

company, term and currency of the contract. Generally, the Company uses its incremental 

borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include fixed payments, 

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate known at the commencement date; and 

extension option payments or purchase options payment which the Company is reasonably 

certain to exercise. 

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the 

measurement of the lease liability and the ROU asset. The related payments are recognised as an 

expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are 

included in the line “other expenses” in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion 

of interest and reduced for the lease payments made and remeasured (with a corresponding 

adjustment to the related ROU asset) when there is a change in future lease payments in case of 

renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in case of reassessment of options. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company has elected not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for short term leases 

as well as low value assets and recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an 

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

4. Investment in Subsidiaries 

Investment in subsidiaries is recognized at cost. Cost represent amount paid for acquisition of the 

said investments. 

The company assesses at the end of each reporting period if there are any indications that the said 

investments may be impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the 

investment and provides for impairment if any, i.e. deficit in the recoverable value over cost. 

5. Inventories 

Raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores, spares, 

components, consumables and stock-in- trade are carried at the lower of cost and net 

Realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in production of inventories 

are not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be incorporated are 

expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made 

on an item-by item basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 

course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make 

the sale. 

In determining the cost of raw materials, packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores, spares, 

components and consumables, weighted average cost method is used. Cost of inventory 
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comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from 

tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location 

and condition. 

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of raw materials, packing 

materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads and other costs 

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Fixed production 

overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities. 

The Company considers factors like estimated shelf life, product discontinuances and ageing of 

inventory in determining the provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable 

inventory and adjusts the inventory provisions to reflect the recoverable value of inventory. 

 

6. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and 

cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is 

three months or less and other short term highly liquid investments net of bank overdrafts 

which are repayable on demand as this form an integral part of the Company’s cash 

management. 

 

7. Finance Cost 

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the 

extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the 

cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to 

get ready for its intended use.   

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 

expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.   

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which 

they are incurred. 

 

8. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities/Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. Contingent liabilities, if material, are disclosed by way of notes to accounts. 

Contingent assets are not recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. 

9. Use of estimates, judgments and assumptions 

Estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements and   disclosures 

made therein are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as 

of the date of the financial statements, which may differ from the actual results at a subsequent 

date. The following are items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates 

and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information 

about each of these estimates is included in the relevant notes together with information about 

basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements: 

 Estimation of fair value of assets and liabilities 

 Estimation of variable considerations in revenue 

 Provision for warranties 
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 Provision for employee benefits 

 Provision for tax expenses 

 Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 

 Valuation of investment 

 Inventory – Net Realisable Value of an item of inventories.  

 Provision for expected credit losses 

 

10. Foreign currencies transactions and translation 

a. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 

of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 

translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

b. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences 

which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are 

capitalized as cost of assets.  

c. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. 

d. In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 

expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-

monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date 

on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary 

liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts 

in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of 

advance consideration. 

 

11. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 

have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated cost 

can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvement with 

the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Revenue from operations includes sale of goods and services.  

a. Sale of Goods  

The Company has determined that customers from the sale of goods are generally dealers and 

distributors. Transfer of control, and therefore revenue recognition, generally corresponds to the 

date when the goods are made available to the customer, or when the goods are released to the 

carrier responsible for transporting them to the customer in the following manner: 

 Domestic sales are recognised at the time of dispatch from the point of sale. 

 Export sales are recognised on the date when shipped on board as per terms of sale and 

are initially recorded at the relevant exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. 

The nature of contracts of the Company are such that no material part performance obligations 

would remain unfulfilled at the end of any accounting period. 

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or 

duties collected on behalf of the government. 
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b. Sale of Services 

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the performance of agreed 

contractual task has been completed.  

c. Variable consideration 

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount (like volume rebates/incentives, 

cash discounts etc.), the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be 

entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is 

estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant 

revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the 

associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.  

d. Consideration payable to the customer 

Consideration payable to a customer includes cash amounts that the Company pays, or 

expects to pay, to the customer. The consideration payable to a customer is accounted for as a 

reduction of the revenue. 

e. Warranty obligations 

The Company provides warranties for general repairs of defects as per terms of the contract 

with ultimate customers. These warranties are considered as assurance type warranties and 

are accounted for under Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

f. Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is 

unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is 

due). 

12. Interest Income 

The Company recognises income on accrual basis. However, where the ultimate collection of the 

same lack’s reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent revenue is 

reasonably certain and can be reliably measured. 

13. Dividends 

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive 

payment is established, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend 

will flow to the Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

14. Employee Benefits Expense 

Short Term Employee Benefits 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are 

classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in the period in which the 

employee renders the related service. The Company recognises the undiscounted amount of 

short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability 

(accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid. 
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Post-Employment Benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

Defined contribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government administered 

pension fund scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation scheme for eligible 

employees. 

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans 

The Company recognises contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees render services to the Company during the 

reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees before the 

reporting date exceeds the contributions already paid, the deficit payable is recognised as a 

liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the 

contribution due for services received before the reporting date, the excess is recognised as an 

asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments 

or a cash refund. 

Defined benefit plans 

Provident fund scheme 

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme. 

The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any. 

Gratuity scheme 

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees. The Company contributes 

to a separate entity (a Trust), towards meeting the Gratuity obligation. 

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans 

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with 

actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations 

recognised in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as 

reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined 

benefit obligations resulting from this calculation) is recognised representing the present value of 

available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan. 

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the 

defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses 

and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability/asset), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are 

not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods. 

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non- current in the Balance Sheet 

as per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary.  

15. Tax Expenses 

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the 

period in respect of current tax and deferred tax. 

Current tax 

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. 
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Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that 

are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for 

the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 

 

Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 

taxable profit under Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. However, 

in case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 

transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the 

accounting profit, deferred  tax  liabilities  are not recognised. Also, for temporary differences if 

any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 

it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 

difference can be utilized. In case of temporary  differences  that  arise  from initial recognition of 

assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the 

taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 

to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in 

the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 

 

Uncertain tax positions 

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether 

it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company 

reflects the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using one of two methods, 

the expected value method (the sum of the probability - weighted amounts in a range of possible 

outcomes) or the most likely amount (single most likely amount method in a range of possible 

outcomes), depending on which is expected to better predict the resolution of the uncertainty. 

The Company applies consistent judgements and estimates if an uncertain tax treatment affects 

both the current and the deferred tax. 

 

Presentation of current and deferred tax 

 

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, in 

which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognised in Other Comprehensive 

Income. 

 

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net 

basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets 
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and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to 

set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets 

and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 

Company. 

 

16. Events after reporting date 

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed 

at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the Financial 

Statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only 

disclosed. 

 

17. Non-current Assets held for sale 

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be 

recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions 

required to complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to 

sell will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as 

held for sale only if the management expects to complete the sale within one year from the date 

of classification. 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount 

and the fair value less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised. 

 

18. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 

shareholders of the Company with the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the financial year, adjusted for treasury shares. 

Diluted Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to the equity 

shareholders of the Company with the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 

financial year, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

19. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement: 

The Company recognises a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, 

plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), 

transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction 

price, the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or 

loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined 

through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or 

through a valuation technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input). 

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the 

difference between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognised 

as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss 

arises due to a change in factor that market participants take into account when pricing the 
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financial asset. 

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured 

at transaction price. 

Subsequent measurement: 

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the 

below criteria: 

I. The Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and 

II. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following 

categories: 

A. Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

B. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

(FVTOCI) 

C. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A. Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to 

hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and 

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial 

assets of the Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method. 

Under the effective interest method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial 

recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortisation using the 

effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the 

maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of 

the financial asset over the relevant period of the financial asset to arrive at the amortised cost at 

each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortisation under effective interest method 

is recognised as interest income over the relevant period of the financial asset. The same is 

included under other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

The amortised cost of a financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any 

 

B. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: 

 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

a. The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is 

achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 

assets, and 

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding. 

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments. Such financial assets are 

subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in 

the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company recognises interest income and 
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impairment losses and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 

is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured 

certain investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. 

The Company has made such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. These equity 

instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration recognised under a 

business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in the fair value 

of such equity instruments are recognised in OCI. However, the Company recognises dividend 

income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive 

payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 

the amount can be measured reliably. 

 

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 

OCI is not reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company 

may transfer such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity. 

 

C. Financial assets measured at FVTPL: 

 

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as 

explained above. This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company 

excluding investments in subsidiary and associate companies. Such financial assets are 

subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 

financial assets) is derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of 

the following occurs: 

 

The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires; 

 

The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has 

substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 

 

i. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a 

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows without material delay to one or 

more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby substantially 

transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset); 

 

ii. The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of 

ownership and does not retain control over the financial asset. 

 

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and 

rewards of the financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to 

recognise such financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. In 

that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The financial asset and the 

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 

Company has retained. 

 

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in (ii) above for financial assets 

measured at FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration 

received is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Impairment of financial assets: 

 

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 

loss allowance on the following: 

 

 Trade receivables 

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables) 

 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

(FVTOCI) 

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount 

equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. 

 

In case of other assets (listed as (ii) and (iii) above), the Company determines if there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk 

of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and 

recognised as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal 

to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. 

 

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing 

impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in 

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash 

shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the 

expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result 

from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date. 

 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts 

determined by a range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other 

reasonable information available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of 

future economic conditions. 

 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its 

portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed 

default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward- looking 

estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the 

forward-looking estimates are updated. 

 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as 

income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Financial Liabilities 

 

Initial recognition and measurement: 

 

The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair 

value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability. 
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Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction 

price, the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or 

loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined 

through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or 

through a valuation technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input). 

 

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the 

difference between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognised 

as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises 

due to a change in factor that market participants take into account when pricing the financial 

liability. 

 

Subsequent measurement: 

 

All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. 

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial 

recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortisation using the 

effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the 

maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of 

the financial liability over the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortised 

cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortisation under effective interest 

method is recognised as interest expense over the relevant period of the financial liability. The 

same is included under finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Derecognition: 

 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified; such an exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original 

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the 

financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss. 

 

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities: 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance 

Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is 

an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

 

20. Fair Value 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting 

policies mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 

transfer the liability takes place either: 

 

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
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liability. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements 

are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as 

follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives 

the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 

inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). 

 

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities 

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability. 

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements at fair value on a 

recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 

hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the 

same. 

 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 

UNCERTAINTY 

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgement, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and 

liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 

could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or 

liabilities affected in the future periods.    

a) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the 

Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate 

of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful 

lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by the management at the time the 

asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.  

The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future 

events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence 

arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the 

product or service output of the asset.  

b)  Recoverability of trade receivable  

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and 

determining whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include 

the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and 

any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.  

c) Provisions 

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be 

a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow 

can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and qualification of the liability requires the 

application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. 

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take 

account of changing facts and circumstances. 
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d) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An 

asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or Cash Generating Units (CGUs) fair value 

less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset 

does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a group 

of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 

asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 

transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 

valuation model is used.  

e) Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risks of default 

and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and 

selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing 

market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.  

f) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary difference and unused tax losses 

for which there is probability of utilization against the future taxable profit. The Company uses 

judgement to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be recognized, based upon the likely 

timing and the level of future taxable profit and business developments. 

g) Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term 

of the lease, together with the impact of options to extend or terminate the lease if it is reasonably 

certain to be exercised. 

Where the rate implicit in the lease is taken on the basis of rate readily available in the market. 

This incremental rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over 

a similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar nature 

and value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. Determination of the 

incremental borrowing rate requires estimation. 

h) Defined Benefit Obligation 

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment benefits are charged to the Statement 

of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ over the period during 

which benefit is derived from the employees’ services. The costs are assessed on the basis of 

assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary escalation rate, 

discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates.  
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NOTE 2: (Rs.in lacs)

As at Additions Deductions Adjustments As at As at Additions Deductions Adjustments As at As at As at

01.04.2023
during the 

year

during the 

year
31.03.2024 01.04.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

NOTE 2(a) PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Land (Freehold) 129.97           -           -              129.97          -              -           -             129.97       129.97        
Land (Leasehold) -                -           -              -               -              -           -             -            -             

Buildings 2,000.08         -           -              2,000.08       152.52         31.75       -              184.27        1,815.81     1,847.56     

Plant and Equipment 10,942.08       2,471.68    2,757.30      10,656.46     6,987.67      464.68      2,619.37      4,832.98      5,823.48     3,954.41     

Furnitures & Fixtures 283.70           7.54          152.37         138.87          208.06         12.33       144.75         75.64          63.23         75.64         

Vehicles 695.18           86.58        190.17         591.59          405.74         65.94       179.17         292.51        299.08       289.44        

Office Equipment 253.29           6.29          173.58         86.00           224.07         8.33         164.91         67.49          18.51         29.22         

SUB TOTAL (a) 14,304.30     2,572.09  3,273.42     13,602.97   7,978.06    583.03    3,108.20    -            5,452.89    8,150.08   6,326.24   

PREVIOUS YEAR 13,536.10     771.96     3.76            14,304.30   7,451.07    530.52    3.53           7,978.06    6,326.24   6,085.03   

NOTE 2(b) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other Intangible Assets 1,809.24         146.58      139.46         1,816.36       1,046.80      169.43      139.46         1,076.77      739.59       762.44        

Computer Software 98.42             75.00        53.93           119.49          77.41          4.33         53.93          27.81          91.68         21.01         

SUB TOTAL (b) 1,907.66       221.58     193.39        1,935.85     1,124.21    173.76    193.39       1,104.58    831.27      783.45      

PREVIOUS YEAR 1,888.31       19.35       -             1,907.66     922.36       201.86    -             1,124.21    783.45      965.95      

NOTE 2(c) ROU ASSETS

ROU Assets -                318.41      210.09         528.50          -              88.08       70.03          158.11        370.39       -             

SUB TOTAL (C) -                318.41     -             210.09        528.50        -             88.08      -             70.03         158.11       370.39      -            

PREVIOUS YEAR -                -           -             -             -              -             -          -             -            -             -            -            

Total [a + b ]  (Current Year) 16,211.96     3,112.08  3,466.81     16,067.32   9,102.27    844.87    3,301.59    6,715.58    9,351.74   7,109.69   

Total [a + b ]  (Previous  Year) 15,424.41     791.31     3.76            16,211.96   8,373.43    732.38    3.53           9,102.27    7,109.69   7,050.98   

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

(i) Investments

Trade -Unquoted, at cost 

Investment in Equity of Subsidiary Company 800.00          800.00           

Investment in Equity of Subsidiary Company -                0.10               

Investment in Equity of Subsidiary Company 1.00              

Investment in Equity of Subsidiary Company 1.00              1.00               

Investment in Debentures of Subsidiary Company 4,013.07       4,013.07        

   Financial Assets measured at fair value through Profit and Loss 6.18              6.18               

Total        4,821.25         4,820.35 

(ii) Loans / Security deposits

( Unsecured, considered good)

Other Loans and Advances 

Earnest money deposit 6.69              6.69               

Security deposits 101.89          61.27             

Total 108.58          67.96             

(ii) Other Financial Assets

( Unsecured, considered good)

Fixed deposits more than 12 months maturity period 27.19            17.98             

Total
27.19            17.98             

4 DEFFERED TAX ASSETS (NET)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Deferred tax liabilities: 

1,057.67       1,012.19        

Total - (A) 1,057.67       1,012.19        

Deferred tax Assets: 

33.93            32.89             
1,279.87       1,401.67        

Total - (B) 1,313.80       1,434.56        

Deferred Tax ( Assets)/ Liabilities  ( A-B) (256.13)        (422.37)         

(422.37)        (820.14)         

166.24          397.77           

Net Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liability at the end (256.13)        (422.37)         

5 INVENTORIES

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

863.89          754.65           

1,303.23       1,785.77        

726.92          746.18           

593.54          610.99           

586.00          450.48           

1,202.96       927.22           

106.05          115.92           

Total 5,382.59       5,391.21        

"Goods-in-transit"

Inventories are valued at cost or market value, whichever is lower.

10,000 (Previous year Nil) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each

fully paid of subsidiary company MRH Technologies Pvt Ltd

(above referred amount of Rs 6.18 lacs relates to adjustment made during the adoption of 

IndAS)

Raw Materials

Work-in-Progress

Nil (Previous year 1000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each

fully paid of subsidiary company Isht Technologies Pvt Ltd

  40130702 (Previous year 40130702) Compulsory Convertible Debentures of Rs.10/- 

each

80,00,000 (Previous year 80,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each

fully paid of wholly owned subsidiary company OK Play Auto Private Limited

10,000 (Previous year 10000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each

fully paid of subsidiary company RIRA E-Vehicles Private Limited

Finished Goods

Stock-in-Trade

(i) Relating to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Stores & Spares

Charge/(Credits) in Statement of Profit & Loss relating to temporary differences

Goods-in-transit

(ii) Unabsorbed depreciation/carried forward of losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Inventories have been hypothecated to bank for credit facilities availed

(i)  Disallowance under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Packing Materials & Accessories

Net Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liability at the beginning
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Rs. in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 1,666.86       3,209.76        

Having significant increase in Credit Risk 

Less : Provision for Expected Credit Loss (60.00)          (60.00)           

Total 1,606.86       3,149.76        

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2024 (Rs. in lacs)

    1,026.98        217.14                43.07                   33.22             14.13               332.32         1,666.86 

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

    1,026.98        217.14                43.07                   33.22             14.13               332.32         1,666.86 

             60.00 

        1,606.86 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2023 (Rs. in lacs)

       346.85        326.36           2,058.20                   14.05             46.18               418.12         3,209.76 

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

               -                 -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

       346.85        326.36           2,058.20                   14.05             46.18               418.12         3,209.76 

             60.00 

        3,149.76 

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs. in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Cash on hand including imprest 7.99              9.70               

Balances with banks :
      

- In current accounts 33.40            (68.32)           

- Fixed Deposits as margin money (maturity upto 12 months) 167.35          165.33           

Total 208.74          106.71           

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS ( CURRENT) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Loans and advances to employees 21.30            21.09             

Receivables from Related Party 1,905.61       0.04               

Total 1,926.91       21.13             

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Advance to creditors 39.41            0.32               

Advances to Others 1,003.94       912.88           

Advances fo Capex 765.00          

Advance Income Tax/TDS/Direct Taxes 241.93          100.46           

Balance With Revenue Authorities (Indirect Taxes) 43.48            8.25               

Prepaid Expenses 391.05          97.45             

Total 2,484.81       1,119.36        

Total

Particulars

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired

Total Trade Receivable

Less : Provison for doubtful trade receivables

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 

have significant increase in credit risk

More than 3 

Years

6 months- 1 

year

Trade Receivables includes director and other officer of the company Rs. Nil (Rs Nil)

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Less Than 

6 months

Trade Receivables includes balance of Rs. Nil ( Rs.1730.72 lacs) of related parties.

Not Due as 

on 

31.03.2024

2-3 Years

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered 

good

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered 

good

2-3 Years

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 

have significant increase in credit risk

Not Due as 

on 

31.03.2023

Particulars

1-2 Years

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered 

good

Total

Less : Provison for doubtful trade receivables

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk

Less Than 

6 months

1-2 Years

TotalMore than 3 

Years

Total Trade Receivable

Trade Receivables have been hypothecated to bank for credit facilities availed.

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered 

good

6 months- 1 

year

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

Authorized capital

Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each (Rs.10/-each) 400,000,000      4,000.00         40,000,000      4,000.00        

Total
400,000,000      4,000.00         40,000,000      4,000.00        

Issued capital

Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each (Rs.10/-each) 290,281,150      2,902.81         19,264,015      1,926.40        

Total 290,281,150      2,902.81         19,264,015      1,926.40        

Subscribed and paid-up capital

Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each (Rs.10/-each) 290,281,150      2,902.81         19,208,115      1,920.81        

Less: Allotment Money unpaid -                  24,000             1.20               

Total 290,281,150      2,902.81         19,184,115      1,919.61        

(a) Reconciliation of  Number of Equity Shares (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 192,081,150       1,920.81         19,208,115      1,920.81        

Add: Shares Issued during the year          98,200,000 982.00            -                

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 290,281,150      2,902.81         19,208,115      1,920.81        

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 No. of Shares 

Held 
 % of Holding 

 No. of Shares 

Held 
 % of Holding 

Mr Rajan Handa 102,868,620      35.44% 10,286,862      53.55%

Mrs Mamta Handa 10,384,500        3.58% 1,000,000        5.21%

30,000,000        10.33%

22,000,000        7.58%

Total 165,253,120      56.93% 11,286,862      58.76%

 As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 Sl.    

No. 

Promoter Name
 No. of Shares  % of Holding  No. of Shares  % of Holding 

1 Mr Rajan Handa 102,868,620   35.44% 10,286,862    53.55% -18.12%

2 Ms. Mamta Handa 10,384,500     3.58% 1,000,000      5.21% -1.63%

3 Mr. Rishab Handa 5,025,000       1.73% 2,500             0.01% 1.72%

4 Mr. Raghav Handa 5,025,000       1.73% 2,500             0.01% 1.72%

5 Ms. Anandana Handa 5,025,000       1.73% 2,500             0.01% 1.72%

6 Mr. Gaurav Chopra 563,500          0.19% 56,350           0.29% -0.10%

7 Ms. Geetanjali Chopra 260,500          0.09% 26,050           0.14% -0.05%

8 Mr. Rajesh Chopra 121,500          0.04% 12,150           0.06% -0.02%

9 Rajesh Chopra HUF 77,000            0.03% 7,700             0.04% -0.01%

10 Ms. Sangeeta Chopra 744,000          0.26% 74,400           0.39% -0.13%

Total 130,094,620   44.82% 11,471,012     59.72% -14.90%

 As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 Sl.    

No. 

Public
 No. of Shares  % of Holding  No. of Shares  % of Holding 

1 Shareholding of public more than 5% 52,000,000     17.91% -                 0.00% 17.91%

2 Shareholding of public less than 5% 108,186,530   37.27% 7,737,103      40.28% -3.01%

Total 160,186,530   55.18% 7,737,103      40.28% 14.90%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2024 as follows :

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares in the Company

 % Change 

during the 

year 

(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 1/- per share . Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held and is

entitled to dividend , if declared at the Annual General Meeting .{ In the event of liquidation , the equity shareholders are entitled to receive remaining assets of the

company ( after distrubtion  of all preferential amounts, if any ) in the proportion of equity held by the shareholders }

(ii) Public

Tano Investment Opportunities Fund-FPI category I

Ecotek General Trading L.L.C-FPI category II

(iii) The Company has raised money through Preferential allotment-I of 1,35,30,000 fully convertible warrants at a price of Rs. 60.21/- aggregating to Rs. 8146.41

lacs during the year ended 31st March, 2024.The company has already received an amount of Rs. 5317.29 lacs and the balance of Rs. 2829.12 lacs will be

received within a maximum period of 18 months from the respective date of allotment. The Preferential Issue-I was approved by Shareholders through Extra-

ordinary General Meeting held on 25th March, 2023. In Preferential Issue-I, the Compnay has made allotment of 72,65,000 shares pursuant to exercise of option

by the warrantholder.

(iv) The Company has raised Rs.3193.75 lacs through Preferential allotment-II of 25,55,000 Equity Shares at the issue price of Rs.125/- and has raised Rs. 337.50

lacs through Preferential allotment of 10,00,000 Fully Convertible Equity warrants at the issue price of Rs.135/- (which are exercisable at the option of warrant

holder within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment) during the year ended 31st March, 2024. The Preferential Issue-II was approved by Shareholders

through Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 20th December, 2023.

(ii) The Equity Shares of the Company are sub-divided/split with effect from 11th March,2024 i.e. Record Date such that each equity share of face value of Rs.

10/-each are sub-divided into Ten equity shares of the face value of Rs. 1/- each ranking pari-passu in all respects. This was approved by the Equity Shareholders

through Extra-Ordinary General Meeting on 23rd February 2024. 

 % Change 

during the 

year 

 Current Year  Previous Year 

(i) Promoters

(d) Disclosure of shareholding



 
 

          92 
 

 

 

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

11 OTHER EQUITY
(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 Capital 

Reserve

Share  

Premium 

General 

Reserve 

Retained 

Earnings

1,725.23   2,436.06         15.24                 (2,113.14)     (26.88)              2,036.51        

-            6,586.01         -                     -               -                   6,586.01        

-            -                  -                     -               -                   -                

-            -                  -                     -               -                   -                

-                  -                     (17.065800)  39.480930       22.42             

574.35          574.35           

1,725.23    9,022.07          15.24                  (1,555.86)     12.60               9,219.29        

1,725.23    2,436.06          15.24                  (1,723.06)     29.70               2,483.17        

-                  

-            -                  -                     (56.58)              (56.58)           
(390.08)        (390.08)         

1,725.23    2,436.06          15.24                  (2,113.14)     (26.88)              2,036.51        

12 BORROWINGS 

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(A) Non Current

Term Loans, Secured

     - From Bank 5,458.32       6,799.20        

     - Against Vehicles 303.64          312.88           

Term Loans, Unsecured

    - From Other Parties 1,150.00       3,019.45        

    - From Directors and Others

       6,911.96       10,131.53 

Less : Current Maturity 2,454.97       3,172.21        

Less : Interest accrued and due on borrowings -                -                 

Total- A 4,456.99       6,959.32        

(B) Current

Loan Repayable on Demand, Secured

 - Working Capital Loan from Bank 2,805.91       2,856.60        

Total-B 2,805.91       2,856.60        

Total-(A+B) 7,262.90       9,815.92        

12.5  Working Capital Loan from Bank is secured by:

Transfer to General Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of 1st April 2023

Changes in equity during the year

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Changes in equity during the year

Transfer to General Reserve

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/ assets (net 

of tax)

Reserves and Surplus

Dividend Paid

Other 

Comprehensive  

Income 

i) Second Charge on entire fixed assets of the subsidiary Company, OK Play Auto Private Limited 

From Bank: Payable in monthly instalments upto year 2037-38

l) Corporate Guarantee of the Subsidiary Company, OK Play Auto Private Limited 

12.3. Term loans, Unsecured, from other parties have been secured by third party property.  

j) Residual value of prime security of the subsidiary Company, OK Play Auto Private Limited .

k) Reinvestment Deposit Plan of value of Rs.194.54 lacs

12.2. Term Loans & Working Capital Loans  from banks are collaterally secured by:

b) Equitable Mortgage of land and building at Plot No-17-18, Roj-ka Meo Industrial Estate, Tehsil Nuh, District-Mewat, Haryana.  

Balance as at the beginning of 1st April 2022

Profit & Loss for the period

Balance as at 31st March 2024

c) Equitable Mortgage of Company's property at Plot No-33, Roj-ka Meo Industrial Estate, Tehsil Nuh, District-Mewat, Haryana.  

Profit & Loss for the period

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/ assets (net 

of tax)

1) Secured against Stocks of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods and Other Stocks and Book Debts 

Dividend Paid

12.1.Secured Term Loans are secured as below:

From Bank: Exclusive charge/equitable mortgage on the factory land and building at 17-18, Roj-ka Meo Industrial Estate, Tehsil Nuh, District - Mewat, Haryana, 

Plant and Machinery and Assets created out of the term loan.

Against Vehicles: Secured against hypothecation of respective vehicles.

e) Hypothecation of all Current Assets of the company. 

f) First Charge on other net block assets of the company .

Unsecured from Other Parties: Payable in monthly/quarterly instalments extending  to year 2024-25

a) Equitable Mortgage on the Company's property at 124, New Manglapuri, Mehrauli, New Delhi.  

d) Equitable Mortgage of property at 125, New Manglapuri, Mehrauli, New Delhi in the name of "Cautious Exim Private Limited".  

h) Pledge of 470.4 lacs Equity Shares of the company by Rajan Handa -Director ( Rs.6711.6 lacs )

Against Vehicles : Payable in monthly Instalments extending to year 2030-31

12.4. Term loans are repayable as follows:  

Total 

g) Personal Guarantees of two of the Directors of the company.Mr. Rajan Handa and Mrs. Mamta Handa, Director for Rs.8196.41 lacs ( equivalent to Loan 

amount outstanding with Indian Overseas Bank)

m) Corporate Guarantee of Cautious Exim Private Limited
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

13 PROVISIONS ( NON - CURRENT) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Provision for Gratuity/Leave Encashment 188.40          205.37           

Total
188.40          205.37           

14 TRADE PAYABLES ( CURRENT) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

49.77            -                 

437.71          1,980.87        

Total
487.48          1,980.87        

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2024 (Rs.in lacs)

         49.77              49.77 

       311.46                63.90                     3.39               8.97                 49.99            437.71 

              -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

              -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

       361.23                63.90                     3.39               8.97                 49.99            487.48 

                   -   

           487.48 

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2023 (Rs.in lacs)

              -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

       400.23           1,514.22                   10.32             11.93                 44.17         1,980.87 

              -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

              -                       -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

       400.23           1,514.22                   10.32             11.93                 44.17         1,980.87 

                   -   

        1,980.87 

15 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Current maturities of long term debt

     - Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 292.55          288.41           

     - Others 2,454.97       3,172.21        

Interest accrued and due on borrowings -                -                 

Sundry Creditors (Others) 653.65          1,118.66        

Due to Directors 6.00              50.15             

Customer Advances & Deposits 317.82          427.16           

Direct/Indirect Taxes payable 212.81          490.11           

Other Liabilities 131.41          269.11           

Total 4,069.21       5,815.81        

16 PROVISIONS ( CURRENT) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Provision for taxation -                0.85               

Total -               0.85               

Not Due as 

on 

31.03.2024

Less Than 1 

year

1-2 Years

Less Than 1 

year

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 23rd July 2007 issued zero coupon unsecured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds ("FCCB") 

aggregating to USD 10 Million at par. During the financial year 2010-11 the "FCCB" of the face value of USD 97,60,000 had been bought back by the company 

at a discount of 24% to the face value of the "FCCB" and subsequently a notice was given to the Clearing Houses, through the Trustees, requesting communication 

with the bondholders of the balance 24 bonds of the face value of USD 240000. However, no response has been received and no claimant has come forth on the 

redemption date 24th July 2012 and till date. The premium payable on the redemption of the "FCCB" has been provided for. 

Total Trade Payable

Total

1-2 Years 2-3 Years

Note : There are  no dues pending for the Micro and  Small Enterprises hence disclosures required under section 22 of MSME Development 

Act,2006 are not required.

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(A) Dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises

(B) Dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises

Total Trade Payable

More than 3 

Years

Total

Total

Less : Unbilled Dues

2-3 Years

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due as 

on 

31.03.2023

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

More than 3 

Years

Total

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

Less : Unbilled Dues

Trade Payables
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Net Sale of products 14,508.07     13,280.27      

Total 14,508.07     13,280.27      

18 OTHER INCOME (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Rental Income 9.70              7.08               

Interest Income 28.77            14.55             

Miscellaneous Receipts 4.39              3.87               

Profit on Sale of Assets -               0.09               

Other non-operating income 1,300.00       -                

Total 1,342.86       25.59             

19 COST OF MATERIALS  CONSUMED (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Opening Stock of Raw Materials 754.65          965.06           

Add : Purchases during the year 3,875.35       4,829.84        

4,630.00       5,794.90        

Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials 863.89          754.65           

Consumption of Raw Materials-(a) 3,766.11       5,040.25        

Opening Stock of Accessories 776.84          513.84           

Add : Purchases during the year 2,390.86       2,863.97        

3,167.70       3,377.81        

Less: Stock Transfer on slump sale -                -                 

Less: Closing Stock of Accessories 997.05          776.84           

Consumption of Accessories-(b) 2,170.65       2,600.97        

Opening Stock of Packing Material 150.38          144.34           

Add : Purchases during the year 242.67          255.56           

393.05          399.90           

Less: Closing Stock of Packing Material 205.91          150.38           

Consumption of Packing Material- (c) 187.14          249.52           

Total 6,123.90       7,890.74        

20 (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Opening Stock

- Work-in-Progress 1,785.77       1,665.43        

- Finished Goods 1,357.16       1,105.68        

Sub-total (a) 3,142.93       2,771.11        

Transfer of Stock in Slump Sale

- Work-in-Progress -                -                 

- Finished Goods -                -                 

Sub-total (b) -               -                

Closing Stock  

- Work-in-Progress 1,303.22       1,785.77        

- Finished Goods 1,320.47       1,357.16        

Sub-total (c) 2,623.69       3,142.93        

Total ( a-b-c) 519.24          (371.82)         

21 (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Salaries, wages and bonus. 1,434.95       1,476.22        

Contributions to Provident fund & Other Funds 41.92            30.39             

Staff welfare expenses 31.65            34.57             

Total 1,508.52       1,541.18        

CHANGES OF INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS , WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Rs.in lacs)

GRATUITY (FUNDED)

 2023-24  2022-23 

1.Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

a) Defined Benefit obligation, beginning of period 153.40            76.06             

b) Interest Cost on DBO 11.23              5.58               

c) Net Current Service Cost 13.05              16.58             

d) Actual Plan Participants' Contributions -                 -                

e) Benefits Paid (6.16)               (1.27)             

f) Past Service Cost -                 -                

g) Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates -                 -                

h) Acquisition / Bussiness Combination / Divestiture -                 -                

i) Losses / (Gains) on Curtailments / Settlements -                 -                

j) Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation (40.16)             56.45             

k) Defined Benefit Obligation, End of Period 131.36            153.40           

2. Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 30.73              28.56             

b) Expected return on plan asstes 2.25                2.10               

c) Employer contribution 2.00                2.00               

d) LIC Charges (1.23)               (0.52)             

e) Actual Plan Participants' Contributions -                 -                

f ) Actual Taxes Paid -                 -                

g) Actual Administration Expenses Paid -                 -                

h) Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates -                 -                

i) Benefits Paid (6.15)               (1.27)             

j) Acquisition / Business Combination / Divestiture -                

k) Assets Extinguished on Curtailments /Settlements -                

l)Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Asset (0.68)               (0.12)             

m) Fair value of plan assets at the end. 26.92              30.75             

3. Net Defined Benefit Cost / (Income) included in Statement of Profit & Loss at Period-End

a) Service Cost 13.05              16.58             

b) Net Interest Cost 8.98                3.49               

c) Past service Cost -                 -                

d) Administration Expenses -                 -                

e)(Gain)/Loss due to settlements / Curtailments / Terminations / Divestitures -                 -                

f) Total Defined Benefit Cost /(Income) included in Profit & Loss 22.03              20.07             

4. Analysis of Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive (Income) / Loss at Period - End

a) Amount recognized in OCI, (Gain)/ Loss Beginning of Period 27.75              (28.83)           

b) Remeasurements Due to : -                 -                

1. Effect of Change in Financial Assumptions 1.88                0.27               

2. Effect of Change in Demographic Assumptions 0.07                -                

3. Effect of Experience Adjustments (42.11)             56.18             

4. (Gain) / Loss on Curtailments / Settlements -                 -                

5. Return on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest) 0.68                0.12               

6. Change in Assets Celling -                 -                

c) Total Remeasurements Recognized in OCI (Gain) / Loss (39.48)             56.57             

d) Amount Recognized in OCI (Gain) / Loss, End of Period (11.73)             27.74             

5. Total Defined Benefit Cost/(Income) included in Profit & Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

a) Amount recognized in P&L , End of Period 22.03              20.06             

b) Amount recognized in OCI , End of Period (39.48)             56.58             

c) Total Net Defined Benefit Cost/(Income) Recognized at Period-End (17.45)             76.64             

6. Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Amount

a) Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability, Beginning of Period 122.66            47.50             

b) True-up -                 -                

c) Total Charge / (Credit) Recognised in Profit and Loss 22.03              20.06             

d) Total Remeasurements Recognised in OC (Income)/Loss (39.48)             56.58             

e) Acquisition / Business Combination/Divestiture -                 -                

f) Employer Contribution (2.00)               (2.00)             

g) LIC Charges 1.23                0.52               

h) Benefits Paid -                 -                

i) Other Events -                 -                

j) Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability, End of Period 104.44            122.66           

-                                                                                                                                    

Defined Benefit Plan
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Rs.in lacs)

 2023-24  2022-23 

7. Actual Return on Plan Assets

a) Expected return on Plan Assets 2.25              2.10               

b) Remeasurement on Plan Assets (0.68)            (0.12)             

c) Actual Return on Plan Assets 1.57              1.98               

8. Change in the Unrecognised Asset due to the Asset Ceiling During the Period

a) Unrecognised Asset, Beginning of Period -               -                

b) Interest on Unrecognised Asset Recognised in P&L -               -                

c) Other Changes in Unrecognised Asset due to the Asset Ceiling -               -                

d) Unrecognised Asset, End of Period -               -                

9.The Major Categories of Plan Assets

a) Government of India Securities (Central and State) -               -                

b) High Quality Corporate Bonds (Including Public Sector Bonds) -               -                

c) Equity Shares of Listed Companies -               -                

d)Cash (including Bank Balance, Special Deposit Scheme) -               -                

e)Funds Managed by Insurer 100% 100%

f)Others -               -                

Total 100% 100%

10.Current / Non Current Bifurcation

a) Current Liability 18.17            27.44             

b) Non-Current Liability 113.19          125.96           

c) Net Liability 131.36          153.40           

(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS
GRATUITY  

(FUNDED)

11.Defined Benefit Obligation by Participant Status

a) Actives 131.36          

b) Vested Deferreds

c) Retirees

d) Total Defined Benefit Obligation 131.36          

(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS
GRATUITY  

(FUNDED)

12. Sensitivity Analysis

a) Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate + 100 Basis Points (9.38)            

b) Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate - 100 Basis Points 10.82            

c) Defined Benefit Obligation - Salary Escalation Rate + 100 Basis Points 10.72            

d) Defined Benefit Obligation - Salary Escalation Rate -100 Basis Points (9.47)            

13. Expected company contributions for next year is Rs. 140.28 lacs.

(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS
GRATUITY  

(FUNDED)

14. Expected Cashflows for the Next Ten Years 31-03-24

a) Year - 2025 18.49            

b) Year - 2026 3.78              

c) Year - 2027 25.02            

d) Year - 2028 11.45            

e) Year - 2029 to 2033 17.30            

f) Year - 2030 to 2034 144.73          

-               

22 FINANCE COSTS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Interest to Banks 950.12          984.20           

Interest to Others 389.14          491.93           

Finance charges 31.36            84.98             

Bank charges 1.15              1.60               

Total 1,371.77       1,562.71        

-                                                                                                                                    

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

GRATUITY (FUNDED)
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

23 OTHER EXPENSES (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Consumption of stores and spare parts. 8.09                15.52             

Power and fuel 539.51            581.44           

Repairs to buildings 164.45            -                 

Repairs to machinery 38.44              47.84             

Repair & Maintenance -Others 56.68              23.82             

Outside Job work Expenses 24.69              39.53             

Fee & Registration 44.81              7.01               

Donation 0.02                0.03               

Rent 1.18                39.00             

Insurance 21.03              24.96             

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 69.34              39.41             

Postage & Telephones 13.75              18.06             

Printing & Stationery 7.23                9.59               

Legal & Professional charges 62.28              28.73             

Electricity & Water Expenses 18.13              16.21             

Auditors' remuneration 3.08                3.08               

Rates & Taxes 25.16              -                 

Miscellaneous expenses 54.40              36.86             

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 40.43              -                 

Advertisement 3.39                1.27               

Business Promotion Expenses 50.31              40.03             

Net loss on Foreign Currency Transactions -                  -                 

Freight & Octroi 76.28              94.58             

Provision for Doubtful Debts -                  -                 

Discounts 276.33            596.38           

Damaged Goods 13.37              17.49             

Total
1,612.38         1,680.84        

23.1 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS AS FOLLOWS: (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

For Audit fee 1.75                1.70               

For Tax Audit 0.75                0.55               

In other capacity 0.58                0.83               

Total 3.08                3.08               

24 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS GAINS / (LOSS) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange fluctuation (4.13)               (22.87)           

(Debit)/Credit balances written off (174.57)           0.03               

Total
(178.70)           (22.84)           

25 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

613.83            (446.66)         

290,281,150   19,208,115    

362,931,150   19,208,115    

0.21                (2.33)             

0.17                (2.33)             

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating basic 

EPS 

(i) Total Comprehensive Income attributable to Equity Shareholders 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating diluted 

EPS 

(iv) Basic Earnings Per share (Rs ) 

(v) Diluted Earnings Per share (Rs) 

 For the year ended 
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NOTES ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

26  Contingencies and Commitments  : (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(I) Contingent Liabilities

a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:

72.03 68.06

b) Guarantees:

38.57 40.30

-               -                

2,773.38       2,493.38        

(II) Commitments

4.         Related Party Disclosures:

(I) Relationships

(a)  Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Name of Person Remarks

Mr. Rajan Handa             -

Mrs. Mamta Handa             -

Mr. Rishab Handa
            -

Mr. Raghav Handa             -

Dr. Rajan Wadhera             -

Mrs. Meenu Goswami             -

(b) Subsidiary Company

     

(c) Significant influence of Key Management Personnel of the company 

Company Name Relationship

Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

2.  In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances shown in the Balance Sheet have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of 

business atleast equal to the amount stated therein. The provision for all known liabilities has been made and is adequate. 

Designation

Managing Director

(i) Guarantees given to banks as counter guarantees for performance of contracts

* The Company has aquired interest in MRH Technologies  Private Limited w.e.f . 21st November, 2023

(ii) For the Assessment Year 2017-18 the Assessing Officer raised an Income Tax Demand 

of Rs.1181.96 lacs against which the Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A), Gurgaon-

I. The Company has also paid Rs.48.67 lacs against the above demand raised.

(ii)       Letter of credit issued by banks

KMP

KMP

(i) Claims against the Company, where legal cases are under way, but not acknowledged as 

debts 

Whole Time Director

Whole Time Director & 

CFO

(iii)     Corporate Guarantee  given as security for the credit limits sanctioned by a bank to 

the subsidiary company, OK Play Auto Private Limited.

Wholly owned Subsidiary Company *

Company Secretary

The amount assessed as contingent liability does not include interest that could be claimed by the counter parties.

Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

Relationship

Cautious Exim Private Limited Significant Influence of KMP

OK Play Healthcare Private Limited Significant Influence of KMP

Whole Time Director

Whole Time Director

KMP

RMRS Electric Vehicles Private Limted

c) Other money for which the company is contingently liable:

Isht Technologies Private Limited Wholly owned Subsidiary Company **

KMP

Relationship

Significant Influence of KMP

** The Company has made divestment of interest in Isht Technologies Private Limited , subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 22nd December, 2023

Isht Technologies Private Limited Wholly owned Subsidiary Company *

Briskit Technology Private Limited Significant Influence of KMP

Company Name

KMP 

1. The Company does not have any capital contracts remaining to be executed hence there is no capital commitment at the end of the year (Previous Year – Nil)

3 . All the operations of the company are considered as a single business segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

OK Play Auto Private Limited

RIRA E-Vehicles Private Limited

MRH Technologies Private Limited

KMP

(i)  Security, in the form of charge on the properties and Residual value of Block assets, present and future, after netting the prime security for term loans, provided 

to a bank for the credit limits sanctioned by it to the subsidiary company, OK Play Auto Private Limited.
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(II)    (a) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (I)(a) above, in ordinary course of business:

Related Parties (Referred in (I) (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

a) Remuneration paid 445.92 445.23

b) Short term credit from Directors -               -                

c) Post-Retirement Benefits paid -               -                

 (b) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (I)(b) above, in ordinary course of business: (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Sales 1,458.86       480.68           

ii) Purchases 2,996.34       293.13           

iii) Rent 6.97              5.40               

iv) Receipt of Cross Charge as per Terms agreed 1,300.00       -                 

v)Corporate Guarantees given ( By Holding to Subsidiary and vice versa) 14,314.38     13,559.38      

(c) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (I)(c) above, in ordinary course of business: (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Payments to Third Parties -                -                 

ii) Rent 2.73              1.68               

d) Corporate Guarantees given by Parent to Subsidiary and vice versa : (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Corporate Guarantee given by Parent for Subsidiary 2,773.38       2,493.38        

ii) Corporate Guarantee given by Subsidiary for Parent 11,541.00     11,066.00      

(III)   Balance Outstanding at the end of the year (Rs.in lacs)

Related Party  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 Receivable  Payable  Receivable  Payable 

i) Key Management Personnel 6.94              51.66             

ii) OK Play Auto Private Limited 358.14          451.58           

iii) RIRA E-Vehicles Private Limited 1,874.81             1,730.72           

iv) MRH Technologies Private Limited 3.11                    -                   

v) Isht Technologies Private Limited 0.81                    0.04                  

vi) RMRS Electric Vehicles Private Limited 6.08                    5.13                  

vii) OK Play Healthcare Private Limited 20.80                  9.73               

viii) Briskit Technology Private Limited 0.25                    

6 . TAXATION

Income Tax Recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss (Rs.in lacs)

Particulars

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Current Tax -                -                 

ii) Deferred Tax/(Credit) 166.24          397.77           

iii) Provision of Tax of earlier years / (written back) -                -                 

iv) Total Income Tax expenses /(income) recognized in the current year 166.24          397.77           

The Income Tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: (Rs.in lacs)

Particulars

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Profit Before Tax 740.59          7.69               

Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%

Computed Tax Expense (a) 186.39 1.94

Tax effect of:

Exempted Income  / Allowable deductions (b) 1,685.03       1,608.62        

Expenses disallowed ( c) 218.76 205.01

Balance (a-b+c) (1,279.87)     (1,401.67)      

Current Tax Provision (R/off)”A” Nil Nil

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

 For the year ended 

5. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(IV) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

 For the year ended 
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Rs.in lacs)

Particulars

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

a) Deferred Tax Liability 1,057.67       1,012.19        

b) Deferred Tax Asset 1,313.80       1,434.56        

c) Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability at year end,  c=(a-b) (256.13)        (422.37)         

d) Less: Opening Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability (422.37)        (820.14)         

B ) Deferred Tax Provision “B” =(c-d) 166.24          397.77           

C) Provision of Tax of earlier years / (written back) -                -                 

Total Expenses / (Income) recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss  (B + C) 166.24          397.77           

7. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Rs.in lacs)

Particulars  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Categorization of Financial Instruments

A Financial assets at amortized cost 

Non-Current

Investments 4,821.25       4,820.35        

Loans 108.58          67.96             

Other Financial Assets 27.19            17.98             

Current

Trade Receivables 1,606.86       3,149.76        

Cash and Cash Equivalents 208.74          106.71           

Other Financial Assets 1,926.91       21.13             

B  Financial liabilities at amortized Cost

Non-Current

Borrowings 4,456.99       6,959.32        

Other Financial Liabilities 358.14          451.58           

Current

Borrowings 2,805.91       2,856.60        

Trade Payables 487.48          1,980.87        

(i)              Foreign Currency Risk

All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate at reporting date.

The following table shows foreign currency exposures on financial instruments at the end of the reporting year.

Particulars  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 In USD  Rs.in lacs  In USD  Rs.in lacs 

Loans 351,000             292.55          351,000           288.41           

Trade and Other Payables -                    -                -                  -                 

Net Exposure 351,000             292.55          351,000           288.41           

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Since the net foreign currency exposure is not substantial, the foreign currency sensitivity is not material at the reporting date. 

(ii)            Interest Rate Risk 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities means the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants. Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current financial 

assets, current borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities have been valued at their carrying amounts as this largely 

approximate to its fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

 For the year ended 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest 

rate. Since the company’s borrowings which are affected by interest rate fluctuation is very insignificant to the size and operations of the company, 

therefore, a change in interest rate risk does not have a material impact on the company’s financial statements in relation to fair value of financial 

instruments.

9. The Company’s Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. Below note 

explains the risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and related on financials, if any. 

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the company will be able to continue as going concern through efficient allocation of capital 

towards expansion of business and optimization of working capital requirements. The management of the company reviews the capital structure of 

the company on regular basis.

Foreign Currency Exposure 

 For the year ended 
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(iii)           Credit Risk

(iv)           Liquidity Risk

10 Additional Regulatory Information

(i) Capital -Work- in progress (CWIP) 

a) Capital Work in Progress ageing Schedule

                    -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

                    -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

                     -                          -                     -                        -                      -   

(ii)

(iii)

Current Year Previous Year

(i) Current Ratio [a/b] 1.56                 0.92                    69.4%

Current Assets a 11,609.91        9,788.17             

Current Liabilities b 7,458.27          10,654.13           

(ii) Debt-Equity Ratio [a/b] 0.73                 3.28                    -77.9%

Total Borrowings a 9,717.87          12,988.13           

Shareholder's Fund b 13,402.64        3,956.12             

(iii) Debt Service Coverage Ratio [a/b] 0.93                 0.57                    64.7%

Earning available for Debt Services (  EBITDA) a 2,957.23          2,302.77             

Debt Obligations:

Instalments 3,172.21          3,792.95             

Interest Expense -                  276.39                

Total Debt Service b 3172.21 4069.34

(iv) Return on Equity [a/b] 6.6% -9.3% -170.9%

Profit after Tax a 574.35            (390.08)              

Opening Shareholders Fund b(i) 3,956.12          4,402.78             

Closing Shareholders Fund b(ii) 13,402.64       3,956.12            

Average Shareholders Fund b((i+ii)/2) 8,679.38         4,179.45            

(v) Inventory Turnover Ratio [a/b] 178.1% 152.6% 16.7%

Cost of Goods Sold a 9,594.09 7,758.23

Opening Inventory b(i) 5,391.21          4,777.14             

Closing Inventory b(ii) 5,382.59         5,391.21            

Average Inventory b((i+ii)/2) 5,386.90         5,084.18            

(vi) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio [a/b] 6.10                 4.54                    34.4%

Revenue from Sale of Goods & Services a 14,508.07 13,280.27

Average Trade Receivables b 2,378.31          2,927.03             

(vii) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio [a/b] 7.66                 4.33                    77.2%

Purchases a 9,459.83 8,188.68

Average Trade Payables b 1,234.18          1,892.87             

(viii) Net Capital Turnover Ratio [a/b] 3.49                 -15.34                -122.8%

Revenue from Sale of Goods & Services a 14,508.07 13,280.27

Working Capital = ( Current Assets - Current Liabilities) b 4,151.64         (865.96)              

(ix) Net Profit Ratio [a/b] 4.0% -2.9% -234.8%

Profit for the year a 574.35 -390.08

Revenue from Sale of Goods & Services b 14,508.07        13,280.27           

More than 3 

Years

Total

Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. Financial 

instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risks, principally consist of balance with banks, trade receivables, loans and advances. 

None of the financial instruments of the company result in material concentrations of credit risks.

The company manages liquidity risk through banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. 

Total

CWIP

b) There is no Capital -Work in Progress whose Completion is Overdue or has exceeded its cost compaired to its original plan.

Project temporarily suspended

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Project in Progress

Less Than 1 

year

1-2 Years

Increased due to Increase in cost 

of goods sold due to increase in 

the business, and stock is 

increase gradually

(Rs.in lacs except for Ratio)

Explanation for significant 

change

Increased due to increase in 

Current Assets and decrease in 

Current Liabilities

Reduced due to Increase in 

shareholder equity and decrease 

in total borrowing.

Increased due to increase in 

Operating profit during the year  

and  decrease in debt of the 

company.

Increased due to increase in net 

profit of the Company and 

increase in Shareholder Fund

Increased due to Increase in 

turnover of company and 

decrease in Trade Receivables

Increased due to Increase in 

purchase of company and 

decrease in Trade Payables

Increased due to Increase in 

turnover of company and 

increase in working capital

Increased due to Increase in net 

profit  and turnover of company

2-3 Years

The Company has filed all quarterly returns with banks and all of these statements are in agreement with books of accounts

Disclosure of Ratios:

Following disclosure are made in relation to the Ratios to be disclosed as per Schedule-III

 % Change 

During the 

Year 
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(x) Return on Capital Employed [a/b] 11.1% 12.8% -13.3%

Earning before Tax 740.59            7.69                   

Add: Interest to Banks 950.12 984.20

Add : Interest to Others 389.14 491.93

Operating Profit (EBIT) a 2,079.85         1,483.82

Total Assets 26,174.80 22,226.52

Less : Total Current Liabilities 7,458.27 10,654.13

Capital Employed b 18,716.53 11,572.39

(xi) Return on Investment

(a) From Quoted  Equity Instruments [a/b] -                 -                    N.A

Dividend Income a -                 -                    

Average Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments b -                 -                    

(b) From Unquoted Investments [a/b] -                 -                    N.A

Investment Income (Including Capital Gain / Loss) a -                 -                    

Average Unquoted Investments b -                 -                    

Note :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN:24536759BKCKNF2496

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) liability is not applicable to the company.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds ) by the Company to or in 

any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding , whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the 

intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries .

Reduced due to Increase in profit 

before tax and increase in capital 

employed of the Company

 N.A

 N.A

There's no transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts and disclosed or surrendered as income during the year in the tax assessments under 

the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company is in compliance with the regulation as to the number of layers of companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Restoration on number of Layers) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition ) Act, 1988 (43 of 

1988) and the rules made thereunder.

As per information available with the Management, the Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under  Section 248 of the Companies Act 

, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties) , with the understanding , whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person(s) or entity(ies) identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Funding Party ( Ultimate Beneficaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

There was no charge or satisfaction , which is yet to be registered with concerned Registrar of Companies, beyond the period permitted under the Companies Act, 

2013.

The Company has made divestment of interest in Isht Technologies Private Limited,  Wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 22nd December, 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of  

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED (CIN: L28219HR1988PLC030347) 

 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of OK PLAY INDIA 

LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company’), its subsidiaries (the Holding 

Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the ‘Group’) and its associate comprising of 

the consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and 

Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the 

consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the ‘consolidated financial statements’).  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 

and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and 

on the other financial information of the subsidiaries and its associate, the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the 

‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its 

associate as at 31 March 2024, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, 

their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 

financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associate in 

accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated. 

 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Chairman’s letter, Management 

Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance and Directors’ Report, but does not include the 

consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 

inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management for the consolidated financial statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of 

these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true 

and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including 

other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in 

equity of the Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 

133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are 

responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act for safeguarding the assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 

and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding 

Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 

companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of 

their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so. 

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate 

are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies. 
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We are also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 

Group and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related 

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 

and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group and its associate of which we are the 

independent auditors and whose financial information we have audited, to express an 

opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities 

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which 

have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 

direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain 

solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements: 

c) The company has an amount of Rs. 1850.29 Lacs (PY – Rs. 1749.96 Lacs) outstanding 

under Advances to others. This amount pertains to the advances given to parties for 

supply of goods and services. Out of this amount, the balance receivable includes Rs 

399.73 Lacs from parties which are outstanding for a long time. The management has 

represented that the amount of advances has been reduced significantly in the current 

year and is confident that such advances are recoverable/adjustable and that no accrual 

of diminution in value of trade receivable is considered necessary as at 31st March, 

2024. We have relied on the documents submitted by the management in respect of 

recoverability of the receivable, external confirmations received and the management’s 

internal assessment and representation in this matter. 

 

d) The company has total receivable of Rs. 2557.38.05 Lacs (PY Rs 1610.05 Lacs) which 

includes trade receivables, advances etc. The management has represented that the 

provision created for the doubtful receivable is sufficient considering the recoverability 

of the assets. The management, based on internal assessment and evaluations, has also 

represented that the significant portion of such trade receivable and advances are 

recoverable/adjustable and that no additional accrual of diminution in value of trade 

receivable is therefore necessary as at 31st March 2024. We have relied on the 

documents submitted by the management in respect of recoverability of the receivable, 

external confirmation received and the management internal assessment and the 

representation in this matter. 

 

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

 

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’ or ‘CARO’), 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 

the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on 

separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary 

companies, incorporated in India, there are no matters which require reporting as 
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specified as in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order. 

 

4. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of 

report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial 

information of subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we 

report, to the extent applicable, that: 

 

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained 

all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation 

of the aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors. 

Insofar as the modification on maintaining an audit trail in the accounting 

software is concerned in respect of the Holding Company and one subsidiary, 

which is company incorporated in India, refer paragraph (i) (vi) below. 

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated 

Statement of Cash Flows and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained 

for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Ind-AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the 

Holding Company as on 31 March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors 

of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are 

appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the 

directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on 31 

March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 

Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 

companies incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 

refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure 1’ to this report.  

(g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors 

of the subsidiaries incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year 

ended 31 March 2024 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company and its 

subsidiaries incorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other 

auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of 

the subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph: 

vii.   The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending 

litigations on its consolidated financial position of the Group and its 

associate in its consolidated financial statements – Refer note 26 to the 

consolidated financial statements; 

viii.   The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses 

in long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year 
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ended 31 March 2024: 

ix.   There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the 

year ended 31 March 2024 

x.  (d)  The respective managements of the Holding Company and its 

subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial 

statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and 

the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, and read with note 45(g) to the consolidated 

financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 

kind of funds by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or 

in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 

(‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of 

such subsidiaries (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 (e)  The respective managements of the Holding Company and its 

subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial 

statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and 

the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, and read with note 45(h) to the consolidated 

financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective 

Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person or entity, 

including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or 

any of such subsidiaries, shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and 

 (f)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances performed by us, which are companies 

incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under 

the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused 

us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-

clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

xi.   No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding 

Company and its subsidiaries companies. 

xii.   Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has 

used accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording 

audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the 

year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software’s. Further, 

during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the 

audit trail feature being tampered with.  
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 

applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit 

trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 

applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

 

For J MADAN & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 025913N 

     

 

Naveen Kumar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 536759 

 

UDIN: 24536759BKCKNE9608 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 09th April 2024 
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Annexure 1 to Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on other legal and regulatory 

requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of OK PLAY INDIA 

LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company’) as of and for the year ended 31 

March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 

financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its 

subsidiaries together referred to as the ‘Group’), which are companies incorporated in India, as of 

that date. 

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies 

incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls 

with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) 

of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 

consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the 

other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial 

controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 
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Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to 

consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

  (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 

a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 

financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 

with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all 

material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 

were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

 

For J MADAN & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 025913N 

     

 

Naveen Kumar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 536759 

UDIN: 24536759BKCKNE9608 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 09th April 2024 
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(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS Note No.  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant, and Equipment 2 ( a )         9,426.11        7,738.46 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 ( b )              52.44             52.44 

(c) Intangible assets 2 ( c )         3,838.16        4,132.30 

(d) ROU assets 2 ( d )            370.39                   -   

(e) Financial Assets

      (ia) Loans / Security deposits 3(ia) 164.83           124.21          

      (ii) Other financial assets 3(ii) 31.77             22.16            

(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 15.78             340.02          

Total Non - Current Assets 13,899.48      12,409.59     

Current assets:

(a) Inventories 5 7,976.77        7,557.47       

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 6 2,557.38        1,610.05       

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 217.29           116.62          

(iii) Other financial assets 8 59.19             44.28            

(c) Other current assets 9 4,086.44        2,168.79       

Total Current Assets 14,897.07      11,497.21     

TOTAL ASSETS 28,796.55      23,906.80     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 10 2,902.81        1,919.60       

(b) Other Equity 11 8,398.84        1,708.88       

(c) Money Received against Share Warrants 1,280.54        -                

(c) Non Controlling Interest                   -   

Total Equity 12,582.19      3,628.48       

Non-Current Liabilities:

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12A 4,523.31        7,199.51       

 (ia) Lease Liability            310.36                   -   

(ii) Other financial liabilities -                -                

(b) Provisions 13 188.40           205.37          

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4                   -                     -   

Total Non - Current Liabilities 5,022.07        7,404.88       

Current liabilities:

(a) Financial liabilities

    (i) Borrowings 12B 3,234.73        3,438.22       

    (ii) Lease Liability              95.67 

    (iii) Trade payables 14

             - Dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 139.49           -                

              -Dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 1,783.52        2,497.88       

(b) Other current liabilities 15 5,856.89        6,893.06       

(c) Provisions 16 81.99             44.28            

Total Current Liabilities 11,192.29      12,873.44     

TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,214.36      20,278.32     

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 28,796.55      23,906.80     

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 2 to 26

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN : 24536759BKCKNE9608

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH , 2024  
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(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  Note 

 No.  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

INCOME

Revenue from operations 17 18,456.06      18,145.19     

Other income 18 39.47             24.18            

Total Income 18,495.53      18,169.37     

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 19 9,713.78        10,864.79     

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade              88.84             30.22 

20            565.44          (398.95)

Employee benefits expense 21 2,266.24        2,065.10       

Finance costs 22 1,488.65        1,715.24       

Depreciation and amortization expense 2         1,332.84        1,221.46 

Other expenses 23 2,377.14        2,363.40       

Total expenses 17,832.93      17,861.26     

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax            662.60           308.11 

Exceptional items - Gains/ (Loss ) 24          (178.70)            (22.84)

Profit/(Loss) before tax            483.90           285.27 

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax              38.68               0.11 

(2) Deferred tax charge/(Credit)             324.24           479.22 

(3) Provision of Tax of earlier years/( written back)                7.78               1.71 

Profit / (Loss) for the 

year

           113.20          (195.77)

Other Comprehensive 

Income

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of Profit and Loss:

    Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans              39.48            (56.58)

    Income tax effect                   -                     -   

Net other comprehensive income              39.48            (56.58)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year            152.68          (252.35)

Profit/(Loss) 

attributable to :

    a) Owner of OK Play India Ltd            113.20          (195.46)

    b) Non Controlling Interest                   -                (0.31)

c) Total Profit : ( a +b)            113.20          (195.77)

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) attributable to 

a) Owner of OK Play India Ltd              39.48            (56.58)

b) Non Controlling Interest                   -                     -   

c) Total Other Comprehensive Income (a+b)              39.48            (56.58)

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to : 

    a) Owner of OK Play India Ltd            152.68          (252.04)

    b) Non Controlling Interest                   -                (0.31)

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 1 each(Fy23-24) & Rs.10 each (Fy22-23)

(1) Basic ( in Rs.) 25                0.05              (1.31)

(2) Diluted  ( in Rs.)                0.04              (1.31)

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 2 to 26

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN : 24536759BKCKNE9608

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- progress and Stock-

in-Trade

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
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(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 483.88          285.27          

Adjustments to reconcile profit & Loss to net cash provided by operating activites  :

Effect of earlier year lease amortisation (49.08)           

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1,434.89       1,221.46       

Loss/( Profit ) on sale of Assets 40.43            (0.09)             

Interest Received (31.50)           (17.40)           

Finance Costs 1,488.66       1,715.24       

Deferred Revenue Expenditure written off

Re-measurement Gains/(Losses) on defined benefit plans 39.48            (56.58)           

Provision for Doubtful Debts -                -               

Exchange Fluctuation Loss/(Gain) 4.13              22.84            

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 3,410.89       3,170.74       

Net Changes in :

Trade and Other Receivables (947.33)         (336.66)         

Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets (9.61)             (0.84)             

Current Assets - Other Financial Assets (14.92)           (33.58)           

Inventories (419.30)         (860.99)         

Trade and Other Payables (888.33)         96.52            
 

Cash generated from operations 1,131.40       2,035.19       

Direct taxes paid (8.63)             (25.86)           

Net Cash from Operating Activities 1,122.77       2,009.33       

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Fixed Assets (3,364.01)      (827.75)         

Sale of Fixed Assets 124.79          35.78            

Interest Received 31.50            17.40            

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (3,207.72)      (774.57)         

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital 7,569.48       (11.82)           

Allotment/Share Warrants money received 1,280.54       

Investments made

Loans & Advances paid (1,958.27)      74.18            

Deferred Revenue Expenses

Finance Costs (1,488.66)      (1,715.24)      

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings (3,109.66)      1,012.87       

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (107.81)         (647.32)         

Net Cash used in Financing Activities 2,185.62       (1,287.33)      

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 100.67          (52.57)           

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st April,2023 116.62          169.19          

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March,2024 217.29          116.62          

(Refer Note #7 for breakup of Cash and Cash Equivalent component)

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN : 24536759BKCKNE9608

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
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(Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 Capital 

Reserve

Share  

Premium 

General 

Reserve 

Retained 

Earnings

1,919.60  1,725.23   2,436.06    15.24        (2,440.77)         (26.88)           1,708.88     3,628.48       

-          -            -             -            -                   -                -              -               

-          -            -             -            -                   -                -              -               

-          -            6,586.01    -            -                   -                6,586.01     6,586.01       

-          -            -             -            -                   -                -              -               

-          -             -            (49.08)              39.48            (9.60)           (9.60)             
-            113.56              113.56        113.56          

1,919.60  1,725.23   9,022.07    15.24         (2,376.29)         12.60            8,398.85     10,318.45     

1,919.60  1,725.23    2,436.06     15.24         -2,241.45          29.70             1,964.78     3,884.38       

-              -               

-              -               
-            -             -            -                    -                -              -               

-          -            -             -            (3.39)                (56.58)           (59.97)         (59.97)           

-            -             -            (195.93)            -                (195.93)       (195.93)         

1,919.60  1,725.23    2,436.06    15.24         (2,440.77)         (26.88)           1,708.88     3,628.48       

NOTES ON CHANGES IN EQUITY

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(a) Capital Reserve : The Group recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's equity instruments to capital reserve.

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN : 24536759BKCKNE9608

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due 

to prior period errors

Balance as at 31st March 2024

Balance as at 1st April 2022

Profit & Loss for the Period

Dividend Paid

Restated balance at the beginning of 

the current reporting period

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

Changes in Equity Share Capital due 

to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of 

the current reporting period

Changes in equity during the year

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Equity 

Share 

Capital

Reserves and Surplus Other 

Comprehensi

ve  Income 

Total 

Total  Equity 

& Other 

Equity

Balance as at 1st April 2023

Remeasurement of the net defined 

benefit liability/ assets (net of tax)

Changes in equity during the year

Dividend Paid

Remeasurement of the net defined 

benefit liability/ assets (net of tax)

(b) Share Premium : Share Premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

(c) General Reserve : The General Reserve is a free reserve which is used to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the 

Genreal Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the 

General Reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit & Loss.

(d) Retained Earnings : Retained Earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Group.

(e) Other Comprehensive Income : Other Comprehensive Income consists of remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/asset, net of taxes.

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Profit & Loss for the Period
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024 

 

NOTE 1 

(1) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 

the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount: 

i. Certain financial assets and liabilities and 

ii. Defined benefit plans – plan assets 

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared to comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

(2) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 

The consolidated financial statements relate to OK Play India Limited (‘the Company’) and its 

subsidiary companies. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following 

basis: 

a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary Companies are combined on a 

line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, 

expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group 

transactions. 

b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, such 

as inventory and property, plant & equipment, are eliminated in full. 

c) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in the subsidiary and the 

parent’s equity of the subsidiary. 

d) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary, over the net assets at the 

time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiary is recognized in the financial statements as 

Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. 

e) Minority Interest’s share of net profit of consolidated subsidiary for the year is identified 

and adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income 

attributable to shareholders of the Company. 

f) Minority Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiary is identified and 

presented in the consolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the 

Company’s shareholders. 

g) As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform 

accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are 

presented in the same manner as the Company’s standalone financial statements. 

 

(3) Other material accounting policies 

These are set out under “Material Accounting Policies” as given in the Company’s standalone 

financial statements. 

  



 
 

          117 
 

 

 

OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 2: (Rs.in lacs)

As at Additions Deductions Adjustments As at As at Additions Deductions Adjustments As at As at As at

01.04.2023
during the 

year

during the 

year
31.03.2024 01.04.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

NOTE 2(a) PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Land (Freehold) 129.97           -           -              129.97          -              -           -              -             129.97       129.97        

Land (Leasehold) 243.83           -           -              243.83          -              2.46         -              32.02          34.48          209.35       243.83        

Buildings 2,951.39         4.62          -              2,956.01       452.89         61.26       -              514.15        2,441.86     2,498.50     

Plant and Equipment 12,229.96       2,475.67    2,757.30      11,948.33     7,762.52      556.75      2,619.37      5,699.90      6,248.43     4,467.44     

Furnitures & Fixtures 342.15           13.62        152.37         203.40          261.47         13.09       144.75         129.81        73.59         80.68         

Vehicles 706.21           87.47        190.17         603.51          423.52         67.45       179.17         311.80        291.71       282.69        

Office Equipment 274.14           16.55        173.58         117.11          238.80         12.02       164.91         85.91          31.20         35.34         

SUB TOTAL (A) 16,877.65     2,597.93  3,273.42     16,202.16   9,139.20    713.03    3,108.20    32.02         6,776.05    9,426.11   7,738.45   

PREVIOUS YEAR 16,127.16     794.40     43.91          16,877.65   8,485.03    662.72    8.55           9,139.20    7,738.45   7,642.14   

NOTE 2(b) CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 52.44             -           -              52.44           -              -           -              -             52.44         52.44         

SUB TOTAL (B) 52.44            -           -             52.44          -             -          -             -             52.44        52.44        

PREVIOUS YEAR 52.44            -           -             52.44          -             -          -             -             52.44        52.44        

NOTE 2(c) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other Intangible Assets 5,533.59         146.59      139.46         5,540.72       1,448.01      524.00      139.46         1,832.55      3,708.17     4,085.58     

Goodwill 4.67               -           -              4.67             -              -           -              -             4.67           4.67           

Computer software 147.04           91.00        53.93           184.11          104.99         7.73         53.93          58.79          125.32       42.05         

SUB TOTAL (C) 5,685.30       237.59     193.39        5,729.50     1,553.00    531.73    193.39       1,891.34    3,838.16   4,132.30   

PREVIOUS YEAR 5,652.48       33.35       0.53            5,685.30     994.37       558.74    0.11           1,553.00    4,132.30   4,658.13   

NOTE 2(c) ROU ASSETS

ROU Assets -                318.41      -              210.09         528.50          -              88.08       -              70.03          158.11        370.39       -             

SUB TOTAL (D) -                318.41     -             210.09        528.50        -             88.08      -             70.03         158.11       370.39      -            

PREVIOUS YEAR -                -           -             -              -             -          -             -             -            -            

Total [a + b + c + d]  (Current Year) 22,615.39     3,153.93  3,466.81     22,512.60   10,692.20  1,332.84 3,301.59    8,825.50    13,687.10 11,923.19 

Total [a + b + c + d]  (Previous  Year) 21,832.08     827.75     44.44          22,615.39   9,479.40    1,221.46 8.66           10,692.20  11,923.19 12,352.71 

Particulars
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(ia) Loans / Security deposits

( Unsecured, considered good)

Other Loans and Advances 

Earnest money deposit                6.69               6.69 

Security deposits            158.14           117.52 

Total 164.83           124.21          

(ii) Other Financial Assets

( Unsecured, considered good)

Fixed deposits more than 12 months maturity period              31.77             22.16 

Total 31.77             22.16            

4 DEFFERED TAX ASSETS (NET) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Deferred tax liabilities: 

(i) Relating to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets         1,537.24        1,440.78 

(ii) Deferred Revenue Expenditure allowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Total - (A) 1,537.24        1,440.78       

Deferred tax Assets: 

(i)  Disallowance under the Income Tax Act, 1961              33.93             32.89 

(ii) Unabsorbed depreciation/carried forward of losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961         1,519.09        1,747.91 

Total - (B) 1,553.02        1,780.80       

Deferred Tax ( Assets)/ Liabilities  ( A-B) (15.78)           (340.02)         

Net Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liability at the beginning          (340.02)          (815.16)

Less : Op Balance of Subsidiary Company removed                4.08               4.08 

Add: Op Balance of Subsidiary Company added                   -                     -   

Net Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liability at the beginning ( after adjustment)          (344.10)          (819.24)

Charge/(Credits) in Statement of Profit & Loss relating to temporary differences            324.24           479.22 

Net Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liability at the end (19.86)           (340.02)         

5 INVENTORIES (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Raw Materials         1,136.15           985.41 

Work-in-Progress         1,652.38        2,109.08 

Finished Goods         1,068.66        1,125.58 

Stock-in-Trade            624.29           676.12 

Stores & Spares            658.00           476.42 

Packing Materials & 

Accessories

        2,730.59        2,010.62 

Goods-in-transit            106.70           174.24 

Total 7,976.77        7,557.47       

Inventories have been hypothecated to bank for credit facilities availed

6 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good         2,617.38        1,670.05 

Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts            (60.00)            (60.00)

Total 2,557.38        1,610.05       

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2024

    1,870.53         260.93          55.42                 84.05              14.13          332.32        2,617.38 

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

    1,870.53         260.93          55.42                 84.05              14.13          332.32        2,617.38 

            60.00 

       2,557.38 

Total

Less : Provison for doubtful trade 

receivables

Total Trade Receivable

Trade Receivables have been hypothecated to bank for credit facilities availed.

Particulars Not Due as 

on 

31.03.2024

6 months- 1 

year

1-2 Years

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 

have significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - 

considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which 

have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired

2-3 Years More than 3 

Years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 

considered good

Less Than 

6 months
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2023

       389.22         391.08        368.85                 17.79              46.88          456.23        1,670.05 

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                  -                 -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

       389.22         391.08        368.85                 17.79              46.88          456.23        1,670.05 

            60.00 

       1,610.05 

Trade Receivables have been hypothecated to bank for credit facilities availed

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Cash on hand including imprest              17.26             14.86 

Balances with banks :

- In current accounts              32.67            (63.58)

- Fixed Deposits as margin money (maturity upto 12 months)            167.36           165.34 

Total 217.29           116.62          

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS ( CURRENT)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Loans and advances to employees              31.50             44.28 

Receivables from Related Party              27.69                   -   

Total 59.19             44.28            

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Advance to creditors            151.67           112.58 

Advances to Others         1,947.62        1,817.61 

Advances fo Capex            765.00 

Advance Income Tax/TDS/Direct Taxes            253.53           105.92 

Balance With Revenue Authorities (Indirect Taxes)            572.10             32.34 

Prepaid Expenses            396.52           100.34 

Total 4,086.44        2,168.79       

10 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

Authorized capital

Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each ( Rs.10/- each) 400,000,000             4,000.00 40000000        3,000.00 

Total 400000000         4,000.00 40000000        3,000.00 

Issued capital

Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each ( Rs.10/- each) 290,281,150             2,902.81 19264015        1,926.40 

Total 290281150         2,902.81 19264015        1,926.40 

Subscribed and paid-up capital

Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each ( Rs.10/- each) 290,281,150             2,902.81 19208115        1,920.81 

Less: Allotment Money unpaid                   -   24100               1.21 

Total 290281150         2,902.81 19184015        1,919.60 

Total Trade Receivable

Total

Less : Provison for doubtful trade 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - 

considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which 

have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 

considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 

have significant increase in credit risk

Particulars Not Due as 

on 

31.03.2023

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Less Than 

6 months

6 months- 1 

year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(a) Reconciliation of  Number of Equity Shares (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 192081150 1,920.81       19208115        1,920.81 

Add: Shares Issued during the year 98200000 -                -               

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 290281150 1,920.81        19208115 1,920.81       

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

11 OTHER EQUITY (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 Capital 

Reserve

Share  

Premium 

General 

Reserve 

Retained 

Earnings

1,725.23    2,436.06   15.24                (2,440.77)      (26.88)         1,708.88       

6,586.01   6,586.01       

-             -            -                   113.55          -              113.55          

-             -            -                   -              -               

-            -                   (49.08)           -              (49.08)           

39.48          39.48            

1,725.23     9,022.07    15.24                (2,376.30)      12.60          8,398.84       

1,725.23     2,436.06    15.24                (2,241.45)      29.70           1,964.78       

-             -            -                   -              -               
-             -            -                   (195.93)         -              (195.93)         

-             -            -                   -              -               

-             -            -                   (3.39)             -56.58         (59.97)           

-               

1,725.23     2,436.06    15.24                (2,440.77)      (26.88)         1,708.88       

Balance as at the beginning of 1st April 2023

Profit & Loss for the period

Balance as at 31st March 2024

(ii) The Equity Shares of the Company are sub-divided/split with effect from 11th March,2024 i.e. Record Date such that each equity share of face

value of Rs. 10/-each are sub-divided into Ten equity shares of the face value of Rs. 1/- each ranking pari-passu in all respects. This was approved

by the Equity Shareholders through Extra-Ordinary General Meeting on 23rd February 2024. 

(iii) The Company has raised money through Preferential allotment-I of 1,35,30,000 fully convertible warrants at a price of Rs. 60.21/- aggregating to

Rs. 8146.41 lacs during the year ended 31st March, 2024.The company has already received an amount of Rs. 5317.29 lacs and the balance of Rs.

2829.12 lacs will be received within a maximum period of 18 months from the respective date of allotment. The Preferential Issue-I was approved by

Shareholders through Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 25th March, 2023. In Preferential Issue-I, the Compnay has made allotment of

72,65,000 shares pursuant to exercise of option by the warrantholder.

(iv) The Company has raised Rs.3193.75 lacs through Preferential allotment-II of 25,55,000 Equity Shares at the issue price of Rs.125/- and has raised

Rs. 337.50 lacs through Preferential allotment of 10,00,000 Fully Convertible Equity warrants at the issue price of Rs.135/- (which are exercisable at

the option of warrant holder within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment) during the year ended 31st March, 2024. The Preferential Issue-II

was approved by Shareholders through Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 20th December, 2023.

Balance as at the beginning of 1st April 2022

Profit & Loss for the period

Dividend Paid

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/ assets 

(net of tax)

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/ assets 

(net of tax)

Changes in equity during the year

Transfer to General Reserve

Dividend Paid

Changes in equity during the year

Transfer to General Reserve

 Current Year  Previous Year 

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehens

ive  Income 

Total 

(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 1/- per share . Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

held and is entitled to dividend , if declared at the Annual General Meeting .{ In the event of liquidation , the equity shareholders are entitled to receive

remaining assets of the company ( after distrubtion  of all preferential amounts, if any ) in the proportion of equity held by the shareholders }
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OK PLAY INDIA LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12 BORROWINGS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(A) Non Current

Term Loans, Secured

     - From Bank         5,698.65        7,239.99 

     - Against Vehicles            303.64           312.87 

Term Loans, Unsecured

    - From Other Parties         1,150.00        3,019.45 

Debentures

Compulsory  Convertible Debentures                   -                     -   

        7,152.29      10,572.31 

Less : Current Portion         2,628.98        3,372.80 

Less : Interest Accrued and Due on Borrowings                   -                     -   

Total- A 4,523.31       7,199.51       

(B) Current

Loan Repayable on Demand, Secured

 - Working Capital Loan from Bank         3,234.73        3,438.22 

Total- B 3,234.73       3,438.22       

Total-(A+B) 7,758.04       10,637.73     

12.5  Working Capital Loan from Bank is secured by:

d) Equitable Mortgage of property at 125, New Manglapuri, Mehrauli, New Delhi in the name of "Cautious Exim Private Limited".  

From Bank: Payable in monthly installments upto year 2037-38

a) Equitable Mortgage on the Company's property at 124, New Manglapuri, Mehrauli, New Delhi.  

g) Personal Guarantees of two of the Directors of the company.Mr. Rajan Handa and Mrs. Mamta Handa, Director for Rs.8834.20 lacs ( equivalent to 

Loan amount outstanding with Indian Overseas Bank)

f) First Charge on other net block assets of the company .

Unsecured from Other Parties: Payable in monthly/quarterly installments extending  to year 2024-25

Against Vehicles : Payable in monthly Instalments extending to year 2030-31

h) Pledge of 470.4 lacs Equity Shares of the company by Rajan Handa -Director ( Rs.6711.6 lacs )

12.3. Term loans, Unsecured, from other parties have been secured by third party property.  

l) Corporate Guarantee of the Subsidiary Company, OK Play Auto Private Limited 

12.1.Secured Term Loans are secured as below:

i) Second Charge on entire fixed assets of the subsidiary Company, OK Play Auto Private Limited 

Against Vehicles: Secured against hypothecation of respective vehicles.

b) Equitable Mortgage of land and building at Plot No-17-18, Roj-ka Meo Industrial Estate, Tehsil Nuh, District-Mewat, Haryana.  

12.2. Term Loans & Working Capital Loans  from banks are collaterally secured by:

j) Residual value of prime security of the subsidiary Company, OK Play Auto Private Limited .

c) Equitable Mortgage of Company's property at Plot No-33, Roj-ka Meo Industrial Estate, Tehsil Nuh, District-Mewat, Haryana.  

1) Secured against Stocks of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods and Other Stocks and Book Debts 

k) Reinvestment Deposit Plan of value of Rs.194.54 lacs

From Bank: Exclusive charge/equitable mortgage on the factory land and building at 17-18, Roj-ka Meo Industrial Estate, Tehsil Nuh, District - Mewat, 

Haryana, Plant and Machinery and Assets created out of the term loan.

12.4. Term loans are repayable as follows:  

l) Corporate Guarantee of Cautious Exim Private Limited

e) Hypothecation of all Current Assets of the company. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13 PROVISIONS ( NON - CURRENT) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Provision for Gratuity/Leave Encashment             188.40             205.37 

Total 188.40          205.37          

14 TRADE PAYABLES ( CURRENT) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Trade Payables

            139.49 

         1,783.52          2,497.88 

Total 1,923.01       2,497.88       

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2024 (Rs.in lacs)

            139.49                -                         -                     -                    -               139.49 

          1,309.80         401.38                    7.05               13.29             51.99          1,783.52 

                   -                  -                         -                     -                    -                     -   

                   -                  -                         -                     -                    -                     -   

        1,449.29        401.38                   7.05              13.29            51.99        1,923.01 

                  -   

       1,923.01 

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at 31.03.2023
(Rs.in lacs)

                   -                  -                         -                     -                    -                     -   

            493.09       1,931.60                  15.08               13.94             44.17          2,497.88 

                   -                  -                         -                     -                    -                     -   

                   -                  -                         -                     -                    -                     -   

           493.09     1,931.60                 15.08              13.94            44.17        2,497.88 

                  -   

       2,497.88 

15 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Current maturities of 

long term debt

     - Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds             292.55             288.42 

     - Others          2,628.99          3,372.80 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings                   -                     -   

Sundry Creditors (Others)          1,016.41          1,372.28 

Due to Directors                6.01             151.37 

Customer Advances & Deposits             568.62             671.00 

Direct/Indirect Taxes 

payable

         1,076.65             668.56 

Other Liabilities             267.66             368.63 

Total 5,856.89       6,893.06       

16  PROVISIONS ( CURRENT) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 Provision for taxation               81.99              44.28 

Total 81.99            44.28            

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 23rd July 2007 issued zero coupon unsecured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds ("FCCB") 

aggregating to USD 10 Million at par. During the financial year 2010-11 the "FCCB" of the face value of USD 97,60,000 had been bought back by the 

company at a discount of 24% to the face value of the "FCCB" and subsequently a notice was given to the Clearing Houses, through the Trustees, requesting 

communication with the bondholders of the balance 24 bonds of the face value of USD 240000. However, no response has been received and no claimant 

has come forth on the redemption date 24th July 2012 and till date. The premium payable on the redemption of the "FCCB" has been provided for. 

Less : Unbilled Dues

Particulars Not Due as on 

31.03.2023

Total Trade Payable

Less Than 

1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years

Total

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Note : There are  no dues pending for the Micro and  Small Enterprises hence disclosures required under section 22 of MSME Development 

Act,2006 are not required.

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

Particulars Not Due as on 

31.03.2024 Less Than 

1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years

Total

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

Less : Unbilled Dues

Total Trade Payable

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(A) Dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises

(B) Dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
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17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Net Sale of products         18,456.06        18,145.19 

Total 18,456.06     18,145.19     

18 OTHER INCOME (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Rental Income                2.79                1.68 

Interest Income               31.50              17.40 

Miscellaneous Receipts                5.18                5.01 

Profit on Sale of Assets                   -                  0.09 

Total 39.47            24.18            

19 COST OF MATERIALS  CONSUMED (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Opening Stock of Raw Materials             985.41          1,145.46 

Add : Purchases during the year          6,444.64          6,851.53 

7,430.05       7,996.99       

Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials          1,136.15             985.41 

Consumption of Raw Materials-(a) 6,293.90       7,011.58       

Opening Stock of 

Accessories

         1,853.73          1,468.39 

Add : Purchases during the year          3,808.23          3,948.67 

5,661.96       5,417.06       

Less: Stock Transfer on slump sale                   -   

Less: Closing Stock of Accessories          2,421.51          1,853.73 

Consumption of Accessories-(b) 3,240.45       3,563.33       

Opening Stock of Packing Material             156.89             147.75 

Add : Purchases during the year             331.61             299.02 

488.50          446.77          

Less: Closing Stock of Packing Material             309.07             156.89 

Consumption of Packing Material-© 179.43          289.88          

Total (a+b+c) 9,713.78       10,864.79     

20 CHANGES OF INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS , WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Opening Stock

- Work-in-Progress          2,109.08          1,997.08 

- Finished Goods          1,801.70          1,514.75 

Sub-total (a) 3,910.78       3,511.83       

Closing Stock  

- Work-in-Progress          1,652.38          2,109.08 

- Finished Goods          1,692.96          1,801.70 

Sub-total (b) 3,345.34       3,910.78       

Total ( a-b) 565.44          (398.95)         

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Salaries, wages and bonus.          2,160.20          1,976.30 

Contributions to Provident fund & Other Funds               65.82              44.84 

Staff welfare expenses               40.22              43.96 

Total 2,266.24       2,065.10       

22 FINANCE COSTS (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Interest to Banks          1,047.02          1,088.09 

Interest to Others             405.88             527.31 

Finance charges               34.52              88.95 

Bank charges                1.23              10.89 

Total 1,488.65       1,715.24       

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 
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23 OTHER EXPENSES (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Consumption of stores and spare parts.              16.66             21.60 

Power and fuel            740.12           736.82 

Repairs to buildings            175.50               0.08 

Repairs to machinery              86.24             53.00 

Repair & Maintenance -Others            149.80             46.07 

Outside Job work Expenses              25.08             39.53 

Fee & Registration              69.83               8.40 

Donation                0.02               0.03 

Rent                2.91             48.75 

Insurance              23.24             27.15 

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses            159.49           142.22 

Postage & Telephones              20.60             20.79 

Printing & Stationery              17.80             14.04 

Legal & Professional charges              84.57             60.34 

Electricity & Water Expenses            113.72           103.68 

Auditors' remuneration                6.29               6.40 

Rates & Taxes              25.16                   -   

Miscellaneous expenses              94.83           127.79 

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets              40.43                   -   

Advertisement              11.25               1.27 

Business Promotion Expenses              61.45             78.00 

Net loss on Foreign Currency Transactions                   -                (0.22)

Freight & Octroi            121.47           128.57 

Provision for Doubtful Debts                   -                     -   

Discounts            317.31           681.60 

Damaged Goods              13.37             17.49 

Total 2,377.14       2,363.40       

23.1 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS AS FOLLOWS: (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

For Audit fee                4.15               4.25 

For Tax Audit                1.60               1.30 

In other capacity                0.54               0.85 

Total 6.29              6.40              

24 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS GAINS / (LOSS) (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange fluctuation              (4.13)            (22.87)

(Debit)/Credit balances written off          (174.57)               0.03 

Total (178.70)         (22.84)           

25 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

(i) Total Comprehensive Income attributable to Equity Shareholders  ( Rs.in lacs) 152.68          (252.35)         

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating basic EPS 290,281,150 19,208,115   

(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS 362,931,150 19,208,115   

(iv) Basic Earnings Per share (Rs ) 0.05              (1.31)             

(v) Diluted Earnings Per share (Rs) 0.04              (1.31)             

26 NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1  The subsidiary companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are:

Note :

Country of 

Incorporation 
Name of the Subsidiary 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

OK Play Auto Private Limited

RIRA E-Vehicles Private Limited

India

Proportion of Ownership 

100%

100%

100%

(ii) OK Play India Limited has made divestment of interest in Isht Technologies Private Limited w.e.f 22nd December,2023.

(i)  OK Play India Limited has acquired 100% shareholding in MRH Technologies Private Limited on 21st November, 2023. 

MRH Technologies Private Limited

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

India

India
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2  Financial Information of Subsidiary Companies (Rs.in lacs)

OK Play Auto 

Private 

Limited

RIRA-E 

Vehicles 

Private 

Limited

MRH 

Technologies 

Pvt Ltd

Equity Share Capital 800.00 1.00 1.00

Preference Share Capital                   -                   -                     -   

Other Equity 212.45          (845.07)       (0.16)             

Total Assets 4,549.16 5,307.39 4.00

Total Liabilities 4,549.16 5,307.39 4.00

Investments Nil Nil Nil

Turnover/ Total Income 7,733.26 673.44 0.00

Profit/(Loss) Before 

Taxation
101.33 (357.43)       (0.16)             

Provision for Taxation 73.26 131.20                          -   

Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 28.07 (488.63)       (0.38)             

Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil

3  Contingencies and Commitments  : (Rs.in lacs)

PARTICULARS  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

(I) Contingent Liabilities

a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:

101.18 97.22

38.57 40.30

-               -               

2773.38 2493.38

(II) Commitments

4

5 Related Party Disclosures:

(I) Relationships

(a)  Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Remarks

            -

            -

            -

            -

            -

            -

            -

            -

            -

1. The Company does not have any capital contracts remaining to be executed hence there is no capital commitment at the end of the year (Previous 

Year – Nil)

In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances shown in the Balance Sheet have a value on realisation in the ordinary 

course of business atleast equal to the amount stated therein. The provision for all known liabilities has been made and is adequate. 

Relationship

Mr Sudhir Kanta Patro

KMP

Name of Person

Mr. Rajan Handa

Company Secretary of Subsidiary 

Company, OK Play Auto Private 

Limited

Manager of OK Play Auto Private 

Limited

Mrs. Kamal K Patro

Designation

Managing Director

Whole Time Director

Dr. Rajan Wadhera KMP

KMP

KMP

Whole Time Director & CFO

Whole Time Director

Whole Time Director

Company Secretary

Whole Time Director of Subsidiary 

Company , OK Play Auto Private 

Limited

KMPMr. Rishab Handa

Mrs. Meenu Goswami

Mr Yaspal Singh

KMP

KMP Relative

Mr. Raghav Handa

Mrs. Mamta Handa

(i) Claims against the Company, where legal cases are under way, but not 

Financial Information/ Name of Subsidiary Company

(i)  Security, in the form of charge on the properties and Residual value of Block assets, present and future, after netting the prime security for term 

loans, provided to a bank for the credit limits sanctioned by it to the subsidiary company, OK Play Auto Private Limited.

The amount assessed as contingent liability does not include interest that could be claimed by the counter parties.

KMP

c) Other money for which the company is contingently liable:

(iii)     Corporate Guarantee  given as security for the credit limits sanctioned by a 

bank to the subsidiary company, OK Play Auto Private Limited.

KMP 

(ii) For the Assessment Year 2017-18 the Assessing Officer raised an Income Tax 

Demand of Rs.1181.96 lacs against which the Company has filed an appeal before 

CIT(A), Gurgaon-I. The Company has also paid Rs.10 lacs against the above 

demand raised.

b) Guarantees:

(i) Guarantees given to banks as counter guarantees for performance of contracts

(ii)       Letter of credit issued by banks
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(b) Subsidiary Company

     

(c) Significant influence of Key Management Personnel of the company 

(II)    (a) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (I)(a) above, in ordinary course of business:

Related Parties (Referred in (I) (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

a) Remuneration paid 578.66 541.94

b) Short term credit from Directors -                -                

c) Post-Retirement Benefits paid -                -                

 (b) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (I)(b) above, in ordinary course of business: (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Sales -                -                

ii) Payment to third parties -                -                

iii) Rent -                -                

(c) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (I)(c) above, in ordinary course of business: (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Sales -                -                

ii) Purchase -                -                

iii) Rent 2.73               1.68              

d) Corporate Guarantees given by Parent to Subsidiary and vice versa : (Rs.in lacs)

Nature of Transactions

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Corporate Guarantee given by Parent for Subsidiary 2,773.38        2,493.38       

ii) Corporate Guarantee given by Subsidiary for Parent 11,541.00      11,066.00     

(III)          Balance Outstanding at the end of the year (Rs.in lacs)

Related Party  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 Receivable  Payable  Receivable  Payable 

i) Key Management Personnel 22.91             56.25            

ii) RMRS Electric Vehicles Private Limited 6.08                  5.13             

ii) OK Play Healthcare Private Limited 20.80                9.73              

v) Isht Technologies Private Limited 0.81                  

viii) Briskit Technology Private Limited 0.25                  

6

7

Significant Influence of KMP

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

Transactions entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

 All the operations of the company are considered as a single business segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

Relationship

Cautious Exim Private Limited

Company Name

OK Play Healthcare Private Limited Significant Influence of KMP

RMRS Electric Vehicles Private Limted

(IV) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Significant Influence of KMP

Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

Relationship

Wholly owned Subsidiary Company *

Isht Technologies Private Limited Wholly owned Subsidiary Company *

Briskit Technology Private Limited Significant Influence of KMP

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

Wholly owned Subsidiary Company **

* The Company has aquired interest in MRH Technologies  Private Limited w.e.f . 21st November, 2023

** The Company has made divestment of interest in Isht Technologies Private Limited , subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 22nd December, 2023

OK Play Auto Private Limited

RIRA E-Vehicles Private Limited

MRH Technologies Private Limited

Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

Company Name

Isht Technologies Private Limited
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8 TAXATION

Income Tax Recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss (Rs.in lacs)

Particulars

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

i) Current Tax 38.68             0.11              

ii) Deferred Tax/(Credit) 324.24          479.22          

iii) Provision of Tax of earlier years / (written back) 7.78               1.71              

iv) Total Income Tax expenses /(income) recognized in the current year 332.02          480.93          

The Income Tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: (Rs.in lacs)

Particulars

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

Profit Before Tax 841.93           285               

Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% Nil

Computed Tax Expense (a) 211.90           Nil

Tax effect of:

Exempted Income  / Allowable deductions (b) 1,708.79        Nil

Expenses disallowed ( c) 255.71           Nil

Balance (a-b+c) (1,241.19)      Nil

Current Tax Provision (R/off)”A” 38.68             Nil

(Rs.in lacs)

Particulars

 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

a) Deferred Tax Liability 1,537.24        1,440.78       

b) Deferred Tax Asset 1,553.02        1,780.80       

c) Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability at year end,  c=(a-b) (15.78)           (340.02)         

d) Less: Opening Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability (340.02)         (815.16)         

B ) Deferred Tax Provision “B” =(c-d) 324.24          475.14          

C) Provision of Tax of earlier years / (written back) 7.78               1.71              

Total Expenses / (Income) recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss  (B + C) 332.02          476.85          

9 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Rs.in lacs)

Particulars  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

Categorization of Financial Instruments

A Financial assets at amortized cost 

Non-Current

Investments 7,976.77        7,557.47       

Loans -                -                

Other Financial Assets 2,557.38        1,610.05       

Current

Trade Receivables 2,557.38        1,610.05       

Cash and Cash Equivalents 217.29           116.62          

Other Financial Assets 59.19             44.28            

B  Financial liabilities at amortized Cost

Non-Current

Borrowings 4,523.31        7,199.51       

Other Financial Liabilities -                -                

Current

Borrowings 3,234.73        3,438.22       

Trade Payables 1,923.01        2,497.88       

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the company will be able to continue as going concern through efficient allocation of capital towards 

expansion of business and optimization of working capital requirements. The management of the company reviews the capital structure of the company 

on regular basis.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities mean the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants. Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other 

current financial assets, current borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities have been valued at their carrying 

amounts as this largely approximate to its fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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11

(i)              Foreign Currency Risk

All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate at reporting date.

The following table shows foreign currency exposures on financial instruments at the end of the reporting year.

Foreign Currency Exposure             

Particulars  As at  31.03.2024  As at  31.03.2023 

 In USD  Rs.in lacs  In USD  Rs.in lacs 

Loans 351,000           292.55           351,000      288.42          

Trade and Other Payables -                   -                -             -                

Net Exposure 351,000            292.55          351,000      288.42          

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Since the net foreign currency exposure is not substantial, the foreign currency sensitivity is not material at the reporting date. 

(ii)            Interest Rate Risk 

(iii)           Credit Risk

(iv)           Liquidity Risk

12 Additional Regulatory Information

(i) Capital -Work- in progress (CWIP) 

a) Capital Work in Progress ageing Schedule

              -                         -                     -                   -                     -   

              -                         -                     -              52.44             52.44 

               -                         -                      -              52.44             52.44 

(ii)

(iii)

Current 

Year Previous Year

(i) Current Ratio [a/b] 1.33           0.89                  49.0%

Current Assets a 14,897.07  11,497.21         

Current Liabilities b 11,192.29  12,873.44         

(ii) Debt-Equity Ratio [a/b] 0.83           3.86                  -78.6%

Total Borrowings a 10,387.02  14,010.53         

Shareholder's Fund b 12,582.19  3,628.48           

Reduced due to Increase in 

shareholder equity and 

decrease in total borrowing.

Increased due to increase in 

Current Assets and decrease 

in Current Liabilities

The company manages liquidity risk through banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. 

Explanation for significant 

change

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less Than 

1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years

Total

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. Below 

note explains the risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and related on financials, if any. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rate. 

Since the company’s borrowings which are affected by interest rate fluctuation is very insignificant to the size and operations of the company, therefore, 

a change in interest rate risk does not have a material impact on the company’s financial statements in relation to fair value of financial instruments.

Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. Financial instruments 

that are subject to concentrations of credit risks, principally consist of balance with banks, trade receivables, loans and advances. None of the financial 

instruments of the company result in material concentrations of credit risks.

Project in Progress

Project temporarily suspended

(i) Additional Building under construction at Ranipet Plant

Total

The Company has filed all monthly and quarterly statements with banks and all of these statements are in agreement with books of accounts

Disclosure of Ratios:

Following disclosure are made in relation to the Ratios to be disclosed as per Schedule-III
 % Change 

During the 

Year 

(Rs.in lacs except for Ratio)
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(iii) Debt Service Coverage Ratio [a/b] 0.98           0.78                  25.5%

Earning available for Debt Services (  EBITDA) a 3,305.39    3,221.97           

Debt Obligations:

Instalments 3,372.80   3,849.80           

Interest Expense -            276.39              

Total Debt Service b 3372.80 4126.19

(iv) Return on Equity [a/b] 1.4% -5.2% -126.8%

Profit after Tax a 113.20      (195.77)            

Opening Shareholders Fund b(i) 3,628.48    3,888.74           

Closing Shareholders Fund b(ii) 12,582.19 3,628.48           

Average Shareholders Fund b((i+ii)/2) 8,105.33   3,758.61           

(v) Inventory Turnover Ratio [a/b] 133.5% 147.3% -9.4%

Cost of Goods Sold a 10,368.06 10,496.06

Opening Inventory b(i) 7,557.47    6,696.49           

Closing Inventory b(ii) 7,976.77   7,557.47           

Average Inventory b((i+ii)/2) 7,767.12   7,126.98           

(vi) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio [a/b] 8.86           12.59                -29.6%

Revenue from Sale of Goods & Services a 18,456.06 18,145.19

Average Trade Receivables

b 2,083.72    1,441.72           

(vii) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio [a/b] 4.83           4.81                  0.4%

Purchases a 10,673.32 11,129.44

Average Trade Payables

b 2,210.45    2,315.25           

(viii) Net Capital Turnover Ratio [a/b] 4.98           -13.18               -137.8%

Revenue from Sale of Goods & Services a 18,456.06 18,145.19

Working Capital = ( Current Assets - Current Liabilities) b 3,704.78   (1,376.23)         

(ix) Net Profit Ratio [a/b] 0.6% -1.1% -156.8%

Profit for the year a 113.20      (195.77)            

Revenue from Sale of Goods & Services b 18,456.06  18,145.19         

(x) Return on Capital Employed [a/b] 11.0% 17.2% -36.1%

Earning before Tax 483.90      285.27              

Add: Interest to Banks 1,047.02 1,088.09

Add : Interest to Others 405.88 527.31

Operating Profit (EBIT) a 1,936.80 1,900.67

Total Assets 28,796.55 23,906.80

Less : Total Current Liabilities 11,192.29 12,873.44

Capital Employed b 17,604.26 11,033.36

(xi) Return on Investment

(a) From Quoted  Equity Instruments [a/b] -           -                   N.A

Dividend Income a -           -                   

Average Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments b -           -                   

(b) From Unquoted Investments [a/b] -           -                   N.A

Investment Income (Including Capital Gain / Loss) a -           -                   

Average Unquoted Investments b -           -                   

Note :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

 N.A

Reduced due to Increase in 

profit before tax and increase 

in capital employed of the 

Company

Increased due to increase in 

Operating profit of the 

Company   and  decrease in 

debt of the Company.

Increased due to increase in 

net profit of the Company and 

increase in Shareholder Fund

Reduced due to decrease in 

cost of goods sold and 

increase in average inventory

Reduced due increase in 

average Trade Receivables as 

compared to increase in 

Turnover

Increased due to Increase in 

purchase of company and 

decrease in Trade Payables

Increased due to Increase in 

turnover of company and 

increase in working capital

Increased due to Increase in 

net profit  and turnover of 

company

 N.A

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition ) Act, 

1988 (43 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

As per information available with the Management, the Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under  Section 248 of the 

Companies Act , 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties) , with the understanding , 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person(s) or entity(ies) identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ( Ultimate Beneficaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

As per our report of even date attached 

For  J Madan & Associates

(Chartered Accountants)

(FRN. 025913N)

(Rajan Handa) (Rishab Handa ) 

CA Naveen Kumar Managing Director        Whole Time Director & CFO

Partner DIN-00194590 DIN-08174892

M. No. 536759

UDIN : 24536759BKCKNE9608

(Meenu Goswami)

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated: 9th April,  2024 M.No. A 33472

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) liability is not applicable to the company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

There's no transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts and disclosed or surrendered as income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company is in compliance with the regulation as to the number of layers of companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restoration on number of Layers) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds ) by the 

Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding , whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise , that the intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries .

There was no charge or satisfaction , which is yet to be registered with concerned Registrar of Companies, beyond the period permitted under the 

Companies Act, 2013.
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